
Civic Centre, Home Gardens, Dartford, Kent, DA1 1DR
Tel: 01322 343434 Fax: 01322 343422 Web:www.dartford.gov.uk

Audit Board

A meeting of the above Board will be held on

Wednesday 25 April 2018

at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford

Managing Director
17 APRIL 2018

Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman)
Councillor A Bardoe (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor J S Hawkes
Councillor J A Hayes
Councillor A R Lloyd

Councillor Mrs J A Ozog
Councillor D Swinerd



This page is intentionally left blank



AUDIT BOARD

 AGENDA

Wednesday 25 April 2018

1. Apologies for Absence. 

2. Declarations of Interest. 

To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 
terms(s) of any  Grant(s) of Dispensation.

3. Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 
January 2018 

MD
(Pages 1 - 10)

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the Audit Board held on 24 January 2018 be 
confirmed

4. Urgent Items 

The Chairman will announce his decision as to whether there are 
any urgent items and their position on the agenda.

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION IN PUBLIC

5. References from Other Committees (IF ANY) 

There are presently no references from other Committees.

6. Reports from the External Auditor and Assurance Letter 
(Pages 11 - 48)

To note the attached reports and Assurance Letter from the 
External Auditor, Grant Thornton UK.

7. Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 
(Pages 49 - 66)

This report sets out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19.

8. Review of Internal Audit Recommendations - Progress 
Report (Pages 67 - 74)



This report is to update Board Members on progress with the 
follow-up of previous audit reports and to consider any 
outstanding recommendations due but not implemented as at 31 
January 2018.

9. Audit Reports Issued Since Last Meeting of the Board 
(Pages 75 - 82)

This report is to inform the Board of the outcomes of audits 
completed since the previous report to the Board in January 2018 
and to provide Members with the opportunity to request 
clarification or further information, if considered necessary.

10. Progress Report on Internal Audit Plan 2017/18 
(Pages 83 - 88)

This report summarises the audits issued during the year and 
provides information regarding the progress of the Audit Plan for 
2017/18.

11. Selective Invoice Checks 
(Pages 89 - 92)

During the January meeting of the Board, Members selected five 
creditor payments for checking, in order to ascertain the probity 
and accuracy of the transactions. This report summarises the 
findings of that exercise and provides the opportunity for 
Members to select further payments for audit checking.

12. Annual Governance Statement 
(Pages 93 - 

180)

This report considers the governance arrangements and the 
system of internal control which operated during 2017/18 and the 
review that has taken place of those arrangements and controls.

13. PricewaterhouseCoopers Follow Up Review of the Internal 
Audit Service (Pages 181 - 

204)

This report presents the PricewaterhouseCoopers follow up 
review report to Members, together with associated action plan.



1

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

AUDIT BOARD

MINUTES of the meeting of the Audit Board held on Wednesday 24 January 2018 at 
7.00 pm.

PRESENT: Councillor D A Hammock (Chairman)
Councillor A Bardoe (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor J S Hawkes
Councillor J A Hayes
Councillor A R Lloyd
Councillor Mrs. J A Ozog
Councillor D Swinerd

IN ATTENDANCE: Sarah Martin – Strategic Director (Internal Services)
Tim Sams – Financial Services Manager
Richard James – ICT Manager
Glen Moore – Counter Fraud Manager
Lisa Nyon – Principal Auditor/Acting Audit 

Manager
Matt Dean – Grant Thornton UK (External 

Auditor)
Darren Wells – Grant Thornton UK

27. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE. 

There were no apologies for absence.

The Chairman welcomed Matt Dean and Darren Wells from the Council’s 
external auditor Grant Thornton UK and noted the presence of the Strategic 
Director (Internal Services), the Financial Services Manager, the ICT 
Manager, the Counter Fraud Manager and the Principal Auditor in her role as 
Acting Audit Manager. 

28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST. 

There were no declarations of interest.

29. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 6 
SEPTEMBER 2017 

RESOLVED:

1. That the Minutes of the meeting of the Board on 6 September 2017 be 
confirmed as accurate.

30. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES (IF ANY) 

There were no references from other Committees.



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018

2

31. CYBER SECURITY AND INFORMATION RISK GUIDANCE FOR AUDIT 
COMMITTEES 

The Chairman proposed that this item be taken in advance of other standard 
financial reports in the published agenda for the benefit of the ICT Manager.

The covering report from the Financial Services Manager (FSM) considered 
the guidance issued by the National Audit Office (NAO) in their published 
report of September 2017 - “Cyber Security and Information Risk Guidance 
for Audit Committees” (attached as Appendix A to the report). The NAO 
guidance identified key questions that should be asked by Audit Committees 
and the answers to those questions as supplied by the Authority’s Information 
and Communications Technology (ICT) Manager (attached as Appendix B to 
the covering report); the ‘10 Steps to manage Cyber Risks’ (completed and 
attached as Appendix C) together with the ICT Manager’s ‘Cyber Risk Action 
Plan’ (attached as Appendix D).

The FSM briefly summarised the constituent parts of his report and the 
appendices completed by the ICT Manager and suggested that questions of a 
technical nature be addressed to his colleague. 

The Chairman proposed that given the high profile nature of the topic that the 
report and enclosures be distributed to all Members of the Council. He also 
sought confirmation from the ICT Manager that all Councillors would receive 
appropriate IT training and guidance to deal with the cyber issues and risks 
identified by the National Audit Office in their report (attached as Appendix A).

The ICT Manager advised the Board that the NAO guidance reflected an 
extension of what had been the Council’s IT policy over recent years 
regarding the increased cyber risks to information and data protection. He 
agreed that the NAO report and the Council’s responses [Appendices B-D] 
should be distributed to all Members of the Council for their guidance.

The Vice-Chairman noted that the 2013/14 audit of the Council’s IT Security 
remained incomplete [Item 9 Appendix A agenda p.53]. He asked how this 
fact corresponded to the assurances given by the ICT Manager in his 
responses to the NAO guidance, as contained in Appendices B, C and D to 
the covering report.

The ICT Manager acknowledged the concern and advised Members that the 
Council’s draft Information Security Policy was now with Senior Management 
and if approved, would be implemented by March 2018. His responses in 
Appendices B, C and D to the report reflected this expectation.

In response to a variety of further questions from Members the ICT Manager 
confirmed that:



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018

3

 The risk posed by cyber-attack to the delivery of Council services was 
acknowledged and being addressed;

 The two most experienced and proficient members of the Council’s ICT 
team were primarily involved in preparatory work to avoid cyber-attacks 
but received support from the rest of the team. In the event of an 
incident in their absence, the ICT Manager would call on outside 
expertise [response to Q3 Appendix B agenda p.94];

 The Council was considered a low-key target for cyber-attack [in 
comparison to national organisations] and the ICT team did not 
research or analyse who or which group might attack the Authority’s 
networks. However, both the Authority’s External and Internal networks 
were regularly tested to international standards against cyber-attack to 
underpin the warning mechanisms already in place. No breaches of 
either network had been recorded to date, which made identifying 
possible cyber attackers difficult;

 All staff would receive the required guidance and training to meet the 
new GDPR/DPA requirements [Item 9 Appendix A – 2015/16 Audit of 
Data Protection & Freedom of Information – Rec. 3 agenda p.55];

RESOLVED:

1. That Board Members note the National Audit Office guidance on cyber 
security and information risk for Audit Committees as set out in 
Appendix A to the report;

2. That Members note the response from Officers set out in Appendices B 
and C to the report;

3. That Members note the contents of the action plan attached as 
Appendix D to the report and the areas identified for planned 
improvement;

4. That a ‘Guidance Note for All Councillors’ be issued by the ICT 
Manager as soon as possible; to reflect the concerns expressed in the 
NAO report at Appendix A and the action being taken by the Council in 
response as outlined in Appendices B,C and D of the covering report 
from the FSM as presented in the agenda paters.

32. EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 

The covering report from the Financial Services Manager (FSM) presented to 
the Board for consideration the following documents from the External Auditor 
Grant Thornton UK;

 The Annual Audit Letter for 2016/17 (attached as Appendix A to his 
report);

 The External Auditor’s 2016/17 Certification Letter (attached as 
Appendix B);

 An Audit Progress Report and Sector Update (Appendix C).



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018

4

The Annual Audit Letter (Appendix A) informed Members that following 
presentation of the 2016/17 Audit Findings report to the Board in September, 
the External Auditors had signed-off and published the Statement of Accounts 
on 7 September 2017 and that Grant Thornton’s work for the Council for the 
2016/17 financial year was concluded. The separate and specific 2016/17 
Certification Letter (Appendix B) was required to certify the Housing Benefit 
claims made by the Council and confirm fee scale for the claims work of 
£19,485 with no extra fees proposed. The Progress Report and Sector 
Update document (Appendix C) recorded the progress made by Grant 
Thornton in delivering their responsibilities for the 2017/18 financial year.

Matt Dean, Grant Thornton referred Members to the Certification Letter 
[agenda p.23] and confirmed a significant improvement in the claims work 
submitted by the Council over the previous year. No new errors had been 
found in 2016/17 and only two areas identified with issues from the previous 
year which did not require an increase in fees. In response to a specific 
question from the Chairman he confirmed, in relation to the Annual Audit 
Letter [agenda p.17 final column] that the discount rate used by the actuary 
Barnett Waddington was reasonable.

The Chairman thanked Mr Dean for his positive comments and all his work on 
behalf of the Council, prior to taking up new duties within Grant Thornton.  

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the Annual Audit Letter for 2016/17 as attached at 
Appendix A to the report;

2. That Members note the contents of the External Auditor’s 2016/17 
Certification Letter as attached at Appendix B to the report;

3. That Members note the Audit Progress Report and Sector Update 
attached at Appendix C to the report.

33. COUNTER FRAUD TEAM UPDATE REPORT 

The report from the Counter Fraud Manager (CFM) provided Members with 
details of the work carried out by the Counter Fraud Team in the period 1 April 
2017 to 31 December 2017 (attached as Appendix A to the report).

The CFM proposed that he reprise the highlights achieved by his Team in the 
period under review which had completed a second year working as part of 
the joint Revenue and Benefits operation for Dartford and Sevenoaks 
Councils. Highlights had included:

 Reaching the Year 2 annual savings target meant that a 3rd year of 
external funding would be received. Funding had been utilised to 



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018

5

purchase the latest technology to review the 14,000 Council Tax Single 
Person Discount awards made by Dartford Council with an estimated 
annual value of £5 million;

 Working relations and links to the Revenues & Benefits team based at 
Sevenoaks Council had been deepened and co-working improved 
even further with a 3 fold increase in Council Tax fraud referrals;

 The system of Civil Penalty Schemes was working well with an 
increased emphasis on the need to report changes in circumstances by 
applicants to enable the Council to award/pay the  correct levels of 
Council Tax discounts/benefit;

 New credit reference data technology was now being utilised by the 
Team to support both Council Tax and Benefits staff to locate debtors 
who have absconded and to recover outstanding monies.

In response to specific questions from Members the CFM advised that:

 A ‘zero tolerance’ approach was adopted by both Councils across all 
sectors of potential fraud including Business Rate fraud;

 The Business Rate Team already had in place systems to detect 
businesses which were not currently paying the tax correctly. The 
Counter Fraud Team had supplemented that work by running various 
data-match initiatives with the aim of identifying further Business Rate 
(BR) fraud. One such exercise included matching BR data for Dartford 
and Sevenoaks against data held by the Charity Commission. That 
exercise had revealed no monetary errors to date and a very high level 
of assurance in Business Rates accounts, where charity relief had 
been applied; 

 The Team was well served in terms of existing skills, but further 
training was always under consideration to enable the performance 
envelope to be pushed even further.

The Chairman asked the CFM to pass the Board’s thanks and congratulations 
to his Team for their performance in the period under review.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the content of the report and Appendix A detailing 
the work of the Counter Fraud Team in the period under review.

34. PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2017/18 

The report and Appendices from the Acting Audit Manager (AAM) provided 
Board Members with information regarding the progress made by the Internal 
Audit Team in delivering the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2017/18.



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018

6

She advised that since publication of the report [Agenda pages 45-50] the 
total of audit reports completed had risen to 19 the highest total achieved by 
the Internal Audit Team during an annual cycle. An auditor vacancy still 
existed and she continued to act as both Principal Auditor and Acting Audit 
Manager.

In the absence of any questions from Members, the Chairman congratulated 
the Acting Audit Manager and her Team on an excellent performance and 
asked that the Internal Audit Team as a whole be invited to a future meeting 
of the Board to meet Members.

RESOLVED:

1. That Audit Board Members note the contents of the report and 
Appendices and the progress made by the Internal Audit Team against 
the delivery of the 2017/18 Internal Audit Plan;

2. That Members meet the Internal Audit Team at a future meeting of the 
Board.

35. REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS - PROGRESS 
REPORT 

This standard report updated the Board on the progress made in 
implementing recommendations agreed with Management during 2017. 
Appendix A reported on action taken to date and further proposed action on 
outstanding recommendations due to have been implemented by 30 
November 2017.

The outstanding Audit of IT Security 2013/14 [Appendix A agenda p.53] was 
discussed by Members together with Item 12 - Cyber Security and Information 
Risk Guidance for Audit Committees [Min. No. 31 refers].

There were no other comments from the Board on the remainder of the 
contents of Appendix A.

RESOLVED:

1. That Board Members note the reasons for delayed implementation of 
the audit recommendations as set out in Appendix A to the report;

2. That Members endorse the revised dates for implementation of 
outstanding audit recommendations provided by Management as noted 
in Appendix A.

36. AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED SINCE LAST MEETING OF THE BOARD 

This report and Appendices informed Members of the outcomes of the audits 
completed since the previous report to the Board on 6 September 2017 and 



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018

7

provided Members with the opportunity to request clarification or further 
information, as necessary.

The Acting Audit Manager (AAM) highlighted the fact for Members that all 11 
(eleven) Audits listed for review had been completed and given either Full or 
Substantial Assurance Opinions. 

The Shadow Board Chairman acknowledged these re-assuring outcomes for 
the audit reviews undertaken which, for the majority of topics, were self-
explanatory. However, the Substantial Assurances awarded to the reviews for 
Audit 3 - Homelessness Prevention Grants 2017/18, Audit 8 – Strategic 
Transport Infrastructure Programme 2017/18 and Audit 10 – CCTV 2017/18 
was not so apparent to him.

The AAM advised Members that in the case of Audit 3 – Homelessness 
Grants Scheme the Substantial Assurance Opinion related to satisfaction over 
the Council’s processes for awarding grants under the Scheme. In the case of 
Audit 8 – Strategic Transport Infrastructure Programme, the size and many 
facets of the topic dictated that the audit review focused on the Dartford Town 
Centre Transport Scheme as an identified risk to the Council. With regard to 
Audit 10 – CCTV 2017/18 the focus of the review had been on whether the 
existing CCTV arrangements in place were ‘fit for purpose’ to meet the 
‘outcomes’ identified by the Council. 

Following further general discussion of the format of Appendix A with Officers, 
Members concluded that an additional ‘Summary’ column for each audit 
undertaken regardless of the ‘Opinion’ awarded would be useful. 

The Strategic Director undertook to consider this request with the Acting Audit 
Manager.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the contents of the report and Appendix A as 
submitted and the definitions for Audit Opinions as set out in Appendix 
B to the report.  

37. SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS 

At the last meeting of the Board on 6 September 2017 Board Members 
selected 5 (five) creditor payments for checking. This report advised Members 
of the outcome of that exercise.

The results of the review by the Internal Audit confirmed that all the spend 
decisions taken in respect of the creditor payments selected by Members for 
checking were appropriate and in compliance with Council procedures, as 
detailed in the report.

Members selected a further 5 (five) creditor payments for Internal Audit 
examination and subsequent reporting to the Board in April.



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018

8

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the contents of the report;
2. That a further 5 (five) creditor payments be selected by Members for 

checking by Internal Audit and that the outcome of that exercise be 
reported to the Board at its next meeting in April. 

38. FUTURE APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS: UPDATE 

The report from the Strategic Director (Internal Services) updated Board 
Members on the appointment of external auditors for the 2018/19 financial 
year.

The Strategic Director confirmed the appointment of Grant Thornton as the 
Council’s External Auditor’s for a period of five years from 2018/19. She 
reminded Members of the process undertaken to make the appointment, as 
previously agreed by the Board, and detailed in paragraphs 3.1 to 3.7 of her 
report [agenda pages 99/100]. 

She advised that the appointment of Grant Thornton from 2018/19 onwards 
had been supported by the Council and would provide good continuity with 
the existing arrangements. The company’s appointment in a similar capacity 
across all Kent authorities would also benefit Dartford in the assessment of its 
shared services with other Councils. 

The proposed reduction in the scale of fees proposed for 2018/19 due to be 
published in March 2018 [report para 3.8 agenda p. 100] was welcomed. It 
was also proposed that Grant Thornton be appointed to undertake the audit of 
the Council’s Housing Benefit Subsidy claim work for 2018/19 [report para 3.9 
agenda p. 100] and a separate fee for that work would be advised to the 
Board in due course.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the formal appointment of Grant Thornton as the 
Council’s external auditor from 2018/19 for a period of 5 (five) years;

2. That Members note the proposal to appoint Grant Thornton to 
undertake the Council’s Housing Benefit Subsidy claim work for 
2018/19 at a fee to be agreed separately and notified to the Board in 
due course.

39. PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS FOLLOW UP REVIEW OF THE 
INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE 

This report from the Strategic Director (Internal Services) provided the Audit 
Board with an update on the draft findings of PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC) 
follow-up review of the Council’s Internal Audit Service.



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018

9

The Strategic Director reminded Members that the original review by PWC in 
2015 had assessed the Council’s Internal Audit service as ‘Good’ but in need 
of a number of improvements to processes and procedures. In particular a 
need to:

 Strengthen the Internal Audit relationship with management to ensure 
their needs were understood and to provide assurance over the 
Council’s key issues and risks;

 Modernise the IA service in response to changings in local government 
and to find innovative ways of working, to add real value to the Council 
as an organisation.

An action plan had been developed to address the issues identified in the 
PWC Review, but following the departure of the Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud 
Manager, Senior Management had decided to commission PWC to undertake 
a follow-up review to ascertain what progress had been made against that 
action plan and what further improvements were required.

The follow-up review by PWC had not yet issued in final form, but the draft 
findings had been discussed by Management. Highlights included:

 Good progress had been made to implement recommendations raised 
in respect of quality assurance and performance management;

 A new software system ‘Teammate’ had been implemented by IA and 
the team needed to ensure they fully utilised the functionality of the 
new system going forward;

 Improvements had been made by the Acting Audit Manager in the 
communication and reporting of audit findings to management, but key 
stakeholders remained unclear on the ‘value added’ element of the IA 
service. A vision needed to be developed to ensure a clear 
understanding of what IA could deliver and what the Council wanted 
from the Service going forward: at present there was still too much 
emphasis on ‘compliance testing’. Instead, IA needed to be at the 
beginning of projects, helping to contribute to their success rather than 
coming in at the end;

 Overall, perception of the IA service had improved with positive 
feedback on the management of the Audit Plan and the timeliness and 
delivery of audit reports. But stakeholders retained concerns over the 
ability of the IA team to provide real insight into complex areas of the 
Council’s operations. A skills assessment of the current IA team would 
be undertaken and a schedule of training implemented to help meet 
the value-added aspirations desired from the IA team;

 An Audit Needs Assessment was now undertaken annually to ensure 
current and emerging risks were identified and reflected in the annual 



AUDIT BOARD

WEDNESDAY 24 JANUARY 2018

10

audit plan. The Acting Audit Manager was liaising with wider 
management to ensure that there was a clear understanding of the 
Council’s key risks and to ensure IA provided assurance where 
needed;

 Management would now give careful consideration to all the findings in 
the PWC follow-up review and develop an action plan to address the 
gaps identified, for presentation to the Audit Board for approval at its 
meeting on 25 April 2018;  

 The position of Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager remained vacant 
with the Principal Auditor acting up in that role. An Auditor vacancy 
was also being carried by the Team and Management would now give 
careful consideration to the staffing requirements of the IA team 
moving forward to ensure that the Council had an effective Internal 
Audit service.

RESOLVED:

1. That Members note the draft findings from the 
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC’s)’ follow-up review of the Council’s 
Internal Audit service;

2. That Members receive a revised action plan addressing the service 
gaps identified by PWC in their follow-up review at the next meeting of 
the Board on 25 April 2018.

The Chairman thanked all guests and Officers for attending and contributing 
to the proceedings and renewed his good wishes to Matt Dean in his new 
appointment with Grant Thornton. 

The meeting closed at 7.50 pm

Councillor D A Hammock
CHAIRMAN



             
AUDIT BOARD

25 April 2018

REPORTS FROM THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND ASSURANCE LETTER

1.      Summary

1.1. The External Auditor has submitted two reports for consideration by the 
Board. They are:

 The Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council (Appendix A)
 Audit Board Progress Report and Update (Appendix B)

1.2 Also included is a letter (Appendix C) from the External Auditor to the 
Chairman of the Audit Board. The letter is about understanding how the 
Audit Board gains assurance from management. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1. That Members note the plan for the audit of the Council’s 2017/18 accounts.
2.2. That Members note the contents of the Audit Committee Update for Dartford 

Borough Council.
2.3. That Members note the letter from Grant Thornton and the proposed action.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 There are two reports from Grant Thornton, the External Auditor to consider. The 
first is the Audit Plan for 2017/18. This explains the process and timescales for 
the audit of the Council’s Statement of Accounts. This update report is attached 
as Appendix A.

3.2 The second report is a progress report, which Grant Thornton submits to each 
meeting of the Board. This update report is attached as Appendix B. 

3.3 The report brings an update on audit activity as well as updates on technical 
matters and evolving issues.

3.4 Finally, Grant Thornton has written a letter, dated 8th February, addressed to 
Councillor Hammock as Audit Board Chairman. The letter is attached as 
Appendix C. The Financial Services Manager is co-ordinating a comprehensive 
response to Grant Thornton.

3.5 Darren Wells (Engagement Lead) and Laurelin Griffiths (Engagement Manager) 
will present the Reports to the Board. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan



              
AUDIT BOARD

25 April 2018

Not applicable

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications As per the report
Legal Implications None
Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment None

6. Appendices

Appendix A – Grant Thornton – The Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council
Appendix B – Audit Board Progress Report and Update 
Appendix C – Letter from Grant Thornton to the Chair of the Audit Board

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Tim Sams
343148

Internal 
Services/Financi
al Services

N/A



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2018

Dartford Borough Council

25 April 2018



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Introduction & headlines 3

2. Deep business understanding 4

3. Significant risks identified 5

4. Reasonably possible risks identified 8

5. Other matters 9

6. Materiality 10

7. Value for Money arrangements 11

8. Audit logistics, team & audit fees 12

9. Early close 13

10. Independence & non-audit services 14

Appendices 15

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a

comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible to you for reporting all of the risks which may affect the

Council or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for your benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.

We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or refraining from acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,

nor intended for, any other purpose.

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

Darren Wells

Engagement Lead

T:  01293 554 120

M:  07880 456 152

E: darren.j.wells@uk.gt.com

Laurelin Griffiths

Engagement Manager

T: 0118 955 9166

M: 07974 179 055

E: laurelin.h.griffiths@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members is 

available from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton 

International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do 

not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 3

Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory

audit of Dartford Borough Council (‘the Council’) for those charged with governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NAO’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit

Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises where the responsibilities of auditors begin and

end and what is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities are

also set in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Responsibilities issued by

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as

auditor of Dartford Borough Council. We draw your attention to both of these

documents on the PSAA website.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance with the Code and International Standards on

Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

• financial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement) that have been

prepared by management with the oversight of those charged with governance (the

Audit Board); and

• Value for Money arrangements in place at the Council for securing economy, efficiency

and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit Board of

your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper

arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business, and that public money is

safeguarded and properly accounted for. We have considered how the Council is fulfilling

these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is

risk based.

Significant risks Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material financial statement error have 

been identified as:

• Management override of controls

• Valuation of property, plant and equipment

• Valuation of the pension fund net liability

We have rebutted the presumed risk of misstatement due to the improper recognition of revenue. See page 5 for further information.

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit 

Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £1,285k (PY £1,328k), which equates to 2% of gross expenditure in 2016/17. We are 

obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. 

Clearly trivial has been set at £64k (PY £66k).

Value for Money arrangements We have not identified any significant risks in relation to your arrangements to secure value for money. Our risk assessment will remain 

under review until the date of our opinion.

Audit logistics Our interim visits took place in January and March and our final visit will take place across June and July. Our key deliverables are this 

Audit Plan and our Audit Findings Report.

Our fee for the audit will be no less than £46,405 (PY £46,405) for the Council.

Independence We have complied with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial statements

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 4

Deep business understanding

• We will consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your financial resources as part of our work in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

• We will consider whether your financial position leads to uncertainty about the going concern assumption and will review any related disclosures in the financial statements. 

• We will keep you informed of changes to the Regulations and any associated changes to financial reporting or public inspection requirements for 2017/18 through on-going 

discussions and invitations to our technical update workshops.

• As part of our opinion on your financial statements, we will consider whether your financial statements reflect the financial reporting changes in the 2017/18 CIPFA Code.

Changes to service delivery

Our response

Key challengesChanges to financial reporting requirements

Commercialisation

The scale of investment activity in the sector, primarily in 

commercial property, has increased as local authorities seek to 

maximise income generation. These investments are often 

discharged through a company, partnership or other investment 

vehicle.

Local authorities need to ensure that their commercial activities 

are presented appropriately, in compliance with the CIPFA Code 

of Practice and statutory framework, such as the Capital 

Finance Regulations.

Where borrowing to finance these activities, local authorities 

need to comply with CIPFA’s Prudential Code. A new version 

was published in December 2017.

Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015

(the Regulations)

The Department of 

Communities and Local 

Government (DCLG) has 

undertaken a review of the 

Regulations, which may have 

been subject to change.

Any such changes have yet to 

be confirmed, and so are 

unlikely to apply to the 2017/18 

financial statements.

Under the 2015 Regulations 

local authorities are required to 

publish their accounts along 

with the auditors opinion by 31 

July 2018.

Changes to the CIPFA 2017/18 Accounting Code 

CIPFA have introduced other minor changes to the 2017/18 Code 

which confirm the going concern basis for local authorities, and 

updates for leases, service concession arrangements and 

financial instruments.

Business rates pilot

In September 2017, the government launched a prospectus 

inviting local authorities to submit proposals to pilot 100% 

business rates retention in 2018/19.

Kent councils worked together to submit a bid proposing 70% of 

the monies being retained to support financial sustainability of 

the authorities involved and 30% being used to fund future 

growth initiatives.

It was announced in December 2017 that Kent will be one of the 

10 new pilots. The retained monies will be distributed to each 

authority on the basis of their population and growth. 

Housing Revenue Account

DCLG has issued revised 

guidance on the calculation of 

the Item 8 Determination for 

2017/18 which:

• extends transitional 

arrangements for reversing 

impairment charges and 

revaluation losses on 

dwelling assets and applies 

this principle to non-dwelling 

assets from 2017/18; and

• confirms arrangements for 

charging depreciation to the 

HRA and permitting 

revaluation gains that 

reverse previous impairment 

and revaluation losses to be 

adjusted against the HRA.
Future funding arrangements

The DCLG confirmed in December 2017 that the move to 100% 

business rates retention would be put on hold, and instead 

councils will be allowed to retain 75% of business rates by 

2020/21.

Additionally, local authorities will be allowed to increase their 

council tax requirement by an additional 1% per annum without a 

local referendum, bringing it in line with inflation.

Financial Pressures

Dartford has historically met its balanced budgets, and this is not 

expected to change in 2017/18. However pressures are unlikely 

to ease in coming years, due to ongoing financial challenge in the 

public sector, and particularly as the circumstances surrounding 

Brexit will start to take shape, and the Council must adapt to any 

impact this has on grant funding and the economy.

Estimation in the financial statements

As the early closedown of accounts is managed, preparation of 

the financial statements will require greater reliance on 

estimation.

Dartford are well prepared for this, having prepared their financial 

statements to the earlier timetable in 2016/17 to determine key 

areas for improvement.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 5

Significant risks identified
Significant risks are defined by professional standards as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration because they have a higher risk of material 

misstatement. Such risks often relate to significant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential 

magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle 

includes fraudulent 

transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue

may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue.

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there is

no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue

recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature of the revenue 

streams at the Council, we have determined that the risk of fraud arising from 

revenue recognition can be rebutted, because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical frameworks of local authorities, including Dartford 

Borough Council, mean that all forms of fraud are seen as unacceptable

Therefore we do not consider this to be a significant risk for Dartford 

Borough Council.

Management over-ride 

of controls
Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the 

risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities. 

The Council faces external scrutiny of its spending, and this could 

potentially place management under undue pressure in terms of how 

they report performance.

Management over-ride of controls is a risk requiring special audit 

consideration.

We will:

• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates, judgements applied and 

decisions made by management and consider their reasonableness 

• obtain a full listing of journal entries, identify and test unusual journal entries 

for appropriateness

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies or significant 

unusual transactions



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 6

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of property, 

plant and equipment
The Council revalues its land and buildings on a rolling quinquennial

basis to ensure that carrying value is not materially different from 

current value. This represents a significant estimate by management in 

the financial statements.

We identified land and building revaluations and impairments as a risk 

requiring special audit consideration.

We will:

• review management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the 

valuation estimate, the instructions issued to the valuer and the scope of 

those valuer’s work regarding land and buildings

• consider the competence, expertise and objectivity of the valuer used as 

management’s expert

• discuss with the valuer the basis on which the land and buildings valuation is 

carried out and challenge key assumptions made 

• review and challenge the information provided by the Council and used by the 

valuer to ensure it is robust and consistent with our understanding

• test revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into 

the Council's asset register

• evaluate management’s consideration of those land and building assets not 

revalued during the year and how they have satisfied themselves that the 

carrying value of these assets is not materially different to current value

Valuation of pension 

fund net liability

The Council's pension fund asset and liability as reflected in its balance 

sheet represent  a significant estimate in the financial statements.

We identified the valuation of the pension fund net liability as a risk 

requiring special audit consideration.

We will:

• identify the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension 

fund liability is not materially misstated

• assess whether these controls were implemented as expected and whether 

they are sufficient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement

• evaluate the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried 

out your pension fund valuation

• gain an understanding of the basis on which the valuation is carried out

• undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial 

assumptions made

• check the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures 

in notes to the financial statements with the actuarial report from your actuary

Significant risks identified (continued)

We will communicate significant findings on these areas as well as any other significant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit Findings Report in July 2018.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 7

Reasonably possible risks identified
Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas which the auditor has identified as an area where the likelihood of material misstatement cannot be 

reduced to remote, without the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along with the performance of an appropriate level of substantive work. The risk 

of misstatement for an RPR is lower than that for a significant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of 

the business.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Employee

remuneration

Payroll expenditure represents a significant proportion of the Council’s 

operating expenses. 

As the payroll expenditure comes from a number of individual 

transactions and an interface with a sub-system there is a risk that 

payroll expenditure in the accounts could be understated. We therefore 

identified completeness of payroll expenses as a risk requiring particular 

audit attention.

We will

• evaluate the Council's accounting policy for recognition of payroll expenditure

for appropriateness

• gain an understanding of the Council's system for accounting for payroll

expenditure and evaluate the design of the associated controls

• review the reconciliation of the payroll system to the general ledger and to the

financial statements to agree completeness of costs

• perform a trend analysis and detailed analytical procedures of monthly pay

costs to ensure employee remuneration costs are materially complete

Operating expenses Non-pay expenses on other goods and services also represents a 

significant proportion of the Council’s operating expenses. Management 

uses judgement to estimate accruals of un-invoiced costs. 

We identified completeness of non- pay expenses as a risk requiring 

particular audit attention.

We will

• evaluate the Council's accounting policy for recognition of non-pay expenditure

for appropriateness

• gain an understanding of the Council's system for accounting for non-pay

expenditure and evaluate the design of the associated controls

• perform detailed testing of expenditure recorded in the financial year by

agreeing to source documentation

• perform expenditure cut-off testing by agreeing to source documentation to

ensure that expenditure is recorded in the correct financial year



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 8

Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, we have a number of other

audit responsibilities, as follows:

• We carry out work to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual 

Governance Statement are in line with the guidance issued and consistent with our 

knowledge of the Council.

• We will read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent with the 

financial statements on which we give an opinion and that the disclosures included in 

it are in line with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.

• We carry out work on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government 

Accounts process in accordance with NAO group audit instructions.

• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and when required, 

including:

• giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2017/18 

financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in 

relation to the 2017/18 financial statements; 

• issue of a report in the public interest; and 

• making a written recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of 

State.

• We certify completion of our audit.

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Auditing, "irrespective of the assessed risks of material

misstatement, the auditor shall design and perform substantive procedures for each

material class of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other material

balances and transaction streams will therefore be audited. However, the procedures will

not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identified in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, we are required to “obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence about the

appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the

preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude whether there is

a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK)

570). We will review management's assessment of the going concern assumption and

evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 9

Materiality

The concept of materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements

and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to

disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and

applicable law. Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if

they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We propose to calculate financial statement materiality based on a proportion of the

gross expenditure of the Council for the financial year. In the prior year we used the

same benchmark. We have determined planning materiality (the financial statements

materiality determined at the planning stage of the audit) to be £1,285k (PY £1,328k),

which equates to 2% of gross expenditure in 2016/17. We design our procedures to

detect errors in specific accounts at a lower level of precision.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, we

become aware of facts and circumstances that would have caused us to make a

different determination of planning materiality.

Matters we will report to the Audit Board

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements which are material to

our opinion on the financial statements as a whole, we nevertheless report to the Audit

Board any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are

identified by our audit work. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication with those charged

with governance’, we are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements

other than those which are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged with governance. ISA 260

(UK) defines ‘clearly trivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, whether taken

individually or in aggregate and whether judged by any quantitative or qualitative

criteria. In the context of the Council, we propose that an individual difference could

normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £64k (PY £66k).

If management have corrected material misstatements identified during the course of

the audit, we will consider whether those corrections should be communicated to the

Audit Board to assist it in fulfilling its governance responsibilities.

2016/17 adjusted

gross expenditure

£64,242k

Materiality

2016/17 adjusted gross expenditure

Materiality

£1,285k

Whole financial 

statements materiality

(PY £1,328k)

£64k

Misstatements below 

this threshold will not 

be reported to the 

Audit Board

(PY £66k)



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 10

Value for Money arrangements

Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money work for 2017/18 in

November 2017. The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are

required to give a conclusion on whether the Council has proper arrangements in place.

The guidance identifies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys

resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below:

Significant VFM risks

Those risks requiring specific audit consideration and procedures to address the 

likelihood that proper arrangements are not in place at the Council to deliver value 

for money.

We have not identified any significant risks through the performance of our VFM risk 

assessment for Dartford Borough Council.

We will keep our risk assessment under review until the date of our opinion.

Informed 

decision 

making

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

Working 

with partners 

& other third 

parties

Value for 

Money 

arrangements 

criteria



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 11

Audit logistics, team & audit fees

Audit fees

The planned audit fees are no less than £46,405 (PY £46,405) for the financial 

statements audit and £19,038 (PY £19,485) for certification of the housing benefit 

subsidy claim, which falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited.

Fees in respect of other grant work, such as reasonable assurance reports, are shown 

on page 13, which details non-audit services.

In setting your fee, we have assumed that the scope of the audit, and the Council and 

its activities, do not significantly change.

Our requirements

To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, we have 

detailed our expectations and requirements in the following section ‘Early Close’. we 

will meet regularly with key members of the finance team to discuss the timing and 

requirements of our work, ensuring the audit runs as smoothly as possible. If the 

requirements detailed overleaf are not met, we reserve the right to postpone our audit 

visit and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.

Darren Wells, Engagement Lead

Darren will be the main point of contact for the Chair, Chief Executive 

and Board members. He will share his wealth of knowledge and 

experience across the sector providing challenge and sharing good 

practice. Darren will ensure our audit is tailored specifically to you, 

and he is responsible for the overall quality of our audit. Darren will 

sign your audit opinion.

Laurelin Griffiths, Engagement Manager

Laurelin will work with senior members of the finance team ensuring 

testing is delivered and any accounting issues are addressed on a 

timely basis. She will attend Audit Board meetings with Darren, and 

supervise the on-site team. Laurelin will undertake reviews of the 

team’s work and draft clear, concise and understandable reports.

Planning and

risk assessment 

Interim audit

March 2018

Year end audit

June & July 2018

Audit Board

24 January 2018

Audit Board

25 April 2018

Audit Board

30 July 2018
Audit Board

Date TBC

Audit 

Findings 

Report

Audit 

opinion

Audit 

Board 

Update

Audit Plan & 

Interim Progress 

Report

Annual 

Audit 

Letter



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 12

Early close

Our requirements 

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit or additional audit fees being incurred, you need to 

ensure that you:

• produce draft financial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed with 

us, including all notes, the narrative report and the Annual Governance Statement

• ensure that good quality working papers are available at the start of the audit, in 

accordance with the working paper requirements schedule that we have shared with 

you

• ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are 

reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

• ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherwise 

agreed) the planned period of the audit

• respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

In return, we will ensure that:

• the audit runs smoothly with the minimum disruption to your staff

• you are kept informed of progress through the use of an issues tracker and weekly 

meetings during the audit

• we are available to discuss issues with you prior to and during your preparation of the 

financial statements. 

Meeting the early close timeframe

Bringing forward the statutory date for publication of audited local government 

accounts to 31 July this year, across the whole sector, is a significant challenge for 

local authorities and auditors alike. For authorities, the time available to prepare the 

accounts is curtailed, while, as auditors we have a shorter period to complete our work 

and face an even more significant peak in our workload than previously.

We have carefully planned how we can make the best use of the resources available 

to us during the final accounts period. As well as increasing the overall level of 

resources available to deliver audits, we have focused on:

• bringing forward as much work as possible to interim audits

• starting work on final accounts audits as early as possible, by agreeing which 

authorities will have accounts prepared significantly before the end of May

• seeking further efficiencies in the way we carry out our audits

• working with you to agree detailed plans to make the audits run smoothly, including 

early agreement of audit dates, working paper and data requirements and early 

discussions on potentially contentious items.

We are satisfied that, if all these plans are implemented, we will be able to complete 

your audit and those of our other local government clients in sufficient time to meet the 

earlier deadline. 

Client responsibilities

Where individual clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, we need to ensure that 

this does not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of time, 

thereby disadvantaging other clients. We will therefore conduct audits in line with the 

timetable set out in audit plans (as detailed on page 12). Where the elapsed time to 

complete an audit exceeds that agreed due to a client not meeting its obligations we 

will not be able to maintain a team on site. Similarly, where additional resources are 

needed to complete the audit due to a client not meeting their obligations we are not 

able to guarantee the delivery of the audit by the statutory deadline. Such audits are 

unlikely to be re-started until very close to, or after the statutory deadline. In addition, it 

is highly likely that these audits will incur additional audit fees.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 13

Independence & non-audit services

Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all significant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the firm 

or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues with us. We will also discuss with you if we make 

additional significant judgements surrounding independence matters.

We confirm that there are no significant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that we are required or wish to draw to your attention. We have complied with the 

Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and we as a firm, and each covered person, confirm that we are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the financial 

statements. Further, we have complied with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2016 which sets out supplementary guidance 

on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies. 

We confirm that we have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant 

Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. 

Non-audit services

The following services were identified:

Service Fees £ Threats Safeguards

Audit related

Certification of Pooled 

Capital Receipts

2,000 Self-Interest (because 

this is a recurring fee)

The level of this recurring fee taken on its own is not considered a significant threat to independence as the fee  

for this work is £2,000 in comparison to the total fee for the audit of £46,405 and in particular relative to Grant 

Thornton UK LLP’s turnover overall. Further, it is a fixed fee and there is no contingent element to it. These 

factors mitigate the perceived self-interest threat to an acceptable level.

The amounts detailed are fees agreed to-date for audit related and non-audit services to be undertaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP in the current financial year. These services are 

consistent with the Council’s policy on the allotment of non-audit work to your auditors. Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by 

Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited network member Firms will be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

None of the services provided are subject to contingent fees.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18

Appendices

A. Revised ISAs



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18 15

Appendix A:  Revised ISAs

Detailed below is a summary of the key changes impacting the auditor’s report for audits of financial statement for periods commencing on or after 17 June 2016.

Section of the auditor's report Description of the requirements

Conclusions relating to going concern We will be required to conclude and report whether:

• The directors use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate 

• The directors have disclosed identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the Council’s ability to continue as a 

going concern. 

Material uncertainty related to going 

concern

We will need to include a brief description of the events or conditions identified that may cast significant doubt on the Council's ability to 

continue as a going concern when a material uncertainty has been identified and adequately disclosed in the financial statements. 

Going concern material uncertainties are no longer reported in an Emphasis of Matter section in our audit report.

Other information We will be required to include a section on other information which includes:

• Responsibilities of management and auditors regarding other information

• A statement that the opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information unless required by law or regulation

• Reporting inconsistencies or misstatements where identified

Additional responsibilities for directors 

and the auditor

We will be required to include the respective responsibilities for directors and us, as auditors, regarding going concern.

Format of the report The opinion section appears first followed by the basis of opinion section.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for Dartford Borough Council  |  2017/18

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 

firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 

separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 

another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk



Audit Progress Report and Sector Update

Dartford Borough Council

Year ending 31 March 2018

April 2018



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Contents

Section Page

Introduction 03

Progress at April 04

Results of Interim Audit Work 05

Audit Deliverables 07

Sector Update 08

2



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

This paper provides the Audit Board with a report on progress in delivering our 

responsibilities as your external auditors. 

The paper also includes:

• a summary of emerging national issues and developments that may be relevant to you as a local authority; and

• includes a number of challenge questions in respect of these emerging issues which the Board may wish to 

consider (these are a tool to use, if helpful, rather than formal questions requiring responses for audit purposes)

Members of the Audit Board can find further useful material on our website, where we have a section dedicated to 

our work in the public sector. Here you can download copies of our publications. Click on the Grant Thornton logo to 

be directed to the website www.grant-thornton.co.uk .

If you would like further information on any items in this briefing, or would like to register with Grant Thornton to 

receive regular email updates on issues that are of interest to you, please contact either your Engagement Lead or 

Engagement Manager.

Introduction

3

Darren Wells

Engagement Lead

T 01293 554 120

M 07880 456 152

E darren.j.wells@uk.gt.com

Laurelin Griffiths

Engagement Manager

T 0118 955 9166

M 07974 179 055

E laurelin.h.griffiths@uk.gt.com

http://www.grant-thornton.co.uk/
mailto:darren.j.wells@uk.gt.com
mailto:laurelin.h.griffiths@uk.gt.com


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Value for Money

The scope of our work is set out in the guidance issued 

by the National Audit Office. The Code requires auditors 

to satisfy themselves that; "the Council has made proper 

arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources".

The guidance confirmed the overall criterion as: "in all 

significant respects, the audited body had proper 

arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 

decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned 

and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local 

people".

The three sub criteria for assessment to be able to give a 

conclusion overall are:

• Informed decision making

• Sustainable resource deployment

• Working with partners and other third parties

We have made our initial risk assessment to determine 

our approach to our Value For Money work. We reported 

the results of this in our Audit Plan, also at this meeting.

We will report our work in the Audit Findings Report and 

give our Value For Money Conclusion by the deadline in 

July 2018.

Progress at April

4

Other areas

Certification of claims and returns

We are required to certify the Council’s annual Housing 

Benefit Subsidy claim in accordance with procedures 

agreed with the Department for Work and Pensions. 

This certification work for the 2018/19 claim will be 

concluded by November 2018.

The results of the certification work are reported to you 

in our certification letter.

Meetings

We met with Finance Officers in January as part of our 

regular liaison meetings and continue to be in 

discussions with finance staff regarding emerging 

developments and to ensure the audit process is smooth 

and effective.

Events

We provide a range of workshops, along with network 

events for members and publications to support the 

Council. Further details of the publications that may be 

of interest to the Council are set out in our Sector 

Update section of this report.

Financial Statements Audit

We have completed the planning for the 2017/18 

financial statements audit and have issued a detailed 

audit plan, setting out our proposed approach to the 

audit of the Council's 2017/18 financial statements.

We commenced our interim audit in March 2018. Our 

interim fieldwork visit includes:

• Updated review of the Council’s control 

environment

• Updated understanding of financial systems

• Review of Internal Audit reports on core financial 

systems

• Early work on emerging accounting issues

• Early substantive testing

The findings from our interim audit are summarised 

on pages 6 and 7.

The statutory deadline for the issue of the 2017/18 

opinion is brought forward by two months to 31 July 

2018. We are discussing our plan and timetable with 

officers.

The final accounts audit is due to begin in June with 

findings reported to you in the Audit Findings Report 

by the earlier deadline of July 2018.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Audit Deliverables

5

2017/18 Deliverables Planned Date Status

Fee Letter 

Confirming audit fee for 2017/18.

April 2017 Complete

Accounts Audit Plan

We are required to issue a detailed accounts audit plan to the Audit Board setting out our proposed approach in 

order to give an opinion on the Council’s 2017-18 financial statements.

April 2018 Complete

Interim Audit Findings

We will report to you the findings from our interim audit and our initial value for money risk assessment within our 

Progress Report.

April 2018 Included in this report

Audit Findings Report

The Audit Findings Report will be reported to the July Audit Board.

July 2018 Not yet due

Auditors Report

This is the opinion on your financial statement, annual governance statement and value for money conclusion.

July 2018 Not yet due

Annual Audit Letter

This letter communicates the key issues arising from our work.

August 2018 Not yet due

Annual Certification Letter

This letter reports any matters arising from our certification work carried out under the PSAA contract.

December 2018 Not yet due



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Results of Interim Audit Work

6

The findings of our interim audit work, and the impact of our findings on the accounts audit approach, are summarised in the table below:

Work performed Conclusions and recommendations

Internal audit We have completed a high level review of internal audit's overall arrangements. 

Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to your attention. 

We have also reviewed internal audit's work on the Council's key financial 

systems to date. We have not identified any significant weaknesses impacting on 

our responsibilities. 

Overall, we have concluded that the internal audit service provides 

an independent and satisfactory service to the Council and that 

internal audit work contributes to an effective internal control 

environment.

Our review of internal audit work has not identified any weaknesses 

which impact on our audit approach. 

Entity level controls We have obtained an understanding of the overall control environment relevant to 

the preparation of the financial statements including:

• Communication and enforcement of integrity and ethical values

• Commitment to competence

• Participation by those charged with governance

• Management's philosophy and operating style

• Organisational structure

• Assignment of authority and responsibility

• Human resource policies and practices

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are likely to 

adversely impact on the Council's financial statements

Review of 

information 

technology controls

We performed a high level review of the general IT control environment, as part of 

the overall review of the internal controls system. 

IT (information technology) controls were observed to have been implemented in 

accordance with our documented understanding.

Our work has identified no material weaknesses which are likely to 

adversely impact on the Council's financial statements.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018 7

Work performed Conclusions and recommendations

Walkthrough testing We have completed walkthrough tests of the Council’s controls operating in 

areas where we consider that  there is a risk of material misstatement to the 

financial statements.

Our work has not identified any issues which we wish to bring to your attention. 

Internal controls have been implemented by the Council in accordance with our 

documented understanding.

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on our 

audit approach. 

Journal entry controls We have reviewed the Council’s journal entry policies and procedures as part 

of determining our journal entry testing strategy and have not identified any 

material weaknesses which are likely to adversely impact on the Council’s 

control environment or financial statements.

Our work has not identified any weaknesses which impact on our 

audit approach. 

During our year end visit we will undertake detailed testing on 

journal transactions recorded for the financial year, by extracting 

'unusual' entries for further review.

Early substantive

testing

We have performed substantive testing on transactions for the first 10 months 
of the year in the following areas:

• Employee remuneration 

• Operating expenditure

• Fees and charges

No issues have been identified in our early substantive testing. We 

will test the remaining part of the year during our final accounts 

visit.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Local government finances are at a tipping point. 

Councils are tackling a continuing drive to 

achieve greater efficiency in the delivery of 

public services, whilst facing the challenges to 

address rising demand, ongoing budget 

pressures and social inequality.

Our sector update provides you with an up to date summary of 

emerging national issues and developments to support you. We 

cover areas which may have an impact on your organisation, the 

wider NHS and the public sector as a whole. Links are provided to 

the detailed report/briefing to allow you to delve further and find 

out more. 

Our public sector team at Grant Thornton also undertake research 

on service and technical issues. We will bring you the latest 

research publications in this update. We also include areas of 

potential interest to start conversations within the organisation and 

with Audit Board members, as well as any accounting and 

regulatory updates. 

Sector Update

8

More information can be found on our dedicated public sector and local 

government sections on the Grant Thornton website

• Grant Thornton Publications

• Insights from local  government sector 

specialists

• Reports of interest

• Accounting and regulatory updates



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Financial sustainability of local authorities 2018

This National Audit Office report reviews financial 

sustainability across  Local Government and examines 

whether the MHCLG, along with other departments with 

responsibility for local services, understands the impact of 

funding reductions on the financial and service sustainability 

of local authorities.

The report concludes that current pattern of growing overspends on services and dwindling 

reserves exhibited by an increasing number of authorities is not sustainable over the medium 

term. The financial future for many authorities is less certain than in 2014, when the NAO 

last looked at financial sustainability. It also notes that the financial uncertainty created by 

delayed reform to the local government financial system risks longer-term value for money.

The NAO’s view is that the sector has done well to manage substantial funding reductions 

since 2010-11, but financial pressure has increased markedly since the 2014 review.. 

Services other than adult social care are continuing to face reducing funding despite 

anticipated increases in council tax. Local authorities face a range of new demand and cost 

pressures while their statutory obligations have not been reduced. Non-social-care budgets 

have already been reduced substantially, so many authorities have less room for manoeuvre 

in finding further savings. The scope for local discretion in service provision is also eroding 

even as local authorities strive to generate alternative income streams.

Key findings include:

• Financial resilience varies between authorities, with some having substantially lower 

reserves levels than others. Levels of total reserves in social care authorities as a whole 

are higher now than in 2010-11. However, there is variation in individual authorities’ 

ability to build up their reserves and differences in the rate at which they have begun to 

draw them down. Some 10.6% of single-tier and county councils would have the 

equivalent of less than three years’ worth of total reserves (earmarked and unallocated 

combined) left if they continued to use their reserves at the rate they did in 2016-17.

• A section 114 notice has been issued at one authority, which indicates that it is at risk of 

failing to balance its books in this financial year. In February 2018, the statutory financial 

officer for Northamptonshire County Council issued a section 114 notice, indicating that it 

was at risk of spending more in the financial year than the resources it has available, 

which would be unlawful.

• MHCLG’s work to assess the sector’s funding requirements as part of the 2015 Spending 

Review was better than the work it undertook for the 2013 Spending Review. The 

Department’s advice to ministers in 2015 drew on a more comprehensive evidence base, 

including data returns from 12 departments.

• The government has announced multiple short-term funding initiatives in recent years 

and does not have a long-term funding plan for local authorities. In 2016-17, the 

Department offered a four-year settlement to all authorities to enable better financial 

planning. However, there have been many changes to funding streams outside this core 

offer. The funding landscape following the 2015 Spending Review has been 

characterised by one-off and short-term funding initiatives. 

• There is also uncertainty over the long-term financial plan for the sector. The absolute 

scale of future funding is unknown until the completion of the next Spending Review. The 

government has confirmed its intention to implement the results of the Fair Funding 

Review in 2020-21 and to allow local authorities to retain 75% of business rates. 

However, the implications of these changes are not yet clear. 

• There is a lack of ongoing coordinated monitoring of the impact of funding reductions 

across the full range of local authority services.

9



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Public Sector Audit Appointments: Report on the 
results of auditors’ work 2016/17

This is the third report on the results of auditors’ work at local 

government bodies published by PSAA. It summarises the 

results of auditors’ work at 497 principal bodies and 9,752 

small bodies for 2016/17. The report covers the timeliness 

and quality of financial reporting, auditors’ local value for 

money work, and the extent to which auditors used their 

statutory reporting powers.

The timeliness and quality of financial reporting for 2016/17, as reported by auditors, 

remained broadly consistent with the previous year for both principal and small bodies. 

Compared with 2015/16, the number of principal bodies that received an unqualified audit 

opinion by 31 July showed an encouraging increase. 83 principal bodies (17 per cent) 

received an unqualified opinion on their accounts by the end of July compared with 49 (10 

per cent) for 2015/16. These bodies appear to be well positioned to meet the earlier statutory 

accounts publication timetable that will apply for 2017/18 accounts.

Less positively, the proportion of principal bodies where the auditor was unable to issue the 

opinion by 30 September increased compared to 2015/16. Auditors at 92 per cent of councils 

(331 out of 357) were able to issue the opinion on the accounts by 30 September 2017, 

compared to 96 per cent for the previous year. This is a disappointing development in the 

context of the challenging new reporting timetable from 2017/18. All police bodies, 29 out of 

30 fire and rescue authorities and all other local government bodies received their audit 

opinions by 30 September 2017.

The number of qualified conclusions on value for money arrangements has remained 

relatively constant at 7 per cent (30 councils, 2 fire and rescue authorities and 1 other local 

government body) compared to 8 per cent for 2015/16. The most common reasons for 

auditors issuing non-standard conclusions on the 2016/17 accounts were:

• the impact of issues identified in the reports of statutory inspectorates;

• corporate governance issues; and

• financial sustainability.

The latest results of auditors’ work on the financial year to 31 March 2017 show a solid 

position for the majority of principal local government bodies. Generally, high standards of 

financial reporting are being maintained despite the financial and service delivery challenges 

currently facing local government.

10

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Changes to the prudential framework of capital 
finance
The Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government 

has updated the Local Authority Investments Guidance and 

the Minimum Revenue following its publication of consultation 

responses on 2 February 2018.

A total of 213 consultation responses were received by the MHCLG by the 22 December 

2017 deadline from across local government. Following consideration of the responses the 

Government has:

• made some technical changes to the Investments Guidance and MRP Guidance

• amended proposals relating to useful economic lives of assets

• implemented the Investments Guidance for 2018-19, but allowed flexibility on when the 

additional disclosure first need to be presented to full Council

• deferred implementation of MRP Guidance to 2019-20 apart from the guidance 

“Changing methods for calculating MRP”, which applies from 1 April 2018.

Key changes are noted below.

Statutory Guidance on Local Authority Investments

Transparency and democratic accountability – the revised guidance retains the 

requirement for an Investment Strategy to be prepared at least annually and introduces 

some additional disclosures to improve transparency. However, as the changes to the 

CIPFA  Prudential Code include a new requirement for local authorities to prepare a Capital 

Strategy, the revised guidance allows the matters required to be disclosed in the Investment 

Strategy to be disclosed in the Capital Strategy.

Principle of contribution – the consultation sought views on the introduction of a new 

principle requiring local authorities to disclose the contribution that non-core investments 

make towards core functions. Authorities’ core objectives include ‘service delivery objectives 

and/or placemaking role.’ This clarification has been made to recognise the fact that local 

authorities have a key role in facilitating the long term regeneration and economic growth of 

their local areas and that they may want to hold long term investments to facilitate this.

Introduction of a concept of proportionality – the Government is concerned that some 

local authorities may become overly dependent on commercial income as a source of 

revenue for delivering statutory services. The consultation sought views on requiring local 

authorities to disclose their dependence on commercial income to deliver statutory services 

and the amount of borrowing that has been committed to generate that income. A majority of 

respondents supported the introduction of a concept of proportionality, recognising the 

importance that local authorities make decisions based on an understanding of the overall 

risk that they face.

Borrowing in advance of need – by bringing non-financial investments (held primarily or 

partially to generate a profit) within the scope of the Investments Guidance, the consultation 

proposals made it clear that borrowing to fund acquisition of non-financial assets solely to 

generate a profit is not prudential. The Investment Guidance requires local authorities who 

have borrowed in advance of need solely to generate a profit to explain why they have 

chosen to disregard statutory guidance.  It is also important to note that nothing in the 

Investment Guidance or the Prudential Code overrides statute, and local authorities will still 

need to consider whether any novel transaction is lawful by reference to legislation.

Minimum Revenue Provision Guidance

The consultation sought views on proposals to update the guidance relating to MRP to 

ensure local authorities are making prudent provision for the repayment of debt.

Meaning of a charge to the revenue account – the Government does not believe that 

crediting the revenue account is either prudent or within the spirit of the approach set out in 

the relevant Regulations. For this reason a charge to the account should not be a negative 

charge.

Impact of changing methods of calculating MRP – the Government does not expect any 

local authority to recalculate MRP charged in prior years due to the proposed changes in 

methodology. 

11

Introduction of a maximum economic life of assets – the 

consultation sought views on setting a maximum useful 

economic life of 50 years for freehold land and 40 years for 

other assets. The MRP Guidance will set a maximum life of 50 

years, but allow local authorities to exceed this where the 

related debt is PFI debt with a longer term than 50 years, or 

where a local authority has an opinion from an appropriately 

qualified person that an operational asset will deliver benefits 

for more than 50 years.

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

CIPFA publications - The Prudential Code and 
Treasury Management Code

CIPFA have published an updated ‘Prudential Code for 

Capital Finance in Local Authorities’. Key developments 

include the introduction of more contextual reporting 

through the requirement to produce a capital strategy 

along with streamlined indicators. 

The framework established by the Prudential Code should support local strategic 

planning, local asset management planning and proper option appraisal. The 

objectives of the Prudential Code are to ensure, within this clear framework, that the 

capital investment plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

Local authorities are required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code 

when carrying out their duties in England and Wales under Part 1 of the Local 

Government Act 2003, in Scotland under Part 7 of the Local Government in Scotland 

Act 2003, and in Northern Ireland under Part 1 of the Local Government Finance Act 

(Northern Ireland) 2011.

12

.

Since the Prudential Code was last updated 

in 2011, the landscape for public service 

delivery has changed significantly following 

the sustained period of reduced public 

spending and the developing localism 

agenda. It reflects the increasing diversity in 

the sector and new structures, whilst 

providing for streamlined reporting and 

indicators to encourage better understanding 

of local circumstances and improve decision 

making.

The introduction of a capital strategy allows 

individual local authorities to give greater 

weight to local circumstances and explain 

their approach to borrowing and investment.

The Code is available in hard copy and 

online.

CIPFA have also published  an updated Treasury 

Management in the Public Services: Code of Practice 

and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes. The Code provides 

a framework for effective treasury management in public 

sector organisations. 

The Code defines treasury management as follows:

The management of the organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 

money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 

associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent 

with those risks. 

It is primarily designed for the use of local authorities (including police and crime 

commissioners and fire authorities), providers of social housing, higher and further 

education institutions, and the NHS. Local authorities in England, Scotland and Wales 

are required to ‘have regard’ to the Code.

Since the last edition of the TM Code was published in 2011, the landscape for public 

service delivery has changed significantly following the sustained period of reduced 

public spending and the developing localism agenda.

There are significant treasury management portfolios within the public 

services, for example, as at 31 March 2016, UK local authorities had 

outstanding borrowing of £88bn and investments of £32bn

.The Code is available in hard copy and online.



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Overview of the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR)

13

What is it?

The GDPR is the most significant development in data protection for 20 years. It 

introduces new rights for individuals and new obligations for public and private 

sector organisations. 

What’s next?

Many public sector organisations have already developed strategic plans to 

implement the GDPR, which require policy, operational, governance and 

technology changes to ensure compliance by 25th May 2018. 

How will this affect 

you? 

What organisations 

need to do by May 

2018  

 All organisations that process personal data will be affected by the GDPR. 

 The definition of 'personal data' has been clarified to include any data that can identify a living individual, either directly or 

indirectly. Various unique personal identifiers (including online cookies and IP addresses) will fall within the scope of personal 

data

 Local government organisations need to be able to provide evidence of completion of their GDPR work to internal and external 

stakeholders, to internal audit and to regulators. 

 New policies and procedures need to be fully signed off and operational. 

Organisation Accountability Notifications and Rights Claims and Fines

 Organisations must document their assurance 

procedures, and make them available to regulators

 Some organisations need to designate a Data 

Protection Officer, who has expert knowledge of data 

protection law

 Organisations must notify significant data 

breaches to regulators within 72 hours

 Organisations must explain to individuals what 

their rights over their personal information are and 

how it is being processed and protected

 For the most serious data breaches, privacy 

regulators can impose penalties of up to €20 

million on public sector organisations, 

 Individuals and representative organisations can 

claim compensation for infringements of data 

protection law
Questions for your organisation:

• Can your organisation erase personal data effectively?

• Have you appointed a Data Protection Officer if required to have one?

• How will your organisation ensure citizens know how their data is being used and whether it’s being shared with other 

organisations? 



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Supply Chain Insights tool helps support supply 
chain assurance in public services

Grant Thornton UK LLP has launched a new insights and 

benchmarking platform to support supply chain assurance 

and competitor intelligence in public services. 

The Supply Chain Insights service is designed for use by financial directors and procurement 

professionals in the public sector, and market leaders in private sector suppliers to the public 

sector. It provides users with a detailed picture of contract value and spend with their supply 

chain members across the public sector. The analysis also provides a robust and granular 

view on the viability, sustainability, market position and coverage of their key suppliers and 

competitors.

The platform is built on aggregated data from 96 million invoices and covers £0.5 trillion of 

spending.  The data is supplemented with financial standing data and indicators to give a 

fully rounded view. The service is supported by a dedicated team of analysts and is available 

to access directly as an on-line platform.

Phillip Woolley, Partner, Grant Thornton UK LLP, said: 

"The fall-out from the recent failure of Carillion has highlighted the urgent need for robust and 

ongoing supply chain monitoring and assurance.  Supply Chain Insights provides a clear 

picture of your suppliers’ activities across the sector, allowing you to understand risks, 

capacity and track-record.  We think it’s an indispensable resource in today’s supplier 

market." 

The tool enables you to immediately:

• access over 96 million transactions that are continually added to

• segment invoices by:

• –– organisation and category

• –– service provider

• –– date at a monthly level

• benchmark your spend against your peers

• identify:

• –– organisations buying similar services

• –– differences in pricing

• –– the leading supplier

• see how important each buyer is to a supplier

• benchmark public sector organisations’ spend on a consistent basis

• see how much public sector organisations spend with different suppliers

Supply Chain Insights forms part of the Grant Thornton Public Sector Insight Studio portfolio 

of analytics platforms.

Click on Supply Chain Insights for more information.

14

http://supplychaininsights.grantthornton.co.uk/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only. Audit Progress Report and Sector Update | April 2018

Grant Thornton website links

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector

http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/commercial-healthcheck-in-local-authorities/

http://www.cfoinsights.co.uk/

http://supplychaininsights.grantthornton.co.uk/

PSAA website links

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/

MHCLG website links

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-local-government-investments-second-edition

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-minimum-revenue-provision-third-edition

CIPFA website link

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2017-edition-book

National Audit Office link

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/financial-sustainability-of-local-authorities-2018/

https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/

15

Links

https://www.grantthornton.co.uk/
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/industries/publicsector
http://www.grantthornton.co.uk/en/insights/commercial-healthcheck-in-local-authorities/
http://www.cfoinsights.co.uk/
http://supplychaininsights.grantthornton.co.uk/
https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/reports-on-the-results-of-auditors-work/
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/proposed-changes-to-the-prudential-framework-of-capital-finance
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-local-government-investments-second-edition
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/capital-finance-guidance-on-minimum-revenue-provision-third-edition
http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/t/the-prudential-code-for-capital-finance-in-local-authorities-2017-edition-book
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/
https://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-adult-social-care-workforce-in-england/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. Confidential and information only.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, 

as the context requires. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL).GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each 

member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not 

obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. This proposal is made by Grant Thornton UK LLP and is in all respects subject to the negotiation, agreement 

and signing of a specific contract/letter of engagement. The client names quoted within this proposal are disclosed on a confidential basis. All information in this proposal is released strictly 

for the purpose of this process and must not be disclosed to any other parties without express consent from Grant Thornton UK LLP. 

grantthornton.co.uk



 

 

 

 

Grant Thornton UK LLP 
30 Finsbury Square 
London 
EC2P 2YU 
 
www.grant-thornton.co.uk 

 

 

 

 
 

 

   

Chartered Accountants. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. 
Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG. A list of members is available from our registered office. Grant Thornton 

UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton 
International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. 
GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or om issions. 

Please see grantthornton.co.uk for further details.  

grantthornton.co.uk 

  
 

 

 

Dear David, 

Audit of Dartford Borough Council financial statements for the year end 31 March 2018 

Understanding how the Audit Board gains assurance from management 

To comply with International Auditing Standards, each year we need to refresh our understanding of how 

the Audit Board gains assurance over management processes and arrangements. 

I would be grateful, therefore, if you could write to me in your role as Chair of the Audit Board, with your 

responses to the following questions in respect of the Council's financial statements.  

1. How does the Audit Board oversee management's processes in relation to: 

a. carrying out an assessment of the risk the financial statements may be materially 

misstated due to fraud or error 

b. identifying and responding to the risk of breaches of internal control 

c. identifying and responding to risks of fraud in the organisation (including any specific 

risks of fraud which management have identified or that have been brought to its 

attention, or classes of transactions, account balances, or disclosure for which a risk 

of fraud is likely to exist) 

d. communicating to employees its views on appropriate business practice and ethical 

behaviour (for example by updating, communicating and monitoring against the codes 

of conduct)? 

2. Do you have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged frauds? If so, please provide 

details. 

3. How does the Audit Board gain assurance that all relevant laws and regulations have been 

complied with?  

4. Are you aware of any actual or potential litigation or claims that would affect the financial 

statements? 

 

The following appendices contain more detailed queries for you to consider. Please could you provide a 

response by 30 April 2018 and please contact me if you wish to discuss anything in relation to this 

request. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Laurelin Griffiths 

Manager 

For Grant Thornton UK LLP 

 

T 0118 955 9166 

E laurelin.h.griffiths@uk.gt.com 

Our Ref "[Click here and enter reference]"  
Your Ref "[Click here and enter reference]"  

 

Councillor David Hammock 
Chairman of the Audit Board 
Dartford Borough Council 
Civic Centre 
Home Gardens 
Dartford 
Kent 
DA1 1DR 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Attn: Board of Directors  

Geraldine Rowe 
Department for Communities and Local Government 
Third Floor 
Fry Building 
2 Marsham Street 
London 
SW1P 4DF 

 

[Click here and enter the letter date] 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Report of factual findings to the Responsible Finance Officer of 

[Click here and enter Client Name] and Department of 

Communities and Local Government 

 

We have performed the procedures agreed with you and enumerated 
below with respect to the requirements of our agreement.  

Our engagement was undertaken in accordance with International 
Standards on Related Services 4400 ‘Engagements to Perform Agreed-
Upon Procedures Regarding Financial Information’ as published by the 
International Auditing and Assurance Standards board (IAASB) 
applicable to agreed-upon procedures engagements. 

This report is provided pursuant to, and must be read in conjunction 
with, our engagement letter dated 
[Click here and enter engagement letter date] and is subject to the 

terms and limitations set out therein. 

The procedures were performed solely for the purpose of assisting 
[**client name**](the ‘Authority’) fulfil their responsibilities to the 
Department of Communities and Local Government for preparing the 
annual Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return 2016PO6 entered 
onto LOGASNET for the year ended 31 March 2017. The Responsible 
Finance Officer is responsible for the preparation and submission of the 
annual Pooling of Housing Capital Receipts Return onto LOGASNET 
and for all corrections. 

 The procedures undertaken are summarised as follows: 

1. We will obtain from the Responsible Finance Officer the return and 

quarterly 'Valuation' worksheets. 

Sample size for all tests 2 to 7 below: Five items or 10% of the value 

of the items in the entry, whichever is the greater. 

2.  We will sample test that capital receipts have been reduced for the 

cost of buying back dwellings, as required by paragraph 3 of the 

Schedule to The Local Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) 

(England) Regulations 2003 SI 2003/3146 (as amended) in cells 

F102PO, F202PO, F302PO and F402PO of the return.  

3.  We will sample test by reference to prime documents that all Right to 

8 February 2018 

 



 
 

 

Appendix 1 

Fraud risk assessment 

Auditor Question Response 

Has the Council assessed the risk of material misstatement in 

the financial statements due to fraud? 

 

 

What are the results of this process? 

 

 

What processes does the Council have in place to identify and 

respond to risks of fraud? 

 

 

Have any specific fraud risks, or areas with a high risk of fraud, 

been identified and what has been done to mitigate these 

risks? 

 

 

Are internal controls, including segregation of duties, in place 

and operating effectively? 

 

 

If not, where are the risk areas and what mitigating actions 

have been taken? 

 

 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for override of 

controls or inappropriate influence over the financial reporting 

process (for example because of undue pressure to achieve 

financial targets)?  

 

 

Are there any areas where there is a potential for misreporting? 

 

 

How does the Governing Body exercise oversight over 

management's processes for identifying and responding to 

risks of fraud? 

 

 

What arrangements are in place to report fraud issues and 

risks to the Governing Body? 

 

 

How does the Council communicate and encourage ethical 

behaviour of its staff and contractors? 

 

 

How do you encourage staff to report their concerns about 

fraud?  

Have any significant issues been reported? 

 

 

Are you aware of any related party relationships or transactions 

that could give rise to risks of fraud? 

 

 

Are you aware of any instances of actual, suspected or 

alleged, fraud, either within the Council as a whole or within 

specific departments since 1 April 2016? 

 

 

 

 

  



 
 

Appendix 2 

Laws and Regulations 

Auditor Question Response 

What arrangements does the Council have in place to prevent 

and detect non-compliance with laws and regulations? 

 

 

How does management gain assurance that all relevant laws 

and regulations have been complied with? 

 

 

How is the Governing Body provided with assurance that all 

relevant laws and regulations have been complied with? 

 

 

Have there been any instances of non-compliance or 

suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations since 1 

April 2016? 

 

 

What arrangements does the Council have in place to identify, 

evaluate and account for litigation or claims? 

 

 

Is there any actual or potential litigation or claims that would 

affect the financial statements? 

 

 

Have there been any reports from other regulatory bodies, 

such as HM Revenues and Customs, which indicate non-

compliance? 

 

 

Are there any instances of whistleblower tips or complaints? 

 

 

What is the Governing Body’s assessment of the entity’s ability 

to continue as a going concern? 

 

 

 





AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

1. Summary

1.1 This report sets out the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 2018/19.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That Members review and approve the proposed Internal Audit Plan for 
2018/19.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 This report incorporates the Annual Internal Audit Programme for 2018/19, which 
is attached as an Appendix to this report. The objective of the plan is to ensure that 
Internal Audit resources are deployed in order to add value to the Council’s 
objectives, whilst delivering reasonable assurance to the Council, regarding the 
effectiveness of internal control, governance and risk management processes in 
fulfilment of the Council’s statutory responsibilities.

3.2 The plan has been prepared in accordance with professional guidance, including 
the new Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 2016 and regulatory requirements, 
in particular, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015.

3.3 The Audit Board is required by its terms of reference, to approve the Annual 
Internal Audit Plan prior to its implementation. 

3.4 The programmed work of Internal Audit is informed by an assessment of the audit 
environment, consisting of all the key activities within the Council.  This took 
account of changes within the Council over the last 12 months, incorporating audit 
priorities on a risk assessed basis, in consultation with senior management.  This 
methodology has been used to help ensure that audit resources are targeted to 
the areas where the work of Internal Audit would be most effective in improving 
internal controls, the efficiency of service delivery, and to facilitate the effective 
management of identified risks.

3.5 The proposed Audit Plan for 2018/19 has 17 reviews, totaling 180 direct audit days. 
The proposed reviews cut across the whole Council and include key financial 
systems and payroll.

3.6 In addition to the planned reviews, 8 audit days have been set aside for completing 
Selective Invoice Checks; 19 days for system advice and information, 16 days for 
fraud irregularity and special projects, 128 days for service development, audit 
planning, risk management, Audit Board reporting and general administration. 
Thirty days are also set aside for audit management.



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

3.7 Additional days this year have been allocated to the follow up of Internal Audit 
recommendations, which will be carried out using the ‘TeamMate’ audit software. 
This will help the team bring consistency to the recommendation follow up process.

3.8 In addition to the programmed reviews set out in Annex 1 to the Appendix, a 
resource plan for Dartford is attached as Annex 2, showing the resource available 
for the year and how it has been allocated. 

3.9 All work undertaken during the year and any proposals for amendment of the plan 
will be reported to the Audit Board.

Revisions to Plan

3.10 The plan is risk based and takes account of the assessed risks at the time of 
planning. However, in view of the changing and dynamic nature of the current 
economic, political and regulatory environment, risk profiles may change at fairly 
short notice. Internal Audit will remain responsive to the needs of the Council 
during 2018/19.  As a result, revisions to the plan may be required should the risk 
profiles, or regulatory requirements affecting the Council change. Where changes 
within the environment necessitate revisions to the Audit Plan, any proposed 
changes would be agreed with the Managing Director prior to seeking the approval 
of the Audit Board.

Co-operation with External Audit
3.11 During the course of the year, Internal Audit will work closely with the existing 

External Auditors, Grant Thornton, within the terms of an agreed communications 
protocol, to facilitate an effective and efficient delivery of the assurance 
requirements for the Council and to minimise duplication.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

4.1 The Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 will contribute towards the achievement of the 
Council’s aims and objectives under the “Council Performing Strongly” theme.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk assessments

Financial Implications None
Legal Implications None
Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment The Internal Audit Plan is designed to 

address the Council’s obligations under the 
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, and 
takes account of the assurance 
requirements of the Council; including the 
need to manage identified risks effectively. 
The plan seeks to optimise available 
resources and will enable the team to deliver 
satisfactory assurance to the Council for the 
period 2018/19 within a value added 



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

framework. The delivery of the plan is also 
intended to contribute towards the overall 
management of the Council’s business 
risks.

6. Appendices

Appendix Draft Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
Annex 1 Details of Programmed Reviews 2018/19
Annex 2 Resource Plan 2018/19

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Accounts and 
Audit 
Regulations

Public Sector 
Internal Audit 
Standards 

2015

2016

Acting Audit, Risk & 
Anti-Fraud Manager
01322 343004

Internal 
Audit
Strategic 
Director 
(Internal 
Services)

N/A





Audit Board 25 April 2018

 Appendix 

Internal Audit Plan

2018/19

D R A F T



DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

Background

1. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requires the Council to have an effective 
Internal Audit Function which would provide an opinion on the adequacy and 
effectiveness of financial control, as well as to provide reasonable assurance on 
the Council’s overall governance and internal control processes.  This includes the 
arrangements for the Annual Governance Statement, the review of the 
effectiveness of internal audit and the management of business risks.

2. This requires an annual internal audit plan which:

 Draws on effective co-operation with External Auditors and other external 
review agencies, from which the public may gain assurance regarding the 
effectiveness of the Council’s system of internal control. 

 Provides Councillors, the Managing Director, the Section 151 Officer, and 
other senior managers with an overall opinion on the status of the Council’s 
governance arrangements, including internal control and risk management.

 Supports the Strategic Director (Internal Services) in fulfilling her obligations 
under Section 151 of the 1972 Local Government Act and the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015, to ensure the Council operates safe and efficient 
financial and management information systems.

 Enables the Council to place assurance on the work of Internal Audit in 
fulfilling its obligations under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015, 
Regulation 4, to establish proper practices for the publication of an Annual 
Governance Statement; and Regulation 6 to review the effectiveness of the 
internal audit function.

 Conducts audit reviews of the Council’s risk management, internal control, 
and governance arrangements in a way that takes full account of the 
Council’s objectives and risks.

 Aims to improve the Council’s risk management, internal control, and 
governance arrangements by providing line management with practical 
recommendations arising from audit work; including consultancy and advice 
and information as necessary or on request.

 Delivers an audit service that meets the Public Sector Internal Standards 
2016 and relevant guidance issued by CIPFA.

Internal Audit’s objectives

3. The internal audit function is provided through a shared services arrangement with 
Sevenoaks District Council, which came into force in April 2010. Its remit is set out 
in the Internal Audit Charter. The objective of the team is to provide an 
independent, objective assurance and consultancy activity designed to add value 
to the existing internal control and governance framework to support the 



DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

achievements of services and corporate objectives. This plan outlines the team’s 
work for Dartford Borough Council only, regarding the provision of Internal Audit 
Services, in fulfilment of the Council’s Section 151 responsibilities and its 
obligations under the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015. 

4. In recognition of the statutory requirement, it is the responsibility of Internal Audit 
to review, appraise and report upon:

 The soundness, adequacy, and application of financial and other 
management controls.

 The extent of compliance with, relevant and financial effect of, established 
policies, plans and procedures.

 The extent to which the organisation’s assets and interests are accounted 
for and safeguarded from losses of all kinds arising from:

o Fraud, bribery, corruption and other offences

o waste, extravagance, and inefficient administration, poor value for money 
and other causes.

 The suitability and reliability of financial and other management data 
developed within the organisation.

 The effectiveness of the Council’s risk management framework 

Proposed Audit Techniques

5. To fulfil our responsibility, we propose to adopt the following techniques. The 
relevant technique adopted will depend on the nature and scope of each audit 
review:

Risk-based audit

Risk-based auditing takes account of the Council’s strategic and operational 
objectives, and evaluates through audit testing the management of risks to 
achievement of these objectives, thereby providing an opinion on the quality of internal 
control within a system. Recommendations for improvements in control are proposed 
proportionate to the impact and likelihood of existing risks.

Systems-based audit

Where appropriate, Audit may undertake wider documentation, evaluation and testing 
of financial operational and management information systems providing an opinion as 
to the adequacy of control and offering suggestions and advice to enable strengthening 
of systems weaknesses and assist in improving the effectiveness of controls.

Systems based auditing provides high quality assurance on management controls for 
those systems evaluated externally.



DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

Our systems-based audit work is based on the CIPFA System Control Matrices.  The 
matrices draw on the approach, standards, and guidance of a variety of audit and 
regulatory bodies, including the Audit Commission.  

Financial/Probity Reviews

Examination of financial records for compliance with agreed policy, regulations, and 
procedures.

Investigation of Irregularities

We will undertake enquiries into cases of discovered or reported irregularity including, 
where required, liaison with other investigatory bodies, such as the National Fraud 
Initiative (NFI).  These usually lead to the enhancement of risk management activities 
within the Council, and strengthening of internal controls.

Advice and Information

We offer advice, information and assistance to all levels of management on internal 
control, governance and risk management.

IT audit

IT audit is a specialist area, to this effect we will seek to buy in technically qualified and 
experienced agency staff, or liaise with other Kent Councils for assistance in providing 
this service for any relevant aspects, which requires technical expertise.

VFM audit

Value for money considerations will be factored into our approach where relevant and 
appropriate. This would enable us to determine whether managers are making use of 
the opportunities available to them for obtaining good value for money, especially 
within the current austerity environment.

Audit Approach

6. In order to make best use of staff resources and to maximise the team’s 
effectiveness, the need for individual audit reviews, is considered based on an 
audit needs analysis, which evaluates the audit universe using a scoring system.

7. The audit needs analysis then informs the annual operational plan, which sets out 
the areas to be covered in 2018/19, taking into account the highest scores on the 
audit needs analysis and resource constraints. Areas that have not scored highly 
enough for the operational plan for this year are considered in the strategic audit 
plan.

8. In order to ensure that the Audit Plan for 2018/19 addresses the Council’s key
risks and add value, we have identified and prioritised the areas for coverage by:-

 Reviewing the Council’s Risk Registers and Corporate Plan;
 Identifying any other sources of assurance for each of the Council’s key 

risks, which may reduce the added value of an Internal Audit review.



DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

 Analysing coverage of Internal Audit reviews over the last three years and 
the assurance opinions provided following each review, to identify any gaps 
or areas where follow up work would be of value.

 Identifying any areas of the Audit Universe, which have not been subject to 
Internal Audit review during the last three years.

 Meetings with Senior Management to discuss key risks and emerging risk 
areas for the year ahead and also any areas where Internal Audit support 
would be beneficial either in an assurance or consultancy role.

9. The Plan for 2018/19

The table on Annex 1 to this report sets out the audit plan for 2018/19 and a 
summary of the scope of each review. As part of the process, an annual review of 
key financial systems and payroll is carried out. These are systems with high 
inherent risks, usually areas of major income and expenditure where a failure to 
manage risks effectively might result in material financial loss, or significant 
damage to the Council’s reputation. The reviews are intended to ascertain the 
arrangements management have in place to manage strategic, operational or 
business risks and to give an assurance regarding their effectiveness.  

[See Annex 1, attached - for details of reviews proposed for 2018/19]. In 
addition to the programmed reviews, the resource plan also includes work in the 
following aspects:

Arrangements to prevent fraud and corruption

audit area review objectives

Contracts To check that contract payments are only made in 
accordance with contract terms and when properly 
authorised.  

Cashing up To check that officers are able to account for all income 
received by them on the day of the cashing up.

Housing Benefit, 
Council Tax Support, 
Council Tax Discounts 
and Housing Records

To check the robustness of the processes to prevent and 
detect fraud in accordance with National Fraud Initiative 
requirements.

Special investigations To carry out investigations into suspected internal frauds, 
losses etc. in accordance with the Fraud Response Plan.

Follow up of recommendations made in previous audit reports

Audit reports To follow up recommendations made in previous reports, to 
confirm that agreed action has been implemented effectively 
within the agreed time scales. Additional audit resource has 



DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

been allocated to this area for the 2018/19 year to help 
ensure this happens and to give additional support and 
advice to services where appropriate.

Available Resources

10. A resource plan for 2018/19 is set out on Annex 2 to this report. This plan consists 
of a Principal Auditor (Acting as Audit Manager), 2.8 Senior Auditors, and 0.5 (FTE) 
Admin assistant. 

Internal Audit Performance

11. During 2018/19, the team will continue to work in compliance with the Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards and professional guidance issued by CIPFA. 

12. The following proposed performance indicators relating to the delivery of the 
Annual Internal Audit Plan are based on a balanced scorecard approach which 
considers for perspectives, the customer, innovation & leaving, internal processes 
and financial. This approach is used across local authorities in Kent.

Performance Indicators – based on a Balanced Scorecard Approach

Customer Perspective

 Percentage of 
auditees Strongly 
Agree/Agree with 
the way the audit 
has been 
conducted.

Target 
90%

 Percentage of 
auditees Strongly 
Agree/Agree with 
audit findings.

Target 
90%

Innovation & Learning Perspective

 Training days used 
against budget

Target 
95%

 Recommendations 
made/recommendations 
implemented

Target 
90%



DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

Internal Perspective

 Percentage of 
draft reports sent 
to auditee within 
15 days of audit 
feedback 
meeting.

Target 
95%

 Percentage of 
feedback 
meetings held 
within 6 weeks of 
opening meeting

Target 
90%

Financial Perspective

 Cost of auditor 
team – taking 
actual audit 
salaries against 
budgeted. 

Budget vs 
actuals

 Percentage of team 
time spent on 
delivery of audit 
plan (days 
allocated to plan 
against audit team 
activity) 

Target 80%

Reporting Protocol

13. Internal Audit work undertaken during the year will be periodically reported to 
clients (Service Managers, Heads of Service, Strategic Directors and the 
Managing Director), the culmination of the year’s work being an Annual Report to 
the Audit Board.  The reports provide overall audit opinions as to the adequacy 
and effectiveness of the control environment within the area examined.  The 
Annual Report will contain an overall opinion on the adequacy of internal control, 
governance and risk management within the Council.   

Audit Opinion

14. The simplified Audit Opinions Framework which was introduced last year continues 
to work well and has been well received by Service Managers and their teams.

15. We aim to involve auditees at key stages of the audit process and to ensure   their 
agreement to audit findings and recommendations. The table below sets out how 
auditees will be involved in the audit process this year. There are no changes to 
the process from last year.

Audit stage Involvement

Agreement of brief at the 
start of the audit

Strategic Director/Head of Service

Feedback and discussion of 
main findings arising from 

the audit 

Service Manager/Head of Service

Agreed report Managing Director
Relevant Strategic Director



DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL
ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

Section 151 Officer
Head of Service
Service Manager

Audit satisfaction 
questionnaire completion

Head of Service/Service Manager as 
appropriate

Half yearly progress reports Strategic Management Team and 
Audit Board

Annual Report
Annual Plan

Strategic Management Team and 
Audit  Board

Audit Recommendations 

16. We will continue to report recommendations by highlighting the significance of 
each item in relation to risk and materiality. Thus as a guide, recommendations will 
be graded as follows:

High – Fundamental weaknesses in the system or process under review

Medium – System weaknesses which leave the system open to minor risks

Low – Desirable but non-threatening improvements



Annex 1

Page 1 of 4

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL – DRAFT OPERATIONAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 2018/19

1. BROUGHT FORWARD REVIEWS FROM 2017/18 ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN 

Title of Review Description/Purpose of the Audit Link to risk Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed
days

1 Housing Options To review the processes and arrangements in place for the 
allocation of housing within the borough and housing advice 
given to residents in accordance with Council Policy and the 
new Homelessness Reduction Act which comes into force in 
April 2018.

SR HS5
SR H7
OR1.4

Q3-Q4 15

2. Licensing To review the new IT processes and organisational 
arrangements that were introduced at the beginning of 2018 
to ensure fitness for purpose and achievement of service 
objectives.

OR 1.1 Q3 10

2. REVIEWS WITHIN STRATEGIC DIRECTORATE – INTERNAL SERVICES 

Title of Review Description/Purpose of the Audit Link to risk Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed
days

3. Members Expenses To review the processes for paying members expenses to 
ensure authorisation, accuracy and completeness of claims 
made for reimbursement.

OR 8.3 Q2-Q3 5

4. Revenues & Benefits 
Service.
Risk Based Verification
(Shared Service Review)

A light touch review focusing on cases not risk scored as set 
out on the management dashboard and review of the reasons 
given for not being scored. 

Q2 5



Annex 1

Page 2 of 4

5. Debt Recovery within the 
Revenues and Benefits 
Service (Shared Service 
Review)

To review the current processes in place to ensure fitness for 
purpose and efficiency in the debt recovery process. The 
review will also assess adequate staffing resource for this 
activity.

Q3-Q4 10

6. Procurement To review the processes in place for the procurement activity 
of the Council to ensure adequacy and fitness for purpose.

CP16 OR6.1 Q1 10

7. Health & Safety To review the procedures in place to ensure that they conform 
to government legislation and Council policy. This review will 
also consider the processes in place to ensure the appropriate 
training for staff.

SC3 CP14 Q3 15

8. Business Continuity This is a follow up review of the audit that took place in October 
2016 to highlight progress made with the management action 
plan.

CP10 Q2-Q3 5

9. Payroll This review will focus on the new arrangements in place for 
the provision of the itrent payroll service provided by 
Maidstone BC. This review will cover the starters and leavers 
processes with a cursory review of absence management.
 

OR 8.3
OR8.2

Q3 15

10. Financial Systems This is a yearly review of the testing of controls in the finance 
service. Detail of this review will be determined at the audit 
scoping stage.

OR1.5 Q3 10



Annex 1

Page 3 of 4

3. REVIEWS WITHIN STRATEGIC DIRECTORATE – EXTERNAL SERVICES 

Title of Review Description/Purpose of the Audit Link to risk Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed
days

11 Parking Enforcement To review the processes in place for Parking Enforcement to 
ensure compliance with legislation and council policy. This 
review will also include a cursory review of parking income.

OR1.1 OR1.3 Q2-Q3 15

12. Disabled Facilities Grants The purpose of this audit is to provide an assurance 
regarding the effectiveness of the arrangements in place for 
the administration of Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG)

OR1.3 Q2 10

13. Environmental Enforcement 
(Fly tipping)

To review the processes in place to report and investigate 
instances of Fly-tipping in the Borough for their adequacy and 
fitness for purpose. This will include a cursory review of PI’s 
in this area.

Q1-Q2 10

14. Building Control To review the arrangements in place for the Building Control 
Service.

O.R 1.3 Q4 10

15. Environmental Health – 
Food Safety
(Shared Service Review)

To review how the use of new technology is being used to 
make the processes for food safety inspection more efficient 
in response to increased numbers of food businesses in the 
borough and to form an opinion of the adequacy of existing 
staff resources in this area.

SC3 Q2-Q3 10



Annex 1

Page 4 of 4

4. COUNCILWIDE REVIEWS – GENERIC REVIEWS WHICH IMPACT ON OVERALL GOVERNANCE, 
CONTROL AND EFFECTIVNESS

Title of Review Description/Purpose of the Audit Link to risk Proposed 
Quarter

Proposed
days

16. GDPR To review GDPR compliance within selected council 
services. This could include an external IT security review.

Operational 
Risk 

Assessments

Q4 15

17. Fleet Vehicle Management To review the processes in place for the management of fleet 
vehicles.

Q3 10



Annex 2

RESOURCE PLAN FOR INTERNAL AUDIT 2018/19

Page 1 of 1

DAYS 
PLANNED

Total Available Days for Year 2018/19 554

LESS:
Bank holidays and authorised leave 89
Staff development & training 40
Sick leave 13

Total 142

AUDIT DAYS AVAILABLE 412

Audits, Fraud, irregularity and special 
projects. 256
Selective invoice checks 8
General administration/Board 
reporting/service development/Audit 
Planning/risk management/joint 
working

148

Total Days        412





AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – 
PROGRESS REPORT 

1. Summary

1.1 This report is to update Members on progress of the implementation of 
recommendations agreed with Management during the year 2017/18, and to 
report on the outstanding recommendations due for implementation by 31 
January 2018.

1.2 Where recommendations have not been implemented, it enables Members to 
seek explanations or agree revised dates.  If Management propose not to action 
recommendations and accept the risk, Members can review this decision to 
determine if it meets the objectives of the Board and whether it represents an 
acceptable level of risk for the Council.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Members review the information in Appendix A to the report and note the 
reasons for delayed implementation of the actions and endorse the revised 
dates for implementation provided by Management.

2.2      That Members note and endorse the decision taken by Management
where no further action is intended, detailed in Appendix B.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. The Audit Recommendation Progress report is presented to each 
meeting of the Board to inform Members of the progress made by 
Management to implement the recommendations agreed with Internal 
Audit.  The report also informs the Board where implementation dates 
have been revised, or where agreed recommendations have not been 
implemented.                           

3.2. Appendix A provides details of agreed recommendations where 
Management have advised Internal Audit that implementation has 
initially been delayed from the originally planned date (for ease of 
reference, the numbering under the recommendation column, refers to 
the numbers on the original audit report). Enquiries with Management 
indicates that satisfactory progress is being made, or proposed, to 
implement the agreed recommendations. Management also advised that 
there are no material impacts to the Council, as a result of the change in 
implementation date. However, Internal Audit will continue to monitor 
progress where appropriate and report back to the Board as necessary.

3.3. Recommendations where management have stated that implementation 
is no longer intended are shown in Appendix B.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

4.1 Not applicable.



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None

Staffing Implications Implications may arise from implementation of 
some audit recommendations, but only in 
agreement with Management responsible for the 
areas audited.

Administrative 
Implications

None

Risk Assessment The purpose of audit recommendations is to 
address and manage identified risks. 
Consequently risk profiles may increase in areas 
where the implementation of recommendations 
is delayed, if there are no compensating 
mitigating controls in place.

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix A - ‘Overdue’ recommendations where implementation 
delayed.

Appendix B - ‘Overdue’ recommendations where implementation is no 
longer intended.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

None N/A Acting Audit Manager
01322 343004

Internal 
Audit/ 
Strategic 
(Internal 
Services)

None



Appendix A

Page 1 of 4

‘OVERDUE’ RECOMMENDATIONS WHERE IMPLEMENTATION HAS BEEN DELAYED

Audit: Safeguarding 2015/16
Recommendation Priority/ 

ranking
Original response Latest position + (source) Revised Implementation 

Date
1.That a full review of all posts 
in the Council that require a 
DBS (Disclosure and Barring 
Service) check is undertaken 
and to ensure that all 
members of staff in these 
posts have an up-to-date DBS 
check.

Medium Agreed Action:  Yes

Responsible Officer:  
HR Business Advisor

Recommendation 
Implementation 
Date: September 
2016

80% of these are complete.  The 
remaining 20% are still in progress 
and HR are continuing to chase 
managers to ensure their staff 
complete the online application / 
submit the required documentation.
 
Expected completion date:  30th April 
2018

HR Business Advisor – 21/3/18

Internal Audit Comment:
In view of the latest comment, 
Internal Audit will continue to 
liaise with the HR Business 
Advisor regarding progress of 
this matter and will advise the 
Audit Board further, at the 
June 2018 meeting of the 
Board.

Audit: Payroll 2015/16
Recommendation Priority/ 

ranking
Original response Latest position + (source) Revised Implementation 

Date
3. Compilation of payroll 
procedures together with 
checklists should be 
undertaken. Showing clear 
guidance and include step by 
step instruction in all aspects 
of running the payroll process.

Medium Agreed Action:  
Agreed

Responsible 
Officer:  Insurance 
and Payroll Assistant

Recommendation 
Implementation 
Date: 31/7/16

The updating of the work instructions 
has been put on hold for the time 
being, due to the introduction of the 
new Payroll system (iTrent), which is 
scheduled to go live at the beginning 
of April 2018. Once the system is 
established the work instructions will 
be reviewed and amended 
accordingly.

Insurance and Payroll Assistant – 
21/3/18

Internal Audit Comment:
In view of the latest comment, 
Internal Audit will further 
progress this matter in the 
next Payroll audit for 2018/19.



APPENDIX A

Page 2 of 4

Audit: Markets’ Income 2016/17
Recommendation Priority/ 

ranking
Original response Latest position + (source) Revised Implementation 

Date
1. Management should 
monitor and encourage 
progress towards a higher 
percentage of traders paying 
by standing order and 
potentially by direct debit. 

Medium Agreed Action: 
Agreed.

Responsible Officer: 
Town Centre and 
Business Support 
Manager

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 
June 2017

The Town Centre and Business 
Support Officer has now left the 
Council and we have moved 
Directorates as part of a recent 
EARS/Policy restructure.  We are 
hoping to recruit for new staff shortly 
and I am progressing matters with 
HR.  We cannot realistically 
implement this recommendation 
without a full compliment of staff.

Town Centre and Business Support 
Manager – 14/3/18

Internal Audit Comment:
In view of the latest comment, 
Internal Audit will continue to 
liaise with the Town Centre 
and Business Support 
Manager regarding progress 
of this matter and will advise 
the Audit Board further, at the 
June 2018 meeting of the 
Board.

Audit: Homelessness 2017/18
Recommendation Priority/ 

ranking
Original response Latest position + (source)

1.Consideration should be 
given to preparing a policy 
for dealing with 
Homelessness Prevention 
Payments including;

 The introduction of a 
cap  on the upper 
level of a payment;

Medium Agreed Action:  Agreed.

Responsible Officer: Housing 
Options and Private Sector 
Manager 

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 30/9/17

We are currently putting a new service in place because 
of new homeless legislation and have a deadline of 29th 
March, which has to take priority at the moment.   I am 
also working on the specification for a new IT system, 
which needs to be completed on target.
  
I will hopefully have some time available once this 
additional work has been done, to focus on this 
recommendation.



APPENDIX A

Page 3 of 4

 Questions regarding 
the clients ability to 
pay and how much 
the Council would 
seek to recover

 The write off process 
(where applicable) 
and the document 
retention policy

Housing Options & Private Sector Manager – 21/3/18

Internal Audit Comment:
In view of the latest comment, Internal Audit will 
continue to liaise with the Housing Options & Private 
Sector Manager regarding progress of this matter and 
will advise the Audit Board further, at the September 
2018 meeting of the Board.





Appendix B

Page 4 of 4

‘OVERDUE’ RECOMMENDATIONS WHERE MANAGEMENT ADVISE IMPLEMENTATION IS NO LONGER INTENDED

Audit: Valuation & Property Services 2015/16
Recommendation Priority/ 

ranking
Original response Latest position + (source)

1.Management should 
investigate why the 
valuation section of the 
Estates module of Uniform 
appears not to have been 
appropriately updated and 
rectify the situation. This 
needs to be done to 
provide a full and up to 
date record of property 
valuation for management 
and financial reasons.  

Medium Agreed Action:  The Property 
Information Manager will liaise with 
Financial Services to obtain a copy 
of their property valuation records, 
which they hold for accounting 
purposes, to enable the valuation 
section of the Estates module in 
Uniform to be updated.

Responsible Officer:  Property 
Information Manager

Recommendation 
Implementation Date: 31/12/15

Management have decided that there is limited 
benefit in utilising the Estates module. However, the 
Leases and Assignments part of UNIFORM will be 
maintained, which should ensure that the Council’s 
property records are up to date.

Head of Legal Services – 14//3/18





AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED SINCE LAST MEETING OF THE 
BOARD

1. Summary

1.1 This report is to inform Audit Board Members of the outcomes of the audits 
completed since the previous report to the Board on 24 January 2018 and to 
provide Members with the opportunity to request clarification or further 
information, if considered necessary.  

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Members review the summary details of audits completed.

2.2 That Members consider whether they require clarification or further information 
at the next meeting of the Board.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. In addition to the approval of the Annual Internal Audit Plan and 
consideration of progress of the Audit Plan, the terms of reference of the 
Audit Board also requires the Board to consider the outcome of Internal 
Audit Report findings.

3.2. To this effect, the Board receives reports on the outcomes of completed  
audit reviews at each meeting and is able to seek further details and/or 
explanations from managers, where required.

3.3. Appendix A of this report sets out details of the six audit reports, which 
have been finalised since the last meeting of the Board and the opinion 
for each review. 

3.4. Brief summaries are customarily provided in this report for each final audit 
report with an audit opinion of Limited Assurance or below. On this 
occasion there are no final audit reports with an opinion of Limited 
Assurance. Three final audit reports issued have an opinion of Full 
Assurance, two have an opinion of Substantial Assurance and the other 
report was for information and guidance only and therefor, no audit opinion 
given.

3.5. In addition to the above, six recommendations were agreed with 
management regarding the six reports, of which, four were medium risks 
and two were low risk.

3.6. The definition of the standard Internal Audit opinions are detailed in 
Appendix C, where a single opinion will be given, which will either be: 
Full Assurance; Substantial Assurance; Limited Assurance or No 
Assurance. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan
4.1 Not applicable.



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None

Staffing Implications None

Administrative 
Implications

None

Risk Assessment The Board is required to receive and consider 
reports from the Audit Manager on progress of 
the Internal Audit Plan. This report addresses the 
risk of non-compliance with the Board’s terms of 
reference; and demonstrates that the Council’s 
Internal Audit Function is fulfilling its role as a 
provider of independent assurance to the Board 
and the Council, regarding the Council’s 
arrangements to manage identifiable risks in 
delivering Council objectives.

6. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

7. Appendices

Appendix A - Final audit reports issued since the last meeting of the       
Board.

 DBC13-17/18 Payroll 2017/18
 DBC25-17/18 Customer Services 2017/18
 DBC18/SDC17-17/18 Env. Health CSQ Process 2017/18
 DBC24-17/18 Electoral Registration 2017/18
 DBC23-17/18 Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults 2017/18
 DBC16-17/18 Dartford Museum Follow Up Review 2017/18

Appendix B – Definition of Audit Opinions

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Internal Audit 
Plan 2017/18

Acting Audit Manager
(01322) 343004

Internal Audit/ Strategic 
(Internal Services)

N/A



APPENDIX A

FINAL AUDIT REPORTS ISSUED SINCE THE LAST MEETING OF THE BOARD
Recommendation 

Risks

Audit title Final 
Report 
Issued

Opinion
Framework/
Compliance

Summary Comments where the 
opinion is Limited 

Assurance or below

High Med Low

1

Payroll 2017/18 5/1/18 Audit Opinion: 
Full Assurance

The purpose of this audit is to provide 
assurance regarding the accuracy, 
authenticity, and completeness of the 
payroll system, in particular, to the 
starter and leaver processes and to 
provide assurance regarding 
compliance with relevant income tax 
regulations.

0 0 0

2

Customer 
Services 2017/18 5/1/18 Audit Opinion: 

Full Assurance

The purpose of this audit is to review 
the level of service provided by the 
Customer Services Team and 
requirements of DBC Officers 
regarding the interface with the public 
to respond to customer enquiries and 
requests for service via email/internet, 
post telephone and face-to-face 
contact points. This audit includes a 
cursory review of the Corporate 
Customer Service Standards and 
Customer Services Charter. 

0 0 0

3 Environmental 
Health Customer 

18/1/18 This review was 
for information 

The purpose of this audit is to provide 
reasonable assurance to Senior 
Management that there are sound 

0 0 0



APPENDIX A

Satisfaction 
Questionnaire 
Process 2017/18

and guidance 
purposes only, 
and therefore no 
audit opinion is 
given.

arrangements in place, for the 
collection and analysis of the 
Environment Health customer 
satisfaction data, and that it is 
pragmatic and used to inform 
continuous service improvement. 

4

Electoral 
Registration 
2017/18

30/1/18 Audit Opinion: 
Full Assurance

The purpose of this audit is to provide 
assurance regarding the current 
registration process being followed 
following the significant changes in the 
voter registration system brought in by 
the Cabinet Office in 2014 and 2015. 
This is a light touch review focusing on 
the processes of the Electoral 
Services team, good practice, value 
for money and data sharing.

0 0 2

5

Safeguarding 
Vulnerable Adults 
2017/18

2/2/18
Audit Opinion: 
Substantial 
Assurance

The purpose of this audit is to provide 
an assurance regarding the Council’s 
arrangements to fulfil its statutory 
obligations with regard to Adult 
Safeguarding taking into account 
Aspects of the Care Act 2014, Anti-
Slavery, Human Trafficking (Modern 
Slavery Act 2015) and the Council’s 
duty to report potential victims and 
arrangements in place for this. An 
adult is anyone aged 18 or over.

0 2 0

6 Dartford Museum 
Follow Up 
Review 2017/18

12/3/18
Audit Opinion: 
Substantial 
Assurance

The purpose of this audit is to provide 
assurance on the 
progress/effectiveness relating to the 
three high priority recommendations, 

0 2 0



APPENDIX A

included in the management action 
plan from the review of The Dartford 
Museum that took place in 2013/14. 
This audit has a particular focus on the 
progress made in the area of 
recording/cataloguing of Museum 
artefacts.





APPENDIX B

DEFINITIONS OF AUDIT OPINIONS 

OPINION DEFINITIONS
Full Assurance
(Implies no High or 
Medium Risk 
Recommendations)

A sound framework of control is in place that meets 
the Council’s or service objectives. All expected 
controls tested are in place and are operating 
effectively.

No specific follow-up review will be undertaken; follow-
up will be undertaken as part of the next planned 
review of the system.

Substantial 
Assurance 
(Implies no High Risk 
Recommendations) 

There is generally a sound framework of control in 
place designed to meet the Council’s or service 
objectives. However, there are isolated weaknesses in 
design of controls, or inconsistent application of 
controls, which puts the achievement of a limited 
number of objectives at risk.

Follow up of medium priority recommendations only 
will be undertaken within 3 to 6 months; follow up of 
low priority recommendation will be undertaken as part 
of the next planned review of the system.

Limited Assurance Weaknesses identified within the framework and there 
exist evidence of non-compliance with Council 
procedures or good practice, which puts the 
achievement of the Council’s or service objectives in 
many of the areas reviewed at risk.

Follow-up of high and medium priority 
recommendations only will take place within 3 to 6 
months; follow-up of low priority recommendations will 
be undertaken as part of the next planned review of 
the system.

No Assurance Absent or non-existent evidence of framework; 
fundamental weaknesses identified within design; 
operation of key controls has resulted in failure, or 
could result in failure to achieve the Council’s or 
service objectives in the areas reviewed.

Follow-up of high and medium priority 
recommendations only will take place within 3 to 6 
months; follow-up of low priority recommendations will 
be undertaken as part of the next planned review of 
the system.





AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

PROGRESS REPORT ON INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2017/18

1. Summary

1.1. This report provides Members of the Board with information regarding the 
progress of the Internal Audit Team in delivering the Annual Internal Audit Plan 
2017/18.

2. RECOMMENDATION

2.1 That Members note the contents of the report and review progress against the 
2017/18 Annual Audit Plan.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 This report provides details of the progress of the Internal Audit Team in 
delivering the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2017/18. The terms of 
reference of the Audit Board requires the Board to consider the 
achievements of the Internal Audit Team in delivering the assurance 
requirements for 2017/18.

3.2 The Internal Audit Function is a key process of the Council’s overall 
governance arrangements. Its key purpose is to conduct independent 
reviews of the Council’s system of internal controls, risk management 
processes and governance arrangements, in order to provide an 
assurance to both Senior Management and Members, regarding the 
effectiveness of such systems. The Internal Audit Manager is required 
to report periodically to the Audit Board, on the progress made in 
delivering the Annual Internal Audit Plan. 

3.3 A summary of progress made in delivering the assurance requirements 
for 2017/18 is attached as Appendix A to this report, which sets out 
details of the reviews agreed by the Audit Board in April 2017. Members 
may note that twenty four reviews have commenced, with twenty two 
already at final report stage (which includes an additional piece of 
consultancy work outside the original plan), and the remaining two are 
at draft report stage. This is equivalent to 100% of the planned reviews 
either, completed or at draft stage. 

4. Internal Audit Resources 

4.1      Appendix B shows the use of Internal Audit resources for the period up   
to 31 January 2018; which takes account of additional training.

4.2 There has been no change in the resourcing of the Internal Audit Team 
since the last Board meeting. The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager 
post remains vacant and as a result, the Principal Auditor has stepped 
up into the role of Acting Audit Manager as well as fulfilling her duties as 
Principal Auditor. There remains an auditor vacancy within the team due 



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

to a resignation last year, however this, is being filled by a member of 
staff on a temporary contract. 

5. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

5.1 Not applicable

6. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None 

Staffing Implications The Principal Auditor has stepped up into the 
role of Acting, Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud 
Manager as well has fulfilling her duties as 
Principal Auditor.
A vacant auditor post has put pressure on the 
team. The use of agency staff in the short term 
will partly alleviate this pressure.

Administrative 
Implications

None

Risk Assessment The Council is required to comply with the 
requirements of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015, regarding its arrangements for 
Internal Audit, in order to ensure fitness for 
purpose and taking into account the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards and professional 
guidance. The staff issues identified above have 
meant that some of the audits within the Audit 
Plan have had to be slipped but nevertheless, the 
use of agency staff in the short term will ensure 
that the team is able to deliver on the Council’s 
assurance requirements and mandatory 
guidance.

7. Details of Exempt Information Category

7.1 Not applicable

8. Appendices

Appendix A - Progress against 2017/18 Audit Plan
Appendix B - Use of Internal Audit Resources

BACKGROUND PAPERS



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section 
and

Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

Annual Audit Plan 2017/18

New Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards 2016.

Account and Audit 
Regulations 2015.

12.4.17 Acting Audit 
Manager
01322 343004

Internal 
Audit/
Strategic 
(Internal 
Services)

N/A





Appendix A
PROGRESS AGAINST 2017/18 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN                                              As at 29/3/18   

System audited Final 
report 
issued

Draft 
report 
issued

Feedback 
process in 
progress

Fieldwork 
in progress

Brief 
issued

Cancelled     
or Defer to 

2018/19
1 Non-Domestic Rates (Business 

Rates)
x

2 Licensing x

3 Electoral Services x
4 Data Protection & Freedom of 

Information
x

5 Parking Income x
6 External legal Fees x
7 Agency Staff x
8 Insurances x
9 Background Checks for New Starters x
10 Key Financial Systems x
11 Housing Benefits & Council Tax 

Reduction
x

12 Discretionary Housing Payments x
13 Payroll x
14 IT Security x
15 Event Income x
16 Dartford Museum x
17 CCTV Operations x
18 Environmental Health x
19 Strategic Transport Infrastructure 

Programme
x

20 Homelessness Prevention Grants x
21 Housing Rent Account x
22 Housing Options x
23 Vulnerable Adult Safeguarding x
24 Retention of Knowledge (Part 1) x
25 Customer Services x
26 Physical Data Security (additional 

review)
x

Total 22 2 0 0 0 2

COMPARATIVE POSITION April 2017 12 1 2 4 0 9 (5 Res)



APPENDIX B

USE OF INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES TO 31 JANUARY 2018

Actual Expected

AUDIT DAYS AVAILABLE 424 411
Audits, Fraud, irregularity and special 
projects

214 234

Selective invoice checks 7 3.5
General administration/Board 
reporting/service development/risk 
management/joint working/systems 
advice/Audit management

203 173.5

Total 424 411



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

SELECTIVE INVOICE CHECKS

1. Summary

1.1 During the January 2018 meeting of the Board, Members selected five creditor 
payments for checking. This report summarises the findings of this exercise 
and provides the opportunity for Members to select further payments for audit 
checking. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That Members note the content of this report and request any further 
explanations required.

2.2 That Members select further payments for checking by Internal Audit.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1. It is a regular feature of the Audit Board’s work for Members to select a 
sample of payments made by the Council for review by Internal Audit, 
and to receive a report on the findings of these checks at the next 
meeting of the Board.  This is intended to provide Members with 
reasonable assurance that goods and services commissioned or 
procured, for which payments have been made, are in compliance with 
Council procedures. In particular, that they have been properly 
authorised, requisitioned, ordered and received, prior to making the 
appropriate payments.

3.2. During the meeting of the Board on 24 January 2018, Members selected 
the following five payments for checking:

 G A Evans Aerial Systems Ltd £280.80 (Gross)
 Gala Lights Ltd £42000.00 (Gross)
 GovDelivery Inc. (Granicus) £382.85 (Gross)
 Grant Thornton UK LLP £23382.00 (Gross)
 GRAYL003 £18.50 (Gross)

4. Summary of Findings

4.1 The results of the Internal Audit review, confirmed that all the spend 
decisions made were appropriate and in compliance with Council 
procedures. Detailed summaries of the outcome of each payment are 
set out below.

5. Detailed Findings

5.1 G A Evans Aerial Systems Ltd (£280.80) – This payment was for the call 
out and necessary works, following a responsive repair request from a 
Housing property in Temple Hill, to investigate the loss of the T.V. signal 
to a block of flats.  A purchase order was not required in this instance as 



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

a job ticket was raised on the Academy repairs system instead. Internal 
Audit identified that although the annual spend with this company was 
below threshold requirement for a formal contract, as detailed in Contract 
Standing Order Number 7, the cumulative amount over three years took 
the value over the £25,000 threshold.  Internal Audit in liaison with 
Financial Services have advised that a schedule of rates contract should 
be sought, since the unpredictable nature of responsive repair work does 
not lend itself to a typical style of contract. The Internal Audit review 
confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly and in 
accordance with payment procedures.

5.2 Gala Lights Ltd (£42000.00) – This payment was for the hire, installation, 
taking down and storage of the Christmas lights for the town centre, for 
Christmas 2017.  A two-year contract had previously been in place to 
cover Christmas 2014 and 2015 but had been extended to cover 
Christmas 2016.  Gala Lights felt there was a further year’s usage left in 
the lights and offered the Council a £5,685.00 discount for Christmas 
2017.  The Managing Director consequently signed a waiver in 
November 2017. Internal Audit was informed that the contract would be 
going out for competitive tendering for Christmas 2018. The Internal 
Audit review confirmed that the payment was justified, made promptly 
and in accordance with payment procedures.

5.3 GovDelivery Inc. (Granicus) (£382.85) – This payment was for the 
monthly hosting and maintenance fee (for the period 4th September to 
3rd October 2017), for the Gov Delivery Communications Cloud (for 
outreach, including a digital and email subscription management 
system). This application allows members of the public to subscribe for 
alerts to any significant updates to the Council’s website, including 
events like the outdoor cinema, for example. There are currently around 
30,000 subscribers. Internal Audit identified that there was no purchase 
order in place for the hosting and maintenance fees for 2018 and 
recommended that a purchase order for the annual subscription be 
raised and called off each month upon receipt of the invoices. The 
Internal Audit review confirmed that the payment was justified, made 
promptly and was in accordance with payment procedures.

5.4 Grant Thornton UK LLP (£23382.00) – This payment was for the 
certification of grant claims and returns, carried out by the External 
Auditors (Grant Thornton), during the period September to December 
2017.  The External Auditors are required to certify the Housing Benefit 
claims completed by the Council, as part of the process to confirm the 
Council’s entitlement to funding.  The Public Sector Audit Appointments, 
set the fee of £19485.00 (+VAT) for this review, based on the final 
certification fees for 2014/15.  A report by the Strategic Director (Internal 
Services) was presented to Audit Board in January 2018 detailing the 
findings of this audit, including a letter from Grant Thornton setting out 
their findings.  A purchase order had been raised for this review 
(P019565) and Internal Audit confirm that the payment was justified and 
in compliance with Council procedures.



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

5.5 GRAYL003 (£18.50)  – This payment was the reimbursement, to a 
member of staff, for the provision of refreshments for the Dartford 
Residents Forum Committee’s lunchtime meeting, which took place on 
10th October 2017. A TAB1 form was submitted to Financial Services 
along with receipts for the purchase, but Internal Audit noticed that the 
form had not been fully certified by an authorised signatory prior to the 
payment being made.  Internal Audit notified the member of staff and the 
Financial Service Manager of this oversight to prevent errors happening 
in future. The Internal Audit review confirmed that the payment was 
justified, made promptly and with the exception of the error described 
above, was in accordance with payment procedures.

6. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

Not applicable

7. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None

Legal Implications None

Staffing Implications None

Administrative 
Implications

None

Risk Assessment Obtaining goods and services on behalf of the 
Council carries potential inherent risks of fraud, 
or misappropriation. The Selective Invoice 
Checks process is one of many steps employed 
by the Council to manage fraud risks and to 
ensure value for money.

8. Details of Exempt Information Category

Not applicable

9. Appendices

None
BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents consulted Date /
File Ref

Report Author Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

N/A Acting Audit Manager
01322 343004

Internal Audit / 
Strategic (Internal 
Services)

N/A



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18

1. Summary

The Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in 
accordance with the law and proper standards and that public money is 
safeguarded and properly accounted for. In discharging this overall 
responsibility, the Council has to ensure that it has good governance 
arrangements and that it operates a sound system of internal control and 
that it reviews them annually. This report considers the governance 
arrangements and the system of internal control which operated during 
2017/18 and the review that has taken place. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1That the review of the Council’s Corporate Governance arrangements be 
noted.

2.2That the Annual Governance Statement 2017/18 at Appendix A to the report 
be approved for inclusion in the Annual Statement of Accounts, together 
with the Governance Action Plan for 2018/19, at Appendix B.

3. Background and Discussion  

3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that the Council 
prepares an annual governance statement;

3.2 The Council is also obliged to conduct a review at least once in a year, of 
the effectiveness of its system of internal control and to include a 
statement in the annual accounts. When preparing the annual statement of 
accounts, the Council has to follow the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local 
Authority Accounting. 

3.3 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 place a duty on the Council to 
ensure that the findings of the review are considered by Members who 
must approve the annual governance that has been prepared in 
accordance with proper practices.

3.4 Senior Officers (the Monitoring Officer, Section 151 Officer, Head of Legal 
Services and the Financial Services Manager) have reviewed the Council’s 
arrangements against the Local Code of Governance which incorporates 
the CIPFA/SOLACE Principles as set out in the publication Delivering 
Good Governance in Local Government (2016). Management Team have 
also approved the review and the draft Annual Governance Statement and 
have agreed that the Statement should be referred to the Board for 



              
AUDIT BOARD

25 APRIL 2018

approval. The Annual Governance Statement for the year ended 31 March 
2018 is attached at Appendix A. 

3.5 Appendix B, details the review process. The first page of the Appendix lists 
the objectives and key areas to be considered during the review.  The 
remainder of this Appendix details the elements of good governance, gives 
examples of the principal sources of assurance, notes the current 
arrangements that the Council has in place and finally, identifies gaps and 
areas for development. 

3.6 Appendix C gives an update on the 2017/18 Action Plan. Annex 1 of the 
Annual Governance Statement is the recommended Action Plan for 
2018/19. 

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

The production of the Annual Governance Statement is a statutory requirement 
and supports the Council’s Performing Strongly theme.

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications None
Legal Implications See paragraphs 3.1 to 3.3
Staffing Implications None
Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment If the Council does not approve an 

Annual Governance Statement, for 
inclusion in the annual Statement of 
Accounts, the external auditor will give a 
qualified opinion on the accounts. If the 
Statement does not accord with “proper 
practice” the auditor may make 
comment on it in his report to the 
Council on the audit of the accounts. 

Appendices

Appendix A - Annual Governance Statement – 2017/18
Appendix B - Review of the Council’s Governance Arrangements – 2017/18 & 

Governance Action Plan 2018/19
Appendix C – 2017/18 Governance Action Plan – Progress Review

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category



              
AUDIT BOARD

25 APRIL 2018

Tim Sams
343148

Financial 
Services/ 
Internal 
Services

N/A





APPENDIX A

Page 1 of 12

 
Annual Governance Statement



APPENDIX A

Page 2 of 12

FOR THE PERIOD 1 APRIL 2017 TO 31 MARCH 2018

1.1 SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

1.1.1 Dartford Borough Council (the Council) is responsible for ensuring that its 
business is conducted in accordance with the law and proper standards, and 
that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for. The Council 
also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 (as amended) to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness. 

1.1.2 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for 
implementing proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, the 
stewardship of the resources at its disposal and facilitating the effective 
exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the management of 
risk.

1.1.3 The Council has approved and adopted a Local Code of Corporate 
Governance (the Local Code), which is consistent with the principles and 
reflects the requirements of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government (2016).  The Local Code is published on 
the Council’s website at www.dartford.gov.uk. 

1.1.4 This statement explains how the Council has complied with the Local Code 
and with meeting the requirements of regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015 to review and report on the effectiveness of its system of 
internal control and to prepare an Annual Governance Statement.

1.1.5 The Council has in place appropriate management and reporting 
arrangements to enable it to satisfy that its approach to corporate governance 
is adequate and effective in practice.  

1.1.6 In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for 
ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control which facilitates the 
effective exercise of the Council's functions, and which includes 
arrangements for the management of risk.

1.2 THE PURPOSE OF THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK 

1.2.1 The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture 
and values by which the Council is directed and controlled, and by which it, 
through its activities, can account to, engage with and lead the community.  
The governance framework enables the Council to monitor the achievement 
of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to 
the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services. 

http://www.dartford.gov.uk/


APPENDIX A

Page 3 of 12

1.2.2 The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is 
designed to manage risk to a reasonable level.  It cannot eliminate all risk of 
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  The system of 
internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and 
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and 
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the 
impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively 
and economically. 

1.2.3 This Annual Governance Statement is produced for the year 1 April 2017 to 
31 March 2018 and includes the period up to the date of approval of the 
statement of accounts. 

1.3 THE GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

1.3.1 The key elements of the systems and processes that comprise the Council’s 
governance arrangements are summarised below:

Identifying and communicating our vision and outcomes for citizens and 
service users 

The Corporate Plan 2017-2020 has been approved by the General Assembly 
of the Council [17 July 2017 Min 34]. The Corporate Plan is published on the 
Council’s website.  

Reviewing our vision and its implications for our governance arrangements 

Progress towards the achievement of the objectives is monitored through the 
Performance Management Framework, with performance reports to 
Management Team, Cabinet and Policy Overview Committee, and through 
other internal review mechanisms.

                        Measuring the quality of services for users, to ensure that they are delivered 
in accordance with the Council’s objectives and for ensuring that they 
represent the best use of resources

                        The Council measures the quality of service to users through a number of 
mechanisms including:

                        
                        Customer surveys
                        Comments, compliments and complaints
                        Monitoring against targets and indicators
                        Reviews by the Scrutiny Committee and the Policy Overview Committee
                        Comparison with similar authorities



APPENDIX A

Page 4 of 12

Establishing clear channels of communication with all sections of our 
community and other stakeholders, ensuring accountability and encouraging 
open consultation

The Council has developed a Consultation and Engagement Strategy to 
meet its duty to inform, consult and involve people in the delivery of Council 
services. An Equalities Scheme has been developed to meet the Council’s 
obligations under the Equality Act 2010. The Statement of Community 
Involvement sets out how the community will be involved in decisions about 
the Council’s Local Plan.

Defining and documenting the roles and responsibilities of the executive, 
non-executive, scrutiny and officer functions, with clear delegation 
arrangements and protocols for effective communication 

The Council has an adopted Constitution which details how the Council 
operates, how decisions are made and the procedures which are to be 
followed to ensure that these are efficient, transparent and accountable to 
local people.  The Constitution defines the terms of reference for all Council 
committees. The Cabinet (exercising the executive functions of the Council) 
is responsible for most decisions.  The Cabinet is made up of the Leader and 
Six Councillors. The Council elects the Leader and the Leader appoints the 
Cabinet. Major decisions are published in advance, in the Regulation 9 
Notice, and will generally be discussed in a meeting open to the public.  All 
decisions must be in line with the Council's overall policies and budget.  Any 
decisions the Cabinet wishes to take outside the budget or policy framework 
must be referred to the General Assembly of the Council to decide.  There is 
a Scrutiny Committee that scrutinises the work of the Cabinet, presenting 
challenge and the opportunity for a decision to be reconsidered. Most 
scrutiny is undertaken post-decision but a "call-in" procedure allows Scrutiny 
Committee to also review Cabinet decisions before they are implemented.

                        The Policy Overview Committee reviews general policies and makes 
recommendations on future policy options to Cabinet. 

                        A Scheme of Delegation to Officers is approved by the Cabinet/General 
Assembly of the Council. This defines the framework and limits within which 
officers can take decisions.



APPENDIX A

Page 5 of 12

Developing, communicating and embedding codes of conduct, defining the 
standards of behaviour for members and staff 

The standards of conduct and personal behaviour expected of Council 
Members and Officers, its partners and the community are defined and 
communicated through codes of conduct and protocols.  These include:

 A Member Code of Conduct 
 An Employee Code of Conduct
 Regular performance appraisals for staff linked to corporate and 

service objectives
 An Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy
 A Member/Officer Protocol
 A Whistleblowing Policy
 An Annual Monitoring Officer report
 An Audit Board to oversee and monitor the Member Code of Conduct

                        

Whistleblowing and receiving and investigating complaints from the public

The Council’s Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed each year and provides for 
confidential reporting on matters of concern. Informants are requested to be 
open in their disclosure, but it is recognised that on occasions, informants will 
wish to remain anonymous.

The Council has an effective Corporate Complaints Procedure. A report is 
submitted annually to the Audit Board on corporate complaints.  

Reviewing and updating standing orders, financial instructions, scheme of 
delegations and supporting procedure notes/manuals, which clearly define 
how decisions are taken and the processes and controls required to manage 
risks

Standing Orders, Contract Standing Orders, Financial Regulations and the 
Scheme of Delegations to Officers are regularly reviewed as are supporting 
procedures and manuals. 

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations, internal policies and 
procedures, and that expenditure is lawful 

The Council has a duty to ensure that it acts in accordance with the law and 
various regulations in the performance of its functions.  It has developed 
policies and procedures for its Officers and Members to ensure that, as far 
as possible, they understand their responsibilities both to the Council and to 
the public. Key documents and procedures include:

 Standing Orders
 Contract Standing Orders
 Procurement Guide



APPENDIX A

Page 6 of 12

 Finance Guidance incorporating Financial Regulations
 Money Laundering procedures
 Committee reporting procedure including requirements for the 

monitoring of legal and financial implications
 Regular training on new legal requirements
 Regular updates from the Head of Legal Services for Members and 

Officers on key changes to the local authority legal framework
                     

Other key corporate policies on a range of topics such as Equalities, 
Customer Care, Data Protection, Freedom of Information and Fraud have 
been adopted.  All policies are subject to internal review, to ensure they are 
adequately maintained and fit for purpose. 

Measuring the quality of services for users, for ensuring they are delivered in 
accordance with our objectives and for ensuring that they represent the best 
use of resources

The Council, through its budgetary monitoring and control processes, 
ensures that financial resources are being used in accordance with the 
budget and corporate policy via regular management reporting to Directors, 
the Finance Portfolio Member and Cabinet.

Financial planning is underpinned by service planning and annual budget 
reviews to ensure that individual service plans and service improvements are 
in line with corporate objectives. 

Through performance reports, corporate and key service objectives are 
monitored to ensure that performance targets and indicators are being 
achieved. 

Economic, effective and efficient use of resources is subject to review 
through the work of the Scrutiny and Policy Overview Committees, Internal 
and External Audit and annual budget reviews.

Financial Management

Responsibility for ensuring that an effective system of internal financial control 
is maintained and operated rests with the S151 Officer.  The systems of 
internal financial control provide reasonable and not absolute assurance that 
assets are safeguarded, that transactions are authorised and properly 
recorded, and that material errors or irregularities are either prevented or 
would be detected within a timely period.

                        The CIPFA Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer is reported to 
the General Assembly as part of the annual budget report. The Council meets 
all the governance requirements contained in the statement.

Internal financial control is based on a framework of management information, 
financial regulations and administrative procedures, which include the 
segregation of duties where practical, management supervision and a system 



APPENDIX A

Page 7 of 12

of delegation and accountability. 

In particular, the process in 2017/18 included: 
 The setting of a one year detailed budget and Medium Term Financial 

Plan;
 Monitoring of actual income and expenditure against the annual 

budget;
 A detailed budget review by officers and Members;
 Setting of financial and performance targets;
 Regular reporting of the Council's financial position to Members;
 Clearly defined capital expenditure guidelines;
 Managing risk in key financial service areas.

Effectiveness of Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Team reports to the Managing Director and Management 
Team, operating under a Charter, which defines its relationship with Council 
Officers and the Audit Board.  The main responsibility of the Internal Audit 
Team is to provide assurance and advice on the internal control system of the 
Council to the Management Team and Members.  Internal Audit reviews, 
appraises the adequacy, reliability and effectiveness of internal control within 
systems and recommends improvement.  It also supports management in 
developing systems, providing advice on risk and control.  The controls 
created by management are evaluated to ensure:

 Council objectives are being achieved;
 Economic and efficient use of resources;
 Compliance with policies, procedures, laws and regulations;
 The safeguarding of Council assets; and
 The integrity and reliability of information and data.

As part of the wider annual review of the governance arrangements and in 
particular, the system of internal control, the Council is required to undertake 
an annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal audit.  This 
review is undertaken annually and considered by the Managing Director. The 
review has highlighted an area where the Council has not fully complied with 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The PSIAS require the 
Internal Audit activity to be independent and objective, however, during the 
year the Chief Audit Executive for the Council has been the S151 Officer who 
was not entirely independent due to her operational responsibilities. 

This arrangement was of a temporary nature due to the departure of the 
Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager. Appropriate mitigating actions were put 
in place to ensure there was no threat to independence from this 
arrangement. These included ensuring that the Principal Auditor (acting up as 
the Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager) had access to both the Managing 
Director and the Audit Chair and ensuring that all internal audit reviews 
carried out during the year were summarised for the Audit Board within the 
Internal Audit progress report. A number of audits were undertaken within the 



APPENDIX A

Page 8 of 12

area of responsibility of the S151 Officer, however, she had no direct 
involvement in these audits other than reviewing the final reports. 

Moving forward, the Chief Audit Executive role will pass to the Audit, Risk and 
Anti-Fraud Manager once this post has been recruited to, which will ensure 
the independence and objectivity of the role. Based on the internal reviews 
the Managing Director has assessed the effectiveness of the system of 
internal control as “satisfactory” – indicating that there are proper 
arrangements in place.  The full details of the  internal  review has been 
reported to the Audit Board, alongside this Annual Assurance Statement, as it 
is a key element of the review of the system of internal control and 
governance framework.

It is a responsibility of the Audit Board (as detailed in the Constitution) to 
monitor the work of Internal Audit and to ensure that any actions agreed are 
implemented. Its Terms of Reference are outlined in the Council's 
Constitution and are reviewed annually.

Performance and Risk Management

                       The following is the normal procedure for the review of risk:

 Reports on performance, which include performance indicators and 
monitoring of key objectives and targets, are regularly provided to 
management.

 The Council’s risk management processes are regularly reviewed and 
reported to the Audit Board and Cabinet, as appropriate. 

 Strategic risk is aligned to corporate priorities and reports are 
produced for Management Team and Members.

                      The risk management process was reviewed by senior managers in 2015/16.

The development needs of Members and senior officers in relation to their 
strategic roles, supported by appropriate training 

Members receive training on key topics or where significant changes have 
occurred or new legislation introduced. Training for officers is considered at 
the annual appraisal meeting and also during the year, if required. 

1.4 REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

1.4.1 Dartford Borough Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, 
a review of the effectiveness of its governance framework including the 
system of internal control.  This review is informed by:

 The work of Internal Audit and the Chief Audit Executive’s Annual 
Report.



APPENDIX A

Page 9 of 12

 The work of senior managers within the Council who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance of the governance 
environment.

 The work of the Data Protection Officer

 The work of the Senior Information Risk Owner

 The opinion of the external auditors as expressed in their annual 
report to the Audit Board.

 The detailed review which is undertaken on behalf of the Management 
Team.

 The overview provided by the Management Team.

 The Monitoring Officer’s Annual Report to the Audit Board.

1.4.2 The following processes have been applied in maintaining and reviewing the 
effectiveness of the governance framework: 

Council

The Corporate Plan, Constitution, budget and other strategies and policies 
are approved and reviewed by the General Assembly of the Council.  

Cabinet 

The Cabinet receives reports on financial performance.

                        Scrutiny Committee and Policy Overview Committee 

These Committees have respectively a role in (a) reviewing/scrutinising 
action and decisions taken and (b) advising on policy.

Audit Board

The Audit Board receives quarterly updates on the assurance which can be 
placed on various systems and processes during the year, along with an 
annual assessment at the year end. 

The Audit Board reviews reports presented to it by the Acting Audit, Risk and 
Anti-Fraud Manager on the review of internal control.  The Board receives a 
summary of all internal audit reports and keeps a check on those areas that 
were assessed as unsatisfactory.  Additionally, it reviews the effectiveness of 
the Council’s risk management arrangements.

The Audit Board receives an annual report from the Monitoring Officer on 
ethical governance arrangements and on the effectiveness of the Corporate 
Complaints Procedure. 



APPENDIX A

Page 10 of 12

Ethics is a key element of governance and the purpose of the Monitoring 
Officer’s annual review of the Council’s ethical governance is to ensure that 
robust arrangements are in place and that the Council continues to develop 
and improve management and reporting arrangements so as to satisfy itself 
that its approach to ethical governance is both adequate and effective in 
practice.  

Data Protection Officer

The Head of legal Services has been appointed the Data Protection Officer 
(DPO) in accordance with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

The DPO’s minimum tasks are:

• to inform and advise the Council and its employees about their obligations 
to comply with the GDPR and other data protection laws;

• to monitor compliance with the GDPR and other data protection laws, 
including managing internal data protection activities, advise on data 
protection impact assessments; train staff and conduct internal audits;

• to be the first point of contact for supervisory authorities and for individuals 
whose data is processed (employees, customers etc.).

The DPO operates independently and is required to report to the highest 
management level in the Council.

Senior Information Risk Officer

The I.C.T. Manager is the Council’s appointed SIRO who has responsibility 
for ensuring that the Council’s IT systems’ risk within the organisation is 
managed appropriately.  

The SIRO’s other responsibilities can be summarised as:

 owning the Council’s overall IT Security Policy and IT risk assessment 
processes and ensuring they are implemented consistently by 
Information Asset Owners;

 advising the Management Team and the Audit Board on the 
information risk aspects of the Council’s statement on internal 
controls/annual governance statement;

 reporting to the Audit Board on the effectiveness of the Council’s’ 
cyber security management processes; 

 owning the Council’s IT incident management framework.

Internal Audit

Based on the work completed to date in 2017-18 and other sources of 
assurance available to the function, the Chief Audit Executive’s overall 
annual assurance opinion is that the Council’s arrangements for internal 
control, risk management, governance and anti-fraud during the period is 
“effective”.



APPENDIX A

Page 11 of 12

                       

1.5 SIGNIFICANT GOVERNANCE ISSUES  

1.5.1 As highlighted earlier within this report, the Chief Audit Executive role should 
be independent and objective, however, due to the vacancy in the post of 
Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager, this role has sat with the S151 Officer 
who is not independent due to her operational responsibilities. Appropriate 
steps have been taken to mitigate this potential threat to independence and, 
consequently, this has not prevented the Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements from operating effectively during the year. 

1.5.2 On the basis of the detailed review undertaken and consideration of that 
review by the Managing Director, the Council is satisfied that there are no 
other significant governance matters that need to be brought to the immediate 
attention of Members and that the Council’s corporate governance 
arrangements are adequate and operating effectively.

1.5.3 However, some areas have been highlighted as requiring improvement and/or 
further development as per the action plan appended to this statement. 

The workforce strategy is an outstanding item from last year’s review. This 
has not been progressed due to a need to change the Council’s HR and 
payroll provider. From April 2018 a new HR structure will be in place, which 
will enable the delivery of the strategy. 

1.5.4 Over the ensuing year, the Council will take steps to address the above 
matters to further enhance its governance arrangements.  We are satisfied 
that these steps will address the need for improvements that were identified in 
the review of effectiveness and will monitor their implementation and 
operation as part of our next annual review. 

Signatures: Date:
Leader of the Council

Date:
Managing Director



APPENDIX A

Page 12 of 12



APPENDIX B

Page 1 of 65

 Review of Annual Governance Statement and the Assurance Gathering Process

 

Establish principal statutory 
obligations and organisational 

objectives
Objective 1

Identify principal risks to achievement of objectives

Identify and evaluate key controls to manage principal risks

Obtain assurances on effectiveness of key controls

Evaluate assurances and identify gaps in control/assurances

Action plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system of Corporate Governance

Annual Governance Statement

Report to Cabinet/Executive Committee

Objective 2

Objective 3

Objective 4

Objective 5

Objective 6

Objective 7

Objective 8

Apply the Seven Core 
Principles from International 

Framework



APPENDIX B

Page 2 of 65

OBJECTIVE 1: Establishing principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives

STEP 1: Mechanism established to identify principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives  

Possible sources of 
assurance:

Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. Responsibilities for 
statutory obligations are 
formally established

 Documents (e.g. 
constitution) recording 
individual officer and 
member responsibilities 

 Minutes of delegations to 
officers and committees

 Committee terms of 
reference

 Job descriptions of key 
officers 

 Structure charts
 Policies and procedures

Committee framework including the Policy 
Overview Committee and the Scrutiny Committee
Constitution (recording of responsibilities)
Financial Regulations
Gifts and Hospitality Registers (Members and 
Officers respectively)
Human Resources Policies and Procedures
Scheme of Delegations to Officers
Standing Orders 
Statutory Officers’ roles and responsibilities 
documented
Structure/Organisational Charts
Terms of Reference of Committees
Contracts Standing Orders
Procurement Guide
Committee reports and minutes
Monitoring Officer Annual report 
Legal implications in committee reports
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Policy - 
regular review 
Partnerships’ Code of Practice Review
Data Protection Policy
Guidance on how to deal with and avoid Data 
Security Breaches
Information Sharing Arrangements
Equalities Monitoring 
Treasury Management Panel 
Contract conditions 
Transparency agenda compliance

Draft HR Policies 
need reviewing in line 
with new payroll 
system
and for GDPR 
compliance

2. Record held of statutory 
obligations

 Accessible record of 
statutory obligations (e.g. 
central registry or legal 
library, intranet)

Law library
Intranet
Web based subscription services e.g. Westlaw,  
etc. 



APPENDIX B

Page 3 of 65

Possible sources of 
assurance:

Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

3. Effective procedures to 
identify, evaluate, 
communicate, implement, 
comply with and monitor 
legislative change exist 
and are used

 Review of established 
processes in place

 Appointment of suitably 
qualified and experienced 
employees, selected 
against accurate and 
specific job descriptions 
and person specifications

 Evidence of effective 
arrangements for internal 
and external 
communication (e.g. by 
review of communication 
of recent legislation to 
relevant officers and 
members)

 Appropriate induction 
training has been given to 
specific post holders

 Awareness training 
tailored to job profiles has 
been provided

 Inspection of reports to 
members on implications 
of new legislation

 Evidence that assurance 
has been given to Chief 
Executive (or equivalent) 

Internal Audit reports
External Audit reports
Monitoring Officer Annual Report
Corporate Complaints Annual Report
Ombudsman Annual Letter
Appropriately qualified heads of 
departments/teams with relevant 
professional/educational qualifications and career 
history and appropriate experience
Job Profiles and Competencies
Continuing Professional Development support

Induction
Management Team Minutes
Members’ Information Bulletin
Minutes of Committees
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to the Audit 
Board
Publication of minutes on the Council’s website
Regular training on DPA and FOI/EIR
Regular review of procurement procedures etc.
Quarterly procurement debriefs
Reports to Council, committees etc. on 
implications of new legislation
Section 151 Officer Statement of Assurance 
Audit Board Statement of Assurance (ethical 
governance related matters) through Monitoring 
Officer’s Report

Induction procedures
Statutory Officer appointments

Reports to Council, committees etc. on 
implications of new legislation
Reports and minutes publicised on the Council’s 
website and the intranet

Induction process to 
be updated (part of 
policy reviews)



APPENDIX B

Page 4 of 65

Possible sources of 
assurance:

Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

that all relevant legislative 
changes have been 
reported and addressed

Assurance Statement
Audit Board Statement of Assurance (ethical 
governance related matters) 
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to the Audit 
Board

4. Effective action is taken 
where areas of non-
compliance are found in 
either mechanism or 
legislation

 Review of evidence to 
demonstrate that action 
has been taken to 
overcome identified areas 
of non-compliance, for 
example:
o Internal /external audit 

reports to audit 
committee or 
equivalent;

o Monitoring reports on 
progress on delivering 
action plans in 
response to identified 
legal/statutory risks in 
risk register (e.g. on 
implementation of 
Freedom of 
Information Act 2000)

o Evidence of corrective 
action being taken in 
response to upheld 
complaints against 
the authority

Corporate Complaints Procedure
Covalent logging of complaints and responses 
and analysis of complaints and corrective action 
taken
Quarterly reports to Management Team and 
Policy Overview Committee on complaints
FOI procedures
Data Protection procedures
Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 
procedures
Internal Audit/External Auditor reports
Ombudsman decisions
Monitoring Officer Section 5 reports
Risk Management Procedures
Section 151 Officer reports
Capability Procedure
Disciplinary Policy and Procedure
Code of Conduct respectively for Members and 
Officers
Contract Standing Orders
HR policies

Voluntary reporting to the Information 
Commissioner of data security breaches  



APPENDIX B

Page 5 of 65

OBJECTIVE 1: Establishing principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives 

STEP 2: Mechanism in place to establish organisational objectives

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. Consultation with 
stakeholders on priorities and 
objectives

 Results from internal 
and/or external 
consultation exercises 
have been analysed 
and published

Consultation Strategy agreed 11 June 2015.
Budget Consultation
Big Bin Vote

2. The authority’s priorities and 
organisational objectives have 
been agreed (taking into 
account feedback from 
consultation)

 Authority’s approved 
and published 
strategic plan takes 
account of all 
consultation and local 
and national priorities

 Priorities and 
objectives in strategic 
partnerships are 
aligned with corporate 
priorities and 
objectives  

Consultation responses on priorities are reported 
to Cabinet

The Corporate Plan 2017-2020 was approved by 
Cabinet in July 2017

3. Priorities and objectives are 
aligned to principal statutory 
obligations and relate to 
available funding

 Corporate priorities 
and objectives are 
clearly set out in the 
strategic plan

 Strategic plan takes 
account of annual 
budget and medium 
term financial plan

 Financial plans take 
account of strategic 
partnership 
contributions and 
income streams

Corporate Plan
Medium Term Financial Plan
Annual budget review
Service Plans

The budget reflects partner contributions to 
projects and services

4. Objectives are reflected in 
departmental plans and are 

 Clear terms of 
reference are set for 

Service Plans flow from the Corporate Plan, with 
defined linkages



APPENDIX B

Page 6 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

clearly matched with 
associated budgets

the preparation of 
departmental and/or 
service plans

 Departmental and/or 
service plans clearly 
reflect corporate 
objectives and match 
approved funding  

 Annual reports are 
produced on the 
outcome of 
departmental and/or 
service plans

Covalent reporting on status of PIs
Budget process takes account of service issues

The Council has Service Plans which
link to the Corporate Plan and individual 
performance assessments.
Service Plans are monitored through the 
Council’s performance management system - 
Directors, Management Team and Cabinet/Policy 
Overview reports 

5. The authority’s objectives are 
clearly communicated to staff 
and to all stakeholders, 
including partners.

 A communication 
strategy in respect of 
the corporate 
objectives has been 
developed, approved 
and implemented

 Documented meetings 
across departments to 
discuss key objectives 
in corporate and 
departmental and/or 
service plans 

 Corporate objectives 
and aims are set out in 
key documents on the 
authority’s website and 
intranet site

Consultation and Engagement Strategy 2015-
2018

Corporate Plan 

Service Plans
Senior Manager meetings
Staff Appraisals
Partnerships’ Code of Practice
Information Sharing arrangements
Data Handling Guidelines
MoU between Crime and Disorder (Overview and 
Scrutiny) Committee and Community Safety 
Partnership 

Community Right to Challenge procedures 
implemented and publicised on the Internet

OBJECTIVE 1: Establishing principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives



APPENDIX B

Page 7 of 65

STEP 3: Effective corporate governance arrangements are embedded within authority 

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. Code of corporate 
governance established

 A Code of Corporate 
Governance in line 
with the 
CIPFA/SOLACE 
guidance relevant to 
the type of authority 
has been adopted by 
the authority

 A communication 
strategy in relation to 
the Code has been 
developed, approved 
and implemented 

Approved by Cabinet in Jan 2017

2. Review and monitoring 
arrangements in place

 The Code itself 
incorporates a review 
date and/or a system 
for continuous update 
in response to 
changed requirements

 There are clear 
arrangements for 
continuously 
monitoring compliance 
with the Code e.g. 
reports on compliance 
are regularly submitted 
to the committee 
charged with corporate 
governance 
responsibility

 An annual report on 
compliance with the 
Code of Corporate 
Governance is 

Ethical Governance Framework Internal/External 
audit reports on adequacy of corporate 
governance arrangements
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to Audit Board
Annual Corporate Complaints Report to Audit 
Board
Annual Review of Whistleblowing Policy by Audit 
Board
Scrutiny Committee draw downs
Audit Board functions on ethical governance 
framework
Partnerships’ Code of Practice

Annual review of governance arrangements 
reported to MT for approval before submitting to 
Audit Board

Corporate Governance Action Plan agreed by 
Audit Board



APPENDIX B

Page 8 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

prepared and 
submitted to members

 Internal/external audit 
reports on adequacy of 
corporate governance 
arrangements

 An action plan is 
prepared to address 
any significant 
identified weaknesses 
in complying with the 
Code and is 
continuously 
monitored by the 
authority or committee 
charged with corporate 
governance 
responsibility

As part of standard audit reviews

Submitted to Audit Board

3. Committee charged with 
governance responsibilities

 Responsibility for 
overseeing corporate 
governance has been 
formally delegated to 
an appropriate 
committee

 Committee terms of 
reference clearly 
demonstrating 
responsibility for 
corporate governance 
issues have been 
approved by the 
authority 

 Terms of reference are 
sufficiently 
comprehensive to 
ensure that all 

Audit Board Terms of Reference incorporating 
corporate governance framework responsibilities 
approved at Annual Meeting

Reports and Minutes



APPENDIX B

Page 9 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

appropriate aspects of 
corporate governance 
are covered

 Agendas and minutes 
from the committee 
charged with corporate 
governance 
responsibility indicate 
that the responsibility 
is being discharged 
adequately in 
accordance with terms 
of reference

4. Governance training provided 
to key officers and all 
members

 Induction training for 
key new officers and 
all new members 
incorporate suitable 
coverage on corporate 
governance issues 
according to 
responsibilities

 Ongoing awareness 
training is provided as 
appropriate to key staff 
and all members to 
ensure that changes in 
the Code are made 
known within the 
authority

Governance training for new members

Agreed that key staff are: - Management Team, 
Statutory Officers, Financial Services Manager, 
Head of Legal Services and Policy and 
Corporate Support Manager. Not necessary for 
other senior managers to receive full training 
Awareness provided as part of general MT 
debrief and Senior Managers’ MT meetings

Preparation for 
comprehensive member 
training after 2019 
election.

5. Staff, public and other 
stakeholder awareness of 
corporate governance

 There is a general staff 
awareness training 
programme

 The Code has been 
published and is 

Audit Board training on ethical governance 
framework
Scrutiny and Policy Overview Committees’ 
minutes published on the Council’s website

Data processor contracts 
being reviewed for 
GDPR compliance



APPENDIX B

Page 10 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

accessible to all staff, 
the public and other 
stakeholders

Staff considered above
Governance briefing for staff published on 
intranet 

Key partners aware of Council’s governance 
arrangements and in the main have similar 
arrangements



APPENDIX B

Page 11 of 65

OBJECTIVE 1: Establishing principal statutory obligations and organisational objectives

STEP 4: Performance management arrangements are in place 

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. Comprehensive and effective 
performance management 
systems operate routinely

 There is a clearly 
defined performance 
management 
framework that 
identifies:
o all sources of 

performance 
measures;

o who is responsible 
for achieving each 
performance 
measure;

o who is responsible 
for collating the 
data for each one;

o who determines 
and approves the 
performance 
measures;

o who receives 
reports on 
performance and 
how often;

o how data quality is 
assured;

o how performance 
data is captured 
and its integrity 
maintained;

o how poor 
performance is 
addressed;

o how performance 

Integrated Performance Management system, 
with Actions and Targets in Corporate Plan, 
flowing down to Service Plans with Actions, 
Risks and Targets
Relevant Actions flow through Staff Performance 
Appraisal process

Report made quarterly to Cabinet and Policy 
Overview

Information is held on Corporate Pentana IT 
Performance System, with nominated staff for 
data entry and data authorisation – data has to 
be added monthly and escalation triggers if not 
entered
Pentana provides access to latest information 
for Managers at any time
At least quarterly reports to Management Team

Data Quality Strategy reviewed and updated in 
2018.

Service targets agreed by Management Team to 
reflect aspirations and resource allocations

Benchmarking included in service reviews where 
appropriate.

Internal audit reviews include benchmarks 
where appropriate

Key PIs to be 
reconsidered



APPENDIX B

Page 12 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

is driven upwards 
over time

 Reports resulting from 
internal or external 
reviews of 
performance 
management 

 Year-on-year 
comparison of 
achievement against 
performance targets 
(e.g. in annual reports)

 Best value reviews, 
including 
benchmarking results

 Departmental and/or 
service benchmarking 
results

 Annual reports issued 
by, or in relation to, 
strategic partnerships

2. Key performance indicators 
are established and 
monitored

 Appropriate key 
performance indicators 
(KPIs) have been 
established and 
approved for each 
service element and 
are included in 
departmental and 
service 
business/annual plans

 KPIs have been 
developed and are 
monitored in respect of 
key partnerships

Targets in Corporate Plan, flowing down to 
Service Plans – local or Service targets included 
with Actions, Risks and Targets

Key performance indicators reported to Senior 
Management Team on a monthly basis

Report made quarterly to Cabinet and Policy 
Overview

Pentana PI system

Key PIs to be 
reconsidered



APPENDIX B

Page 13 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 A robust monitoring 
system has been 
approved and 
implemented

 There are regular 
reports on progress on 
delivering approved 
KPIs

 There is an approved 
mechanism for 
reviewing the 
continuing suitability of 
KPIs and for securing 
continuous 
improvement  

Agreed actions from Service Plans geared to 
achieve key PIs are monitored and reported as 
are the key risks

3. The authority knows how well 
it is performing against its 
planned outcomes

 Regular reports are 
presented to members 
on the delivery of 
national, authority, 
departmental and 
partnership 
performance targets

 Internal and external 
auditor’s reports on 
key performance 
indicators 

 Key performance 
indicator risk 
scorecards

 Service reviews and 
progress reviews 
against the action 
plans.

 Monitoring reports on 
the achievement of 
local performance 

Budget monitoring reports
Monitoring of action plans
Service reports to Management Team
Annual Audit Letter
External Audit reports to Audit Board
Annual Ombudsman Letter

Risk management system 

PI report made quarterly to Cabinet and Policy 
Overview

Specific Action Plans produced and monitored



APPENDIX B

Page 14 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

targets in the Local 
Policing Plan

 Internal performance 
indicators 

 Regular budget 
monitoring reports 
(capital and revenue, 
current year and 
medium-term)

 Voluntary 
benchmarking 
exercises with peer 
groups 

 National comparative 
performance 
measures against 
comparable authorities

Many services will benchmark against peers but 
most will rely on national data e.g. council tax, 
benefits

4. Knowledge of absolute and 
relative performances 
achieved is used to support 
decisions that drive 
improvements in outcomes

 Monitoring reports are 
regularly presented to 
the appropriate 
committee

 The reports include 
detailed performance 
results, both absolute 
and relative to peer 
authorities, a clear 
indication of below 
target, on target and 
at, or above, target 
results, highlighting 
areas where corrective 
action is necessary 

 Committee reports on 
below par performance 

Performance Management system
Service Plans
Annual budget review
Service Reviews
Feedback from customers
Monthly reports to Senior Management Team.
Target performance reviewed via appraisal and 
one to one process
Housing performance reviewed 6 monthly by the 
Resident Involvement Joint Liaison Group



APPENDIX B

Page 15 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

include ‘SMART’ 
action plans to 
improve performance

 Performance targets in 
subsequent corporate 
and departmental 
and/or service 
business plans are 
revised in the light of 
actual performance

 Continuous 
improvement is strived 
for by increasing the 
difficulty of 
performance targets 
when they have been 
met over a period (e.g. 
movements on KPI 
results)

Continuous improvement sought in those 
services where considered appropriate by 
Management Team 

5. The authority continuously 
improves its performance 
management

 The performance 
management systems 
are regularly reviewed 
and updated to take 
account of changes in 
organisational 
structure, new 
performance 
measurement 
frameworks (i.e. new 
Government initiatives, 
new internal 
performance 
measures etc.) and 
other factors

 The performance 
management 

Data Quality Strategy
Internal/External audit recommendations 
implemented

Performance Management Reviewed by 
Directors

Pentana performance management software



APPENDIX B

Page 16 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

arrangements are 
revised in line with 
external or internal 
review of the 
arrangements

 Performance 
management 
arrangements are 
reviewed to assimilate 
new techniques and/or 
technology e.g. 
developments in 
performance 
management 
information systems

 Performance 
management 
arrangements are 
developed and 
monitored in relation to 
key partnerships



APPENDIX B

Page 17 of 65

OBJECTIVE 1:    Apply the seven core principles of the international framework

CORE PRINCIPLE A: Behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and respecting the rule of law

Sub-Principle Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Behaving with 
integrity 

Ensuring members and officers 
behave with integrity and lead 
a culture where acting in the 
public interest is visibly and 
consistently demonstrated 
thereby protecting the 
reputation of the organisation 

Ensuring members take the 
lead in establishing specific 
standard operating principles 
or values for the organisation 
and its staff and that they are 
communicated and 
understood. These should 
build on the Seven Principles 
of Public Life (the Nolan 
Principles) 

Leading by example and using 
these standard operating 
principles or values as a 
framework for decision making 
and other actions 

Codes of conduct:

Individual sign off with regard 
to compliance with code 

Induction for new members 
and staff on standard of 
behaviour expected 
Performance appraisals 

Communicating shared 
values with members, staff, 
the community and partners 

Decision making practices:
Declarations of interests 
made at meetings 
Conduct at meetings 
Shared values guide decision 
making 
Develop and maintain an 
effective standards 
committee 

Member/Officer Relations’ Protocol
Codes of Conduct. 
Employee Handbook
Appraisal process
Training for new members and 
Induction for Staff

Corporate Plan

Members Code of Conduct

Staff Code of Conduct

Staff Handbook

Formal declarations of interest.

Audit Board



APPENDIX B

Page 18 of 65

Sub-Principle Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Demonstrating, communicating 
and embedding the standard 
operating principles or values 
through appropriate policies 
and processes which are 
reviewed on a regular basis to 
ensure that they are operating 
effectively 

Anti-fraud and corruption 
policies are working 
effectively 

Up-to-date register of 
interests (members and staff) 

Up-to-date register of gifts 
and hospitality 

Whistleblowing policies are in 
place and protect individuals 
raising concerns 

Whistleblowing policy has 
been made available to 
members of the public, 
employees, partners and 
contractors

Complaints policy and 
examples of responding to 
complaints about behaviour 
Changes/improvements as a 
result of complaints received 
and acted upon 

Members and officers code of 
conduct refers to a 
requirement to declare 
interests 
Minutes show declarations of 
interest were sought and 
appropriate declarations 
made 

Anti-Fraud and Corruption Strategy

Registers of Interests (Members 
and Officers)

Gifts and hospitality Registers 
(Members and Officers)

Whistleblowing Policy
Whistleblowing investigations

Whistleblowing Policy published

Corporate Complaints Annual 
Report to the Audit Board

Officers and Members code makes 
requirement clear 

Minutes show declarations when 
made



APPENDIX B

Page 19 of 65

Sub-Principle Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Demonstrating 
strong commitment 
to ethical values

Respecting the rule 
of law

Seeking to establish, monitor 
and maintain the 
organisation’s ethical 
standards and performance 

Underpinning personal 
behaviour with ethical values 
and ensuring they permeate all 
aspects of the organisation’s 
culture and operation 

Developing and maintaining 
robust policies and procedures 
which place emphasis on 
agreed ethical values 

Ensuring that external 
providers of services on behalf 
of the organisation are 
required to act with integrity 
and in compliance with high 
ethical standards expected by 
the organisation 

Ensuring members and staff 
demonstrate a strong 
commitment to the rule of the 
law as well as adhering to 
relevant laws and regulations 

Scrutiny of ethical decision 
making 
Championing ethical 
compliance at governing 
body level 

Provision of ethical 
awareness training 

Appraisal processes take 
account of values and ethical 
behaviour 
Staff appointments policy 
Procurement policy 

Agreed values in partnership 
working: 
Statement of business ethics 
communicates commitment 
to ethical values to external 
suppliers 
Ethical values feature in 
contracts with external 
service providers 
Protocols for partnership 
working 

Statutory provisions 
Statutory guidance is 
followed 
Constitution

Audit Board Statement of 
Assurance (ethical governance 
related matters) through Monitoring 
Officer’s Report
Anti-slavery and Human Trafficking 
Statement

Audit Board Training

Procurement Strategy includes 
ethics and probity - Staff expected 
to act in line with the Council’s 
values.

Partnerships’ Code of Practice 
includes ethical standards

Constitution and see objective 1 for 
statutory element



APPENDIX B

Page 20 of 65

Sub-Principle Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Creating the conditions to 
ensure that the statutory 
officers, other key post holders 
and members are able to fulfil 
their responsibilities in 
accordance with legislative 
and regulatory requirements 

Striving to optimise the use of 
the full powers available for the 
benefit of citizens, 
communities and other 
stakeholders 

Dealing with breaches of legal 
and regulatory provisions 
effectively 

Ensuring corruption and 
misuse of power are dealt with 
effectively 

Job description/specifications 
Compliance with CIPFA’s 
Statement on the Role of the 
Chief Financial Officer in 
Local Government (CIPFA, 
2015) 
Terms of reference 
Committee support 

Record of legal advice 
provided by officers 

Monitoring officer provisions 
Record of legal advice 
provided by officers 
Statutory provisions 

Effective anti-fraud and 
corruption policies and 
procedures 
Local test of assurance 
(where appropriate) 

Job descriptions and terms of 
reference in place

Monitoring Officer provisions 
Legal advice maintained by officers 
and legal comments on reports 
(where applicable)

Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy 
Internal audit of Fraud Functions



APPENDIX B

Page 21 of 65

CORE PRINCIPLE B: Ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement
 

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Openness Ensuring an open culture 
through demonstrating, 
documenting and 
communicating the 
organisation’s commitment 
to openness 

Making decisions that are 
open about actions, plans, 
resource use, forecasts, 
outputs and outcomes. The 
presumption is for 
openness. If that is not the 
case, a justification for the 
reasoning for keeping a 
decision confidential should 
be provided 

Providing clear reasoning 
and evidence for decisions 
in both public records and 
explanations to 
stakeholders and being 
explicit about the criteria, 
rationale and considerations 
used. In due course, 
ensuring that the impact 
and consequences of those 
decisions are clear 

Annual report 
Freedom of Information Act 
publication scheme 
Online council tax information 
Authority’s goals and values 
Authority website 

Record of decision making and 
supporting materials 

Decision making protocols 
Report pro-formas 
Record of professional advice 
in reaching decisions 
Meeting reports show details 
of advice given 
Discussion between members 
and officers on the information 
needs of members to support 
decision making 

Agreement on the information 
that will be provided and 
timescales 
Calendar for submitting, 

Statement of Accounts
Freedom of Information Act 
Publication Scheme 
Corporate Plan
Compliance with Transparency 
Code

Online publishing of decisions
Council meetings open and 
minutes published

Report pro-formas with mandatory 
finance and legal sections

Report submission timetable



APPENDIX B

Page 22 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Engaging 
comprehensively with 
institutional 
stakeholders 

Using formal and informal 
consultation and 
engagement to determine 
the most appropriate and 
effective interventions/ 
courses of action 

Effectively engaging with 
institutional stakeholders to 
ensure that the purpose, 
objectives and intended 
outcomes for each 
stakeholder relationship are 
clear so that outcomes are 
achieved successfully and 
sustainably 

Developing formal and 
informal partnerships to 
allow for resources to be 
used more efficiently and 
outcomes achieved more 
effectively 

Ensuring that partnerships 
are based on: 

 trust 
 a shared commitment 

to change 
 a culture that promotes 

and accepts challenge 
among partners 

publishing and distributing 
timely reports is adhered to 
Community strategy 
Use of consultation feedback 
Citizen survey

Communication strategy 

Database of stakeholders with 
whom the authority should 
engage and for what purpose 
and a record of an assessment 
of the effectiveness of any 
changes 

Partnership framework 
Partnership protocols 

Communications channels decided 
for specific activity in accordance 
with Consultation and Engagement 
Strategy 

Consultation and Engagement 
Strategy

Consultation log

Partnerships’ Code of Practice
Partnerships Register



APPENDIX B

Page 23 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Engaging 
stakeholders 
effectively, including 
individual citizens 
and service users 

 and that the added 
value of partnership 
working is explicit 

Establishing a clear policy 
on the type of issues that 
the organisation will 
meaningfully consult with or 
involve individual citizens, 
service users and other 
stakeholders to ensure that 
service (or other) provision 
is contributing towards the 
achievement of intended 
outcomes 

Ensuring that 
communication methods 
are effective and that 
members and officers are 
clear about their roles with 
regard to community 
engagement 

Encouraging, collecting and 
evaluating the views and 
experiences of 
communities, citizens, 
service users and 
organisations of different 
backgrounds including 
reference to future needs 

Implementing effective 

Record of public consultations 
Partnership framework

Communications strategy 

Communications strategy 
Joint strategic needs 
assessment 

Processes for dealing with 

Consultation and Engagement 
Strategy

Consultation Database

Complying with statutory 
consultation requirements

Guidance for members on outside 
bodies 

Consultation and Engagement 
Strategy

Consultation and Engagement 



APPENDIX B

Page 24 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

feedback mechanisms in 
order to demonstrate how 
their views have been taken 
into account 

Balancing feedback from 
more active stakeholder 
groups with other 
stakeholder groups to 
ensure inclusivity 

Taking account of the 
interests of future 
generations of tax payers 
and service users 

competing demands within the 
community, for example a 
consultation 

Processes for dealing with 
competing demands within the 
community, for example a 
consultation 

Reports 
Joint strategic needs 
assessment 

Strategy

Joint Resident Involvement Liaison 
Group

Youth Forum
Equality duty consultations



APPENDIX B

Page 25 of 65

CORE PRINCIPLE C: Defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental benefits 

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Defining 
outcomes.

Having a clear vision which is 
an agreed formal statement of 
the organisation’s purpose and 
intended outcomes containing 
appropriate performance 
indicators, which provides the 
basis for the organisation’s 
overall strategy, planning and 
other decisions 

Specifying the intended impact 
on, or changes for, 
stakeholders including citizens 
and service users. It could be 
immediately or over the course 
of a year or longer 

Delivering defined outcomes 
on a sustainable basis within 
the resources that will be 
available 

Vision used as a basis for 
corporate and service 
planning

Community engagement and 
involvement
Corporate and service plans
Community strategy

Regular reports on progress
 

Corporate Plan, Service Plans

Consultation and Engagement 
Strategy

Support of local groups through 
grant funding

Financial Reports

Sustainable 
economic, social 
and environmental 
benefits

Considering and balancing the 
combined economic, social 
and environmental impact of 
policies, plans and decisions 
when taking decisions about 
service provision 

Capital investment is 
structured to achieve 
appropriate life spans and 
adaptability for future use or 
that resources (eg land) are 
spend on optimising social, 
economic and environmental 
wellbeing:

 Capital programme
 Capital investment 

strategy

Capital Programme



APPENDIX B

Page 26 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Taking a longer-term view with 
regard to decision making, 
taking account of risk and 
acting transparently where 
there are potential conflicts 
between the organisation’s 
intended outcomes and short-
term factors such as the 
political cycle or financial 
constraints 

Determining the wider public 
interest associated with 
balancing conflicting interests 
between achieving the various 
economic, social and 
environmental benefits, 
through consultation where 
possible, in order to ensure 
appropriate trade-offs 

Ensuring fair access to 
services 

Discussion between 
members and officers on the 
information needs of 
members to support decision 
making
Record of decision making 
and supporting materials

Record of decision making 
and supporting materials
Protocols for consultation

Protocols ensure fair access 
and statutory guidance is 
followed

Local plan and associated 
Development polices

Budget formulation and report

Consultation and Engagement 
Strategy

Equality and Diversity Document 
Framework
Procurement Equality Standard 



APPENDIX B

Page 27 of 65

CORE PRINCIPLE D: Determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the intended outcomes

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Determining 
interventions

Ensuring decision makers 
receive objective and rigorous 
analysis of a variety of options 
indicating how intended 
outcomes would be achieved 
and including the risks 
associated with those options. 
Therefore ensuring best value 
is achieved however services 
are provided 

Considering feedback from 
citizens and service users 
when making decisions about 
service improvements or 
where services are no longer 
required in order to prioritise 
competing demands within 
limited resources available 
including people, skills, land 
and assets and bearing in 
mind future impacts 

Discussion between 
members and officers on the 
information needs of 
members to support decision 
making

Decision making protocols
Option appraisals
Agreement of information that 
will be provided and 
timescales

Financial Strategy

Regular discussions between 
officers and members

Option appraisals provided when 
relevant

Budget feedback 
Big bin vote

Planning 
interventions

Establishing and implementing 
robust planning and control 
cycles that cover strategic and 
operational plans, priorities 
and targets 

Engaging with internal and 
external stakeholders in 
determining how services and 
other courses of action should 

Calendar of dates for 
developing and submitting 
plans and reports that are 
adhered to

Communication strategy

Statutory reporting requirements 
Crime and Disorder work plan 
Regulations 12 notices
GAC Work Plan
Scrutiny Work Plan
Policy and Overview Work Plan

Consultation and Engagement 
Strategy



APPENDIX B

Page 28 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

be planned and delivered 

Considering and monitoring 
risks facing each partner when 
working collaboratively 
including shared risks 

Ensuring arrangements are 
flexible and agile so that the 
mechanisms for delivering 
outputs can be adapted to 
changing circumstances 

Establishing appropriate key 
performance indicators (KPIs) 
as part of the planning process 
in order to identify how the 
performance of services and 
projects is to be measured 

Ensuring capacity exists to 
generate the information 
required to review service 
quality regularly 

Preparing budgets in 
accordance with organisational 
objectives, strategies and the 
medium term financial plan 

Informing medium and long 
term resource planning by 
drawing up realistic estimates 
of revenue and capital 
expenditure aimed at 
developing a sustainable 

Partnership framework
Risk management protocol

Planning protocols

KPIs have been established 
and approved for each 
service element and included 
in the service plan and are 
reported upon regularly

Reports include detailed 
performance results and 
highlight areas where 
corrective action is necessary

Evidence that budgets, plans 
and objectives are aligned

Budget guidance and 
protocols
Medium term financial plan
Corporate plans

Strategic Risk Register and Risk 
Management Framework

Standing order 38
Delegations to Officers
Ability to call additional meetings

Monthly Service reports to 
Management Team and Corporate 
Plan PIs. 

Monitoring on Pentana

Budgets and savings proposed 
assessed in the light of the 
Corporate Plan and organisational 
objectives

Medium Term Financial Plan



APPENDIX B

Page 29 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

funding strategy 

Optimising 
achievement of 
intended 
outcomes

Ensuring the medium term 
financial strategy integrates 
and balances service priorities, 
affordability and other resource 
constraints 

Ensuring the budgeting 
process is all-inclusive, taking 
into account the full cost of 
operations over the medium 
and longer term 

Ensuring the medium term 
financial strategy sets the 
context for ongoing decisions 
on significant delivery issues or 
responses to changes in the 
external environment that may 
arise during the budgetary 
period in order for outcomes to 
be achieved while optimising 
resource usage 

Ensuring the achievement of 
‘social value’ through service 
planning and commissioning. 
The Public Services (Social 
Value) Act 2012 states that 
this is “the additional benefit to 
the community over and above 
the direct purchasing of goods, 
services and outcomes” 

Feedback surveys and 
exit/decommissioning 
strategies
Changes as a result

Budgeting guidance and 
protocols

Financial strategy

Service plans demonstrate 
consideration of “social 
value”
Achievement of “social value” 
is monitored and reported 
upon

Management Team feedback and 
input

Request to fill process require long 
term effects to be identified 
Procurement submission form

Budget Report & Medium Term 
Financial Plan

Included in Procurement Strategy
Example terms and conditions 
available. 
Larger contracts are particularly 
considered for Social Value. 
Examples of good practice in place



APPENDIX B

Page 30 of 65

CORE PRINCIPLE E: Developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the individuals within it

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Developing the 
entity’s capacity 

Reviewing operations, 
performance and use of assets 
on a regular basis to ensure 
their continuing effectiveness 

Improving resource use 
through appropriate application 
of techniques such as 
benchmarking and other 
options in order to determine 
how resources are allocated so 
that defined outcomes are 
achieved effectively and 
efficiently 

Recognising the benefits of 
partnerships and collaborative 
working where added value 
can be achieved 

Developing and maintaining an 
effective workforce plan to 
enhance the strategic 
allocation of resources 

Regular reviews of activities 
outputs and planned 
outcomes

Utilisation of research and 
benchmarking exercise

Effective operation of 
partnerships which deliver 
agreed outcomes

Workforce plan
Organisational developments 
plan

Budget Reviews and Management 
Team

Benchmarking e.g. Housemark and 
local comparators

Joint working

Service Level Agreements and 
monitoring thereof

Human Resources Function
Service Planning

Report Asset 
Management 
Review to 
Cabinet and 
implement 
action plan 

Workforce 
Strategy

Developing the 
capability of the 
entity’s leadership 
and other 
individuals 

Developing protocols to ensure 
that elected and appointed 
leaders negotiate with each 
other regarding their respective 
roles early on in the 

Job descriptions
Chief executive and leader 
pairings have considered 
how best to establish and 
maintain effective 

Well established relationship

Scheme of Delegations



APPENDIX B

Page 31 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

relationship and that a shared 
understanding of roles and 
objectives is maintained 

Publishing a statement that 
specifies the types of decisions 
that are delegated and those 
reserved for the collective 
decision making of the 
governing body 

Ensuring the leader and the 
chief executive have clearly 
defined and distinctive 
leadership roles within a 
structure whereby the chief 
executive leads in 
implementing strategy and 
managing the delivery of 
services and other outputs set 
by members and each 
provides a check and a 
balance for each other’s 
authority

Developing the capabilities of 
members and senior 
management to achieve 
effective leadership and to 
enable the organisation to 
respond successfully to 
changing legal and policy 
demands as well as economic, 
political and environmental 

communication.

Scheme of delegation 
reviewed at least annually in 
the light of legal and 
organisational changes.
Standing orders and financial 
regulations which are 
reviewed on a regular basis.

Clear statement of respective 
roles and responsibilities and 
how they will be put into 
practice.

Access to update 
courses/information briefings 
on new legislation

Annual review of Scheme of 
Delegations 

Well established relationship

Scheme of Delegations

Constitution

Member Training
Member Briefings



APPENDIX B

Page 32 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

changes and risks by: 

 ensuring members and staff 
have access to appropriate 
induction tailored to their role 
and that ongoing training and 
development matching 
individual and organisational 
requirements is available and 
encouraged

 ensuring members and 
officers have the appropriate 
skills, knowledge, resources 
and support to fulfil their 
roles and responsibilities and 
ensuring that they are able to 
update their knowledge on a 
continuing basis

 ensuring personal, 
organisational and system-
wide development through 
shared learning, including 
lessons learnt from 
governance weaknesses 
both internal and external 

Ensuring that there are 
structures in place to 
encourage public participation 

Induction programme
Personal development plans 
for members and officers

For example, for members 
this may include the ability to:

 Scrutinise and 
challenge

 Recognise when 
outside expert advice 
is required

 Promote trust
 Work in partnership
 Lead the organisation
 Act as community 

leader

Arrangements for succession 
planning

Residents panels
Stakeholders forum terms of 
reference

Induction for new Members
Induction checklist for staff

Training available for new 
Members

Induction training for new staff
Development training identified as 
part of appraisal process
Staff encouraged to attend 
professional seminars/conferences 
as appropriate

Resident Involvement Joint Liaison 
Group. Youth forum, Elders forum

Update 
induction 
process

Workforce 
strategy to be 
developed



APPENDIX B

Page 33 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Taking steps to consider the 
leadership’s own effectiveness 
and ensuring leaders are open 
to constructive feedback from 
peer review and inspections 

Holding staff to account 
through regular performance 
reviews which take account of 
training or development needs 
Ensuring arrangements are in 
place to maintain the health 
and wellbeing of the workforce 
and support individuals in 
maintaining their own physical 
and mental wellbeing

Strategic partnership 
frameworks
Reviewing individual member 
performance on a regular 
basis taking account of their 
attendance and considering 
any training or development 
needs
Peer reviews

Training and development 
plan
Staff development plans 
linked to appraisals
Implementing appropriate 
human resource policies and 
ensuring that they are 
working effectively

Appraisals and Staff one to one’s

Training and Development plans
Corporate Wellbeing Group
Employee Assistance Programme
Discounted Leisure Membership
Staff Wellbeing Month including 
mental health awareness sessions 
for staff
Building used for Yoga Sessions



APPENDIX B

Page 34 of 65

CORE PRINCIPLE F:  Managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong public financial 
management

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Managing risk Recognising that risk 
management is an integral part 
of all activities and must be 
considered in all aspects of 
decision making 

Implementing robust and 
integrated risk management 
arrangements and ensuring 
that they are working 
effectively 

Ensuring that responsibilities 
for managing individual risks 
are clearly allocated 

Risk management protocol

Risk management 
strategy/policy formally 
approved and adopted and 
reviewed and updated on a 
regular basis

Risk management protocol

Risk Management arrangements

Risk Management process updated 
in 2016 

Risk Strategy has been 
communicated to all managers

Managing 
performance 

Monitoring service delivery 
effectively including planning, 
specification, execution and 
independent post 
implementation review

Making decisions based on 
relevant, clear objective 
analysis and advice pointing 
out the implications and risks 
inherent in the organisation’s 
financial, social and 
environmental position and 

Performance map showing all 
key activities have 
performance measures
Benchmarking information
Cost performance (using 
inputs and outputs)
Calendar of dates for 
submitting, publishing and 
distributing timely reports that 
are adhered to

Discussion between 
members and officers on the 
information needs of 
members to support decision 
making
Publication of agenda and 

Performance management system 
managed through Pentana system

Online publishing of decisions
Council meetings open and 
minutes published



APPENDIX B

Page 35 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

outlook 

Ensuring an effective scrutiny 
or oversight function is in place 
which provides constructive 
challenge and debate on 
policies and objectives before, 
during and after decisions are 
made thereby enhancing the 
organisation’s performance 
and that of any organisation for 
which it is responsible 

Providing members and senior 
management with regular 
reports on service delivery 
plans and on progress towards 
outcome achievement 

Ensuring there is consistency 
between specification stages 
(such as budgets) and post 
implementation reporting (e.g. 
financial statements) 

minutes of meetings
Agreement on the information 
that will be needed and 
timescales

The role and responsibility for 
scrutiny has been established 
and is clear
Agenda and minutes of 
scrutiny meetings
Evidence of improvements as 
a result of scrutiny
Terms of reference
Training for members
Membership

Calendar of dates for 
submitting, publishing and 
distributing timely reports that 
are adhered to

Financial standards, 
guidance
Financial regulations and 
standing order

Terms of Reference 
Training

Forward Plan, calendar of 
meetings and annual work plans 
e.g. scrutiny

Financial Regulations have been 
updated
Regular reports on finance, 
Budget, Monitoring and Outturn

Robust internal 
control

Aligning the risk management 
strategy and policies on 
internal control with achieving 
objectives 

Risk management strategy
Audit plan
Audit reports

All in place



APPENDIX B

Page 36 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Evaluating and monitoring risk 
management and internal 
control on a regular basis 

Ensuring effective counter 
fraud and anti-corruption 
arrangements are in place 

Ensuring additional assurance 
on the overall adequacy and 
effectiveness of the framework 
of governance, risk 
management and control is 
provided by the internal 
auditor 

Ensuring an audit committee 
or equivalent group/ function, 
which is independent of the 
executive and accountable to 
the governing body: provides 
a further source of effective 
assurance regarding 
arrangements for managing 
risk and maintaining an 
effective control environment 
that its recommendations are 
listened to and acted upon

Risk management 
strategy/policy has been 
formally approved and 
adopted and is reviewed and 
updated on a regular basis

Compliance with the Code of 
Practice on Managing the 
Risk of Fraud and Corruption 
(CIPFA, 2014)

Annual governance 
statement
Effective internal audit 
service is resourced and 
maintained

Audit committee complies 
with best practice.  See Audit 
Committees: Practical 
Guidance for Local 
Authorities and Police 
(CIPFA, 2013)
Terms of reference
Membership
Training

Risk Strategy last approved by 
Cabinet on 22 October 2015

Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy 

Annual Governance Statement
Annual Assessment of Internal 
Audit

Audit Board Chair and Member 
training. Clear Terms of Reference

Managing data Ensuring effective 
arrangements are in place for 

Data management framework 
and procedures

DPA procedures in place 
accessible via the intranet

Update 
Policies and 



APPENDIX B

Page 37 of 65

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

the safe collection, storage, 
use and sharing of data, 
including processes to 
safeguard personal data

Ensuring effective 
arrangements are in place and 
operating effectively when 
sharing data with other bodies

Reviewing and auditing 
regularly the quality and 
accuracy of data used in 
decision making and 
performance monitoring

Designated data protection 
officer
Data protection policies and 
procedures

Data sharing agreement
Data sharing register
Data processing agreements

Data quality procedures and 
reports
Data validations procedures

Head of Legal Services as DPO

Various data sharing agreements 
in place – accessible via the 
intranet

Subject Access Requests’ Register 
accessible via the intranet 

Services have procedures to 
ensure the quality and accuracy of 
data as required, for example, for 
government returns, accounts and 
performance indicators. These 
processes and procedures are 
subject to audit reviews carried out 
by Internal Audit.
 

Procedures for 
General Data 
Protection 
Regulation

Strong public 
financial 
management 

Ensuring financial 
management supports both 
long term achievement of 
outcomes and short-term 
financial and operational 
performance 

Ensuring well-developed 
financial management is 
integrated at all levels of 
planning and control, including 
management of financial risks 
and controls

Financial management 
supports the delivery of 
services and transformational 
change as well as securing 
good stewardship

Budget monitoring reports

Medium Term Financial Plan
Annual Budget Process
Internal Audit

Multi- level budget monitoring 
including reports to Management 
Team and Cabinet



APPENDIX B

Page 38 of 65

CORE PRINCIPLE G: Implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver effective accountability 

Supporting 
Principle

Local Code Requirement Possible sources of 
assurance

What do DBC have in place? Gaps and 
areas to 
develop

Implementing 
good practice in 
transparency

Writing and communicating 
reports for the public and other 
stakeholders in a fair, 
balanced and understandable 
style appropriate to the 
intended audience and 
ensuring that they are easy to 
access and interrogate 

Striking a balance between 
providing the right amount of 
information to satisfy 
transparency demands and 
enhance public scrutiny while 
not being too onerous to 
provide and for users to 
understand 

Website
Annual report

All Committee reports available on 
website
Statement of Accounts 

Data Transparency requirements   
-  published on website 

FOI Publication Scheme

Privacy Notices

Implementing 
good practices in 
reporting 

Reporting at least annually on 
performance, value for money 
and stewardship of resources 
to stakeholders in a timely and 
understandable way.

Ensuring members and senior 
management own the results 
reported 

Ensuring robust arrangements 
for assessing the extent to 
which the principles contained 
in this Framework have been 

Formal annual report which 
includes key points raised by 
external scrutineers and 
service users’ feedback on 
service delivery
Annual financial statements

Appropriate approvals

Annual Governance 
Statement

Performance indicators reviewed 
annually. Annual financial outturn 
report

Approvals process

Annual Governance Statement and 
process



APPENDIX B

Page 39 of 65

applied and publishing the 
results on this assessment, 
including an action plan for 
improvement and evidence to 
demonstrate good governance 
(the annual governance 
statement) 

Ensuring that this Framework 
is applied to jointly managed 
or shared service 
organisations as appropriate 

Ensuring the performance 
information that accompanies 
the financial statements is 
prepared on a consistent and 
timely basis and the 
statements allow for 
comparison with other, similar 
organisations 

Annual Governance 
Statement

Format follows best practice

Annual Governance Statement and 
process

Information reviewed each year in 
line with guidelines

Assurance and 
effective 
accountability 

Ensuring that 
recommendations for 
corrective action made by 
external audit are acted upon 

Ensuring an effective internal 
audit service with direct 
access to members is in 
place, providing assurance 
with regard to governance 
arrangements and that 
recommendations are acted 
upon 

Welcoming peer challenge, 
reviews and inspections from 
regulatory bodies and 

Recommendations have 
informed positive 
improvement

Compliance with CIPFA’s 
Statement on the Role if the 
Head of Internal Audit (2010)
Compliance with Public 
Sector Internal Audit 
Standards

Recommendations have 
informed positive 
improvement

External Audit Reports to Audit 
Board including Action Plan 
Updates

Audit Charter and Audit Self –
Assessment

Regular updates to Audit Board on 
progress against internal audit 
recommendations

PWC review carried out and action 
plan agreed and monitored
PWC follow up review conducted 



APPENDIX B

Page 40 of 65

implementing 
recommendations 

Gaining assurance on risks 
associated with delivering 
services through third parties 
and that this is evidenced in 
the annual governance 
statement 

Ensuring that when working in 
partnership, arrangements for 
accountability are clear and 
the need for wider public 
accountability has been 
recognised and met

Annual Governance 
Statement

Community Strategy

and action plan developed

Partnerships’ Code of Practice
Partnerships Register
Risks Management

Partnerships’ Code of Practice



APPENDIX B

Page 41 of 65

OBJECTIVE 2: Identifying principal risks to achievement of objectives

STEP 1: The authority has robust systems and processes in place for the identification and management of strategic and operational 
risk 
Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 

develop
1. There is a written strategy 

and policy in place for 
managing risk which:
 Has been formally 

approved at political and 
risk management board 
(or equivalent) level

 Is reviewed on a regular 
basis

 Has been 
communicated to all 
relevant staff

 Includes partnership 
risks

 Existence of approved 
strategy and policy 
document 

 Evidence of formal 
approval (e.g. 
management 
board/committee 
minutes)

 Evidence of formal 
review (e.g. 
management 
board/committee 
minutes, document 
version number and 
date)

 Evidence of 
communication 
strategy, possibly 
covered in strategy 
document

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
policy and strategy 
published on intranet, 
strategic diagnostic 
questionnaire results

 Partnership risk 
registers

Risk Management process updated in 2016 
As above

Risk Strategy has been communicated to all 
managers

Strategic risk register updated at least annually 
and reported to Audit Board

2. The authority has  Management 



APPENDIX B

Page 42 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

implemented clear structures 
and processes for risk 
management which are 
successfully implemented 
and:
 Management board and 

elected members see 
risk management as a 
priority and support it by 
personal interest and 
input

 Decision making 
considers risk

 A senior manager has 
been appointed to 
“champion” risk 
management

 Roles and 
responsibilities for risk 
management have been 
defined

 Risk management 
systems are subject to 
independent 
assessment

 Risk management is 
considered in the 
annual business 
planning process

 Risk management 
extends to partnership 
risks

board/committee 
minutes

 Job descriptions of 
senior and operational 
managers and 
corporate risk 
manager

 Internal audit reports 
and external audit 
comments on risk 
management system  

 PPAF review 
comments on risk 
management

 Annual business 
plans

 Link between 
internal audit and risk 
management 
functions is clearly 
defined in terms of 
reference of internal 
audit 

 Responsibility for 
risk management 
function, including 
partnership risk 
management, is set at 
appropriate senior 
level 

 Committee reports 
setting out options for 
change include an 
appropriate risk 
assessment, including 
the ‘no change’ option

Updated risk strategy was agreed by Cabinet in 
October 2015

Risk assessment referred to in committee reports

Roles and responsibilities defined in Risk 
Management Strategy

Risk management subject to regular review by 
internal audit 

Risk is key element in Service Plans and reports 
to committee

Budget report considers the key financial risks to 
the authority



APPENDIX B

Page 43 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 The corporate 
business plan and 
financial plan assess 
risks as appropriate 
and in particular take 
account of new and 
emerging risks facing 
the authority

 Partnership risks are 
assessed before 
agreements are 
signed

Strategic Risk Register linked to Corporate Plan

3. The authority has developed 
a corporate approach to the 
identification and evaluation 
of risk which is understood by 
all staff

 Systematic 
procedures for risk 
identification and 
evaluation have been 
agreed and are 
consistently applied 
across all business 
units and partnerships

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
strategic diagnostic 
questionnaire results

Part of Risk Strategy and included in Service 
Plans
Partnerships’ Code of Practice
Contract Conditions

Briefings and discussions held with all senior 
managers 

Risks to be entered on 
to Pentana and 
monitored using tools. 

Risk to be added to 
Senior Manager 
Workshops and as 
regular agenda item on 
Director/Senior 
Manager meetings. 



APPENDIX B

Page 44 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

4. The authority has well defined 
procedures for recording and 
reporting risk

 Evidenced by review 
of risk management 
strategy and policy

 Examination of 
corporate and 
partnership risk 
registers 

 Key risk indicators 
have been determined 
and there is evidence 
of monitoring against 
these risks

 Evidence of regular 
and frequent reporting 
of risk to political and 
management board 
level

 Evidence of risk 
based auditing being 
carried out

 Evidence of risks not 
properly addressed 
identified in internal 
audit reports etc. 
being fed into the risk 
management process

Risk Strategy

Service Plans and Pentana

Audit Board, Management Team

Back up analysis to the Audit Plan

Internal Audit Reports

     

5. The authority has well-
established and clear 
arrangements for financing 
risk

 Evidence that the 
authority’s policy for 
risk financing is 
regularly reviewed in 
the light of costs and 
alternative risk 
mitigation strategies

 All legal requirements 
for insurance are met

Main financial risk is considered annually as part 
of the budget report.

Zurich Insurance policies



APPENDIX B

Page 45 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Evidence that self-
insurance provisions 
are subject to annual 
independent actuarial 
valuation and that 
contributions to the 
fund are adjusted 
accordingly

 Insurance claims 
being managed in 
accordance with 
‘Woolf’ principles

 Evidence of 
monitoring the 
incidence of 
successful and 
unsuccessful claims 
and of feeding the 
results back into the 
policy for risk 
financing accordingly

Not applicable other than excess on policies

Insurance files

Yes, to monitoring but no to feeding back into 
financing risk policy – our claims are of low order



APPENDIX B

Page 46 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

6. The authority has developed 
a programme of risk 
management training for 
relevant staff

 Training programme 
for risk management

 Training needs 
analysis (both 
specialist staff 
development and 
general awareness)

 Regular newsletter or 
other means of 
communicating risk 
management issues 
to staff 

 Induction programme 
includes risk 
management

 Appropriate 
responsibilities for risk 
management 
incorporated into job 
descriptions and 
appraisals

Training provided in 2013 alongside updated 
process and Management Team strategic risk 
work in 2016

A presentation on risk was also given to Audit 
Board

Zurich risk updates and anything from Kent Audit 
and Risk Managers (KARM) is communicated to 
relevant staff

7. The corporate risk 
management board (or 
equivalent) adds value to the 
risk management process by: 
 Advising and supporting 

corporate management 
team on risk strategies 

 Identifying areas of 
overlapping risk

 Driving new risk 
management initiatives

 Communicating risk 
management and 
sharing good practice

 Providing and reviewing 

 Corporate risk 
management board or 
equivalent terms of 
reference 

 Minutes of corporate 
risk management 
board 

 Reports to corporate 
management team

Management Team fulfils this role 

Audit Board have reviewed the strategic risk 
register and have received updates to the register



APPENDIX B

Page 47 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

risk management 
training

 Regularly reviewing the 
risk register(s)

 Coordinating the results 
for risk reporting

8. A corporate risk officer has 
been appointed with the 
necessary skills to analyse 
issues and offer options and 
advice and:
 Support decision 

making and policy 
formulation

 Provides support in the 
risk identification and 
analysis process

 Provides support in 
prioritising risk 
mitigation action

 Provides advice and 
support in determining 
risk treatments

 Inspires confidence in 
managers

 Job description of 
corporate risk officer

 Key task matrix of 
corporate risk officer

 Evidence of the 
corporate risk officer 
reporting to corporate 
management team on 
risk management 
issues

 Evidence of training 
on current risk 
management topics / 
membership of 
appropriate 
organisations (e.g. 
ALARM)

 Use of consultancy as 
appropriate

Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager 

Strategic risk register discussed at Management 
Team Operational risks reflected in service 
reports to Management Team

Officer attendance at KARM

Zurich for initial RM process

9. Managers are accountable for 
managing their risks

 Evidence of manager 
involvement in risk 
identification and 
analysis process

 Risk owners detailed 
in corporate 
/departmental risk 
register(s)

 Risk owners assigned 
in relation to key 
partnerships

Senior managers responsible for service risk 
assessment

Each strategic risk within the strategic risk register 
has been allocated a risk owner

Risks identified and updated within Service 
Managers monthly reports to MT



APPENDIX B

Page 48 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Job descriptions of 
managers outline their 
risk management 
responsibilities

 Evidence of (at least) 
annual review of risk 
at service/operational 
levels and of 
partnership risks

 Analysis of completed 
control and risk self-
assessment 
questionnaires

Operational risk registers updated annually
Strategic risk register updated annually and taken 
to Audit Board

Risks identified and updated within Service 
Managers monthly reports to MT

10. Risk management is 
embedded throughout the 
organisation 

 Evidence of a general 
risk management 
culture at all levels

 Risk management 
training programme

 Evidence of 
manager’s 
involvement in risk 
management aspects 
of business planning

 Results of strategic 
diagnostic survey to 
ascertain the extent to 
which risk 
management is 
understood by each 
category of officer 
(senior management, 
operational managers 
etc.) and members

See 2 and 9 above

Risk identified in all reports to 
Cabinet/committees.

Risk embedded within procurement process

Yes, for major projects and all Committee reports 
include section for risk

Capital Projects Working Group

Part of Prince 2 arrangements for larger/complex 
projects – e.g. IT projects

11. Risks in partnership working 
are fully considered 

 Evidence of risk 
assessments being 
undertaken before the 

Key partnerships reviewed annually



APPENDIX B

Page 49 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

commencement of 
major projects, 
preferably in the 
report on which the 
decision to proceed is 
based

 Evidence that risk 
assessment are 
regularly reviewed 
during the project 
period

 Evidence that 
potential partners are 
required to produce 
and submit risk 
assessments

 Evidence that 
partnership 
arrangements are 
reviewed in terms of 
risk before they are 
entered into and, 
subsequently, that the 
risks are reviewed

 Evidence that there 
are effective 
arrangements in place 
for risk sharing (e.g. in 
the partnering contract 
terms and conditions 
or agreement)

Partnerships’ Code of Practice

Risk embedded within procurement process

All Committee reports include section for risk

12. Where employed, risk 
management information 
systems meet users’ needs

 Evidence of risk 
information being 
updated promptly

 Review of accuracy 
and usefulness of 

Risks to be added and 
monitored through the 
Pentana system



APPENDIX B

Page 50 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

output from 
information systems

 Evidence that users 
were/are consulted on 
initial implementation 
and further 
development

 Interviews with users 
to assess suitability of 
the system for their 
needs



APPENDIX B

Page 51 of 65

OBJECTIVE 3: Identify and evaluate key controls to manage principal risks

STEP 1: The authority has a robust system of internal control which includes systems and procedures to mitigate principal risks 

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. There are written financial 
regulations in place which 
have been formally approved, 
regularly reviewed and widely 
communicated to all relevant 
staff:
 Authority has adopted 

CIPFA Code on 
Treasury Management 

 Compliance with the 
Prudential Code

 Financial regulations 
and instructions exist 
& are reviewed & 
updated regularly

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible in finance 
manuals and/or on 
intranet site

 Reports to audit 
committee or 
equivalent confirming 
compliance or 
identifying extent of 
non-compliance with 
regulations and 
instructions

 Report approving 
annual treasury 
management and 
investment strategy

 Outturn report on 
treasury mgt.

 External audit 
assessment of 
compliance with 
Prudential Code

Financial Regulations Updated in 2017

Referred to in updates of Financial Guidance 

Included as part of each audit report 

Budget report

Annual auditors report

Treasury Management Panel 

June Cabinet

As part of annual audit

2. There are written contract  Standing orders exist, Contract Standing Orders Subject to annual 



APPENDIX B

Page 52 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

standing orders in place 
which have been formally 
approved, regularly reviewed 
and widely communicated to 
all relevant staff

are reviewed and 
updated regularly to 
cover new procedures 
such as partnering 
arrangements and on-
line tendering

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
communication and 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible in finance 
manuals and/or on 
intranet site 

review under Managing Director delegated 
authority
Publicised on the Council’s website and intranet
Training attendance records 
Procurement Guide reviewed regularly

3. There is a whistle blowing 
policy in place which has 
been formally approved, 
regularly reviewed and widely 
communicated to all relevant 
staff

 Whistle blowing policy 
exists and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
communication and 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible on website 
and intranet site 

 Evidence of 
effectiveness of policy 
(e.g. reports on 
incidence of usage, 
evidence on annual 
declarations on fraud 
to Audit Commission)

Audit Manager Report on fitness for purpose of 
Whistleblowing Policy

Whistleblowing Policy reviewed and adopted by 
the Audit Board January 2017 and updated 
annually

Publicised on the Council’s website and intranet

Referred to in Contract Standing Orders and 
Purchasing Terms and Conditions

Whistleblowing Policy referenced within 
Employee Handbook



APPENDIX B

Page 53 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

4. There is a counter fraud and 
corruption policy in place 
which has been formally 
approved, regularly reviewed 
and widely communicated to 
all relevant staff

 Counter fraud and 
corruption policy exists 
and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
dissemination 
(briefings, induction, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible on website 
and intranet site 

 Evidence of 
effectiveness of policy 
(e.g. reports on 
identified frauds; 
annual AF70 returns to 
Audit Commission, 
reports on results of 
National Fraud 
Initiatives)

 Review of register of 
gifts and hospitality

Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy 
Register of Gifts and Hospitality (Members)
Register of Gifts and Hospitality (Officers)
Monitoring Officer review of Member Register of 
Gifts and Hospitality
Protocols/guides on Member Gifts, Benefits and 
Hospitality Register
Protocols/guides publicised on the Council’s 
website and the intranet
Member Code of Conduct training 
Member training attendance records
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to the Audit 
Board



APPENDIX B

Page 54 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

5. There are codes of conduct in 
place which have been 
formally approved and widely 
communicated to all relevant 
staff

 Codes of conduct have 
been agreed, including 
national schemes (e.g. 
police officers)

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible on intranet 
site 

Employee Code of Conduct updated in 2013
Member Code of Conduct approved by Council 
July 2012
Member Code of Conduct training
Member training attendance records
Member Code of Conduct publicised on 
Council’s website and intranet

Review of Employee 
Code of Conduct  to 
ensure consistency with 
Member Code where 
applicable around gifts 
and hospitality

6. A register of interests is 
maintained, regularly updated 
and reviewed

 Inspection of register 
of interests (members 
and staff)

 Evidence of regular 
updating and review 
by senior officer(s) 

HR Policies and Procedures on declarations of 
Officer interests
Officer Register of Interests
Member Register of Interests
Member Code of Conduct training
Member training attendance records
Protocols/guidance on Member declarations of 
interests
Review of Member Register of Interests by 
Monitoring Officer

7. Where a scheme of 
delegation has been drawn 
up, it has been formally 
approved and communicated 
to all relevant staff

 Scheme of Delegation 
to Officers 
incorporates adequate 
controls and sanctions

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
communication and 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible on intranet 
site 

Constitution
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to Audit Board
Publicised on the Council’s website and intranet
Scheme of Delegations to Officers approved by 
Council 2011 and reviewed annually under 
Managing Director’s delegated authority



APPENDIX B

Page 55 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Regular reports on the 
operation of the 
scheme (e.g. 
compliance, budget 
monitoring, year-end 
balances)

8. A corporate procurement 
policy has been drawn up, 
formally approved and 
communicated to all relevant 
staff

 Procurement policy 
exists and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly to take 
account of new 
initiatives e.g. drive 
towards wider 
consortia 
arrangements, shared 
services

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
accessible on intranet 
site 

 Evidence of 
effectiveness of policy 
(e.g. benchmarking 
results, best value 
review, internal/ 
external audit review)

Procurement Strategy

Briefings on specifics that are relevant e.g. 
Bevan Brittan and Crown Commercial Services

Refresher training initiatives

Procurement Group meets regularly
Capital Projects Monitoring Group

More regular meetings of 
both groups

9. Business/service continuity 
plans have been drawn up for 
all critical service areas and 
the plans: 
 Are subject to regular 

testing

 Current 
business/service 
continuity plans exist 
covering all critical 
service areas and are 
readily accessible

Plans in place

Ongoing programme of training.



APPENDIX B

Page 56 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Are subject to regular 
review

 Evidence of regular 
testing

 Evidence of regular 
review in the light of 
the results of testing 
and for changes in 
structures, 
procedures, 
information systems, 
responsibilities etc.

10. The corporate/departmental 
risk register(s) includes 
expected key controls to 
manage principal risks

 Risk register sets 
out principal risks and 
sets out appropriate 
key controls to 
manage them.

 Key controls are 
monitored, reviewed 
and updated regularly

 Use of risk 
management 
workshops to 
underpin the process 
and review of register 
and key controls

 Risk owners are 
assigned to manage 
principal risks

 Partnership risks are 
considered

This is incorporated in risk management process

11. Key risk indicators have been 
drawn up to track the 
movement of key risks and 
are regularly monitored and 
reviewed.

 Appropriate key risk 
indicators are 
documented

 Evidence of regular 
monitoring

 Evidence of changes 

Strategic risks last taken to Audit Board in Jan 
2017. Regular monitoring to continue.



APPENDIX B

Page 57 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

in risk indicators (and 
reasons for change) 
emanating from 
appropriate 
information sources 
(e.g. where internal 
audit findings are 
used to change the 
perceived level of risk) 

12. The authority’s internal control 
framework is subject to 
regular independent 
assessment

 Internal audit plans 
and reports

 Annual report/opinion 
of Audit Manager

 External audit reports
 Use of 

Resources/PURE 
assessment reports

External Audit reports
Internal Audit reports
Reports and minutes of Audit Board
Internal audit plans and reports
Audit Plan is based on risk assessment, and 
discussed with Directors who consider corporate 
and service specific risks



APPENDIX B

Page 58 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

13. A corporate health and safety 
policy has been drawn up, 
formally approved, is subject 
to regular review and has 
been communicated to all 
relevant staff

 Health & safety policy 
exists and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly

 Policy covers 
partnerships

 Evidence of formal 
approval

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
inclusion of policy on 
website and intranet 
site

 Evidence of 
effectiveness of policy 
e.g. number of cases 
investigated by Health 
& Safety Executive – 
and the number of 
cases proven

 Review of number of 
reported incidences 
and ‘near misses’

Health and Safety Policy on intranet. Policy last 
reviewed August 2014

Included in Employee Handbook

Corporate Wellbeing Group meets quarterly to 
consider H&S issues, changes in legislation etc. 
and review accidents and near misses. Group 
reports to MT 

14. A corporate complaints 
policy/procedure has been 
drawn up, formally approved, 
communicated to all relevant 
staff, the public and other 
stakeholders is regularly 
reviewed

 Complaints 
policy/procedure 
exists and has been 
reviewed and updated 
regularly

 Procedure is 
compliant with all 
relevant statutory 
requirements

 Evidence of formal 
approval

Corporate Complaints Procedure publicised on 
the Council’s website, intranet, main service 
points and in other parts of the Borough such as 
at Parish/Town Council Offices, Museum and 
Library
Leaflets and guidance for public
Audit Board approval
Management of complaints on Covalent
Corporate Complaints Officer Annual Report to 
the Audit Board
Satisfaction surveys 



APPENDIX B

Page 59 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Examples of 
dissemination e.g. 
induction, briefings, 
awareness sessions, 
inclusion of policy on 
website and intranet 
site

 Leaflets/posters 
highlighting 
complaints procedure

 Complaints files
 Committee reports 

summarising 
complaints dealt with 
analysed by outcome

Annual review to ensure fitness for purpose
Monitoring reports to MT and annual report to 
Cabinet
Ombudsman Annual Letter reported to Cabinet



APPENDIX B

Page 60 of 65

OBJECTIVE 4: Obtain assurance on the effectiveness of key controls 

STEP 1: Appropriate assurance statements are received from designated internal and external assurance providers 

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. The authority has determined 
appropriate internal and 
external sources of assurance

 Minutes of committee 
at which report on 
assurances was 
considered

 Sources of assurance 
are appropriate to the 
authority

Annual Assurance report from Audit, Risk and 
Anti-Fraud Manager
External Auditor report
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to the Audit 
Board
Management Team consider the review of the 
governance arrangements and their acceptance 
of the review and the governance statement 
provides the necessary level of assurance 

2. Appropriate key controls on 
which assurance is to be 
given have been identified 
and agreed 

 Briefing notes, 
guidance, instructions 
etc. given to 
appropriate managers 
regarding what is 
expected of them

Annual External Audit Plan
Internal Audit Plan
Risk Register
Assurance Statements
Contract Standing Orders, Financial Regulations 
and Officer delegations
Regular Audit Board Invoice checks

3. Departmental assurances are 
provided

 Departmental heads 
sign off on adequacy 
of controls (i.e. 
provide annual 
governance 
assurance 
statements)

 Supporting 
documentation 
provided by 
departmental heads re 
review and monitoring 
arrangements that key 

 An appropriate approach has been adopted 
with statements signed by Service Managers bi-
annually and more often if there are significant 
changes.

Monitoring Officer Annual Report to Audit Board



APPENDIX B

Page 61 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

controls have been in 
operation for the 
period and will 
continue to operate 
until accounts signed 
off.

(Structured process and 
standard documentation to 
ensure consistency of 
coverage and common 
understanding of level of 
assurance given)
 Completed Control & 

Risk Self-Assessment 
questionnaires

 Annual governance 
assurance statements 
evaluated by officer 
team or committee 
charged with the 
responsibility of 
preparing the AGS.  
Evaluation to include 
‘reality checking’ of 
sample of assurance 
statements

4. External assurance reports 
are collated centrally 
 Reports are reviewed by 

relevant senior 
management team and 
reported to appropriate 
committee

 Action plans are 
prepared and approved 
as appropriate

 Sources of external 
assurance relevant to 
authority are identified 
and agreed, including 
partnerships

 External assurance 
reports will vary 
according to type of 
authority and could 
include comment and 

Audit Plan
Annual Audit letter

All reported to Audit Board

Reports to Management Team and Audit Board 

Action plans produced if required and monitored



APPENDIX B

Page 62 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

 Follow up reports on 
recommendations are 
requested and reviewed 
by relevant senior 
management team and 
progress is regularly 
reported to relevant 
committee

input from the 
following (the list is not 
exhaustive):

 Audit Commission 
 External Auditor (either 

from direct audit work 
or from work jointly 
commissioned

 Social Services 
Inspectorate

 PURE assessment 
(police service)

 HMIC
 Police Standards Unit
 Home Office 

commissioned reports
 Senior management 

team minutes
 Follow up reports to 

appropriate committee
5. Internal Audit Arrangements  Reports of Audit 

Manager to Audit 
Board or equivalent 
throughout the year

 Annual report of Audit 
Manager, including 
opinion on internal 
control and risk 
management 
framework

Regular report to Audit Board
Risk based audit priorities across Council, 
including Partnerships

Annual Report to Audit Board

External Audit Review

6. Corporate Governance 
Arrangements

 Annual corporate 
governance assurance 

Report to Audit Board – June each year



APPENDIX B

Page 63 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

statement
 Internal or external 

audit review of 
corporate governance 
arrangements

 Monitoring reports to 
committee on delivery 
of action plans in 
response to reviews of 
corporate governance

Regular internal audit review 

External Audit review as part of the annual audit

7. Performance monitoring 
arrangements

 Annual and in-year 
reports on delivery of 
key performance 
indicators by internal 
and/or external review 
agencies

Reviews of performance
Performance Management Framework
Internal Audit reports to Audit Board
Policy Overview Committee reviews
Service Plans



APPENDIX B

Page 64 of 65

OBJECTIVE 5: Evaluate assurances and identify gaps in control/assurances

STEP 1: The authority has made adequate arrangements to identify, receive and evaluate reports from identified internal and external 
assurance providers to identify areas of weakness in controls 

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

1. Responsibilities for the 
evaluation of assurances are 
clearly defined throughout the 
organisation

 Minutes of committee 
meetings

 Training plans
 Job descriptions
 Committee terms of 

reference
 Annual assurance 

statement of ethical 
governance to Audit 
Board

Committee reports and minutes
Monitoring Officer Annual Report to the Audit 
Board
Terms of Reference of committees
Statutory Officers’ defined roles
Job Profiles
Management Team minutes  

2. Mechanism established for 
collecting governance 
assurances
 Overall responsibility 

allocated to governance 
senior officer group

 Required assurances 
are agreed and 
recorded

 Central record of all 
assurances (either 
evidence file, or 
showing clear link to 
where evidence is held)

 Clear guidance as to 
evaluation procedure 
including assurance 
over risks, 
independence and 
objectivity of 

 Terms of 
reference and key 
responsibilities

 Record of 
assurances required 
and received is held 
and is complete

 Approved 
written guidance re-
evaluation procedure

 Scoring 
matrix/methodology 
(Not all assurances 
are suitable for 
grading; many will be 
subjective anyway  
Key points are that 
there is a consistent 
and reliable 
assessment process 

Audit Board Terms of Reference
Internal audit function
External auditor reports
Risk Management Strategy
Management Team
Monitoring Officer Annual Report

An appropriate self- assessment approach has 
been adopted with statements signed by Service 
Managers bi-annually and more often if there 
are significant changes.



APPENDIX B

Page 65 of 65

Possible sources of assurance: Evidenced by: What do DBC have in place? Gaps and areas to 
develop

assurances
 Defined evaluation 

mechanism
 Timetable for 

completion by statutory 
deadline 

 Gap assessment – 
performed and 
challenged

and that the 
conclusions drawn are 
in line with the 
evidence produced)

 An agreed 
timetable, allowing for 
in-year evidence 
gathering and 
assessment and for 
the period between 
the year-end and the 
date of the 
governance 
assurance statement 
(timetable driven by 
that for the production 
of the annual 
statement of 
accounts)

 Gap 
assessment results 
and actions arising 
there from

 Minutes of 
meetings

 Annual report 
of Audit Manager – 
including opinion on 
internal control and 
risk management 
framework

 Reports of 
external auditor and 
other external review 
agencies





Governance Action Plan 2017-18 Review Appendix C 
         

Action - Principles Milestones Date Lead 
Officer(s)

Progress

1 Develop Workforce Strategy Report to Management 
Team

Dec 2017 HR Business 
Advisor

A draft review has 
been started but 
has been delayed 
pending changes 
to the HR and 
Payroll setup.



Governance Action Plan 2017-18 Review Appendix C 
         

Action - Process Milestones Date Lead Officer(s) Progress

A Finalise the review and update of 
HR policies and employee 
handbook including statutory 
officer disciplinary procedures and 
codes of conduct.

Programme for each 
policy

Final sign off by MD

Oct 2017 HR Business Advisor Policies in draft format 
but to be reviewed in 
line with new 
HR/Payroll setup.

B Asset Management 
Review/Properties’ Strategies

Review commissioned Sep 17 Head of Legal 
Services 

Review undertaken to 
be reported to 
Cabinet shortly 
alongside action plan.

C Compile staff declarations of 
interest into central register

To be incorporated into 
part of the appraisal 
process.

Sep 17 Strategic Director 
(Internal Services)

A complete list of staff 
declarations has now 
been collated. Staff 
will be asked to 
confirm their 
declaration is up to 
date as part of the 
appraisal process.

D Update training on ethical 
governance

Training Provided Dec 17 Head of Legal 
Services

Place on hold 
following potential 
future legislation 
changes.

E Corporate Plan to be refreshed 
and key PIs to be reconsidered

Cabinet 

General Assembly of 
the Council

June 17

July 17

Policy and Corporate 
Support Manager

Plan updated, new 
indicators agreed. 
Approved by Cabinet 
and GAC



Governance Action Plan 2017-18 Review Appendix C 
         

F Review of data protection practices  
to comply with GDPR and training

Create Action Plan Sept 17 Head of Legal 
Services

Training for officers 
and members 
organised – IARs 
almost complete – 
policies being drafted

G Further training to be provided to 
managers on risk management

Identify Training Plan

Deliver Training

Aug 17

Sep 17

Financial Services 
Manager

Discussion took place 
in Service Managers 
Workshop. No 
additional actions 
required. 

H Review Capital Project 
Assessment Process

Proposal to 
Management Team

Sep 17 Financial Services 
Manager / Strategic 
Director (Internal 
Services)

Annual request for 
bids. Business Cases 
for proposals were 
provided, which were 
evaluated by 
Directors.

J Operational and Strategic Risks to 
be added and monitored through 
the Covalent system

Transfer risks and 
actions and develop 
reports

Dec 17 Policy and Corporate 
Support Manager

New template for 
service manager 
reports and risk still 
under consideration 
by Management 
Team.

K Financial Guidance to be updated Management Approval Dec 17 Financial Services 
Manager

Completed.





Governance Action Plan 2018-19 Annex 1
         

Actions Milestones Date Lead Officer(s)

1 Develop Workforce Strategy Report to Management 
Team

December 
2018

HR Business Advisor

2 Adapt draft HR policies to new 
arrangements and clear drafts for 
use. Provide briefings to relevant 
staff.

Policies completed 

Policies agreed

Briefing arranged

May 18

June 18

July 18

HR Business Advisor

3 New performance indicators to be 
considered.

Indicators to be agreed 
by Cabinet Dec 18

Policy and Corporate 
Support Manager

4 Add operation risks to performance 
system and include reviews on 
agenda at Director/Service 
Manager meetings.

Risks to be added to 
performance system 
after next Review

Risks to be discussed 
at meetings

Dec 18

Immediate

Financial Services 
Manager 

5 Preparation to be put in place for 
comprehensive member training 
after next election

Report to Management 
Team

Dec 18 Democratic Services 
Manager

6 Update Policies and Procedures 
for GDPR compliance

Report to Management 
Team

May 25th Head of Legal 
Services/ All staff

7 Business continuity arrangements 
to be reviewed particularly around 
homeworking

Report to Management 
Team

December 
18

ICT Manager



Governance Action Plan 2018-19 Annex 1
         

8 Complete Cyber Security Action 
Plan as presented to Audit Board 
in Jan 2017

Report to Management 
Team

June 18 ICT Manager



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS FOLLOW UP REVIEW OF THE 
INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE

1. Summary

1.1 This report presents the PricewaterhouseCoopers follow up review report 
to Members, together with the associated action plan. 

2. RECOMMENDATION
     

2.1 That Members note the findings from the PricewaterhouseCoopers follow 
up review and approve the associated action plan at Appendix A to the 
report.

3. Background and Discussion

3.1 The draft findings from the PricewaterhouseCoopers (PWC) follow up review 
of the Internal Audit service was presented to the Audit Board in January 
2018 (minute number 39). PWC’s formal report has now been finalised and 
is presented at Appendix A for Members to note.

3.2 Management have given careful consideration to the findings within the 
report and an associated action plan is now presented at Appendix B for 
Members to approve. This action plan will help to ensure that the Internal 
Audit service fully meets the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards whilst 
also ensuring that the service continues to improve and meets the 
requirements of both Management and Members.

4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan

4.1 A robust Internal Audit function contributes towards the effective 
management of the Council and facilitates the achievement of good value for 
money in service provision. 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other administrative implications and risk 
assessments

Financial Implications The cost of the follow-up review has 
been shared with Sevenoaks District 
Council and has been met from within 
existing internal audit resources.

Legal Implications None
Staffing Implications Consideration will be given to the level 

of resource required to ensure there is 
an effective Internal Audit team moving 
forward.

Administrative Implications None
Risk Assessment The external review of Internal Audit was 



AUDIT BOARD
25 APRIL 2018

carried out to meet the requirements of 
the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards to ensure that the service is 
effective in carrying out its statutory 
duties. These duties are aimed at 
strengthening internal control, risk 
management and governance processes 
within the Council. The follow up review 
has highlighted areas for further 
development and an action plan has 
been drawn up to strengthen the 
effectiveness of the Internal Audit Team.

6. Appendices

Appendix A – PWC Report
Appendix B – Action Plan

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Documents 
consulted

Date File Ref Report 
Author

Section and
Directorate

Exempt
Information 
Category

- Sarah Martin
01322 343402

Strategic 
Director  
(Internal 
Services)

N/A



www.pwc.co.uk 

 

Internal Audit  

External Quality 
Assessment Follow Up   
– Final Report 

 

 

  

 
Dartford Borough Council            
February 2018 

 

 

http://www.pwc.co.uk/


 

 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, No.1 Embankment Place, London, WC2N 6RH 
T: +44 (0) 20 7583 5000, F: +44 (0) 20 7212 7500,  www.pwc.co.uk 

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England with registered number 
OC303525. The registered office of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is 1 Embankment Place, London WC2N 6RH.  
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Services Authority for designated 
investment business. 

Sarah Martin 
Dartford Borough Council 
Civic Centre 
Home Gardens 
Dartford 
Kent 
DA1 1DR 
 

05 February 2018 

Dear Sarah, 

Please find enclosed our memorandum in relation to the follow up of the 2015 External Quality 
Assessment of the Dartford Borough Council Internal Audit function (“the Internal Audit function” or 
“Internal Audit”) in accordance with our Engagement Letter dated 8 August 2017 and the related 
Terms and Conditions. 

The PwC team, including Stuart Brown, Sam Wilkinson and myself, would like to recognise the 
contribution, support and assistance we received from the Internal Audit team and management 
during the course of the review. 

Yours faithfully, 

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

 

Justin Martin 
Justin.f.martin@uk.pwc.com 
T: (0) 207 212 4269



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  1 

 

1. Background 

The purpose of the review was to follow up on the implementation status of the External Quality 
Assessment (EQA) review undertaken by us in 2015. Our follow up review included a self-assessment 
against the previous recommendations raised, including corroboration to supporting documentation and 
internal audit working papers; and interviews with key business and Internal Audit stakeholders. 

The Internal Audit service for Dartford is shared with Sevenoaks District Council and this assessment has 

been undertaken as a joint exercise but is reported separately to each Council. We have considered the 

context and organisation of the Internal Audit service at each council separately.  

2. Scope of our work 

The scope of our follow up review was as follows: 

- We reviewed the progress made against the action plan that was agreed to address the findings raised 
in the Internal Audit EQA completed in May 2015. Results of the progress that has been made is 
summarised in sections 3 and 4, and detailed in full in Appendix A. 

- As part of the work in 1 above, we have undertaken a high level review of whether the Internal Audit 
service aligns to the needs of audit stakeholders and good practice seen at other councils. This is 
detailed in sections 5 and 6. 

- In addition, we considered the current structure of the Internal Audit team and identified points for 

consideration to help the Internal Audit service meet the needs of audit stakeholders. This is detailed 

in section 7 and we have included a summary of some of the options available within Appendix B 

and C. 

3. Summary of progress against EQA recommendations 

We have found that positive progress has been made in many areas to improve the Internal Audit 
service due to the efforts of the Internal Audit team and management. However, further work is 
required to ensure that the service is aligned to good practice and wider stakeholder needs. The table 
below summarises the progress made against the EQA recommendations raised in each area: 

 

EQA 
Rating 
(2015)* 

Number of recommendations 
EQA 

Follow 
Up 

Rating 
(2017) 

Direction 
of travel Raised in 

the EQA N
o

t 
 i

m
p

le
m

en
td

 

P
a

rt
ia

ll
y

 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d

 

F
u

ll
y

 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d

 

Organisation and 
independence   4† 3† 1 -   

Audit team 
 2 2 - -   

Quality assurance and 
audit management   6 1 2 3   

Communication and 
Reporting  6 - 3 3   

Quality, Tools and 
Performance Management  4 - 2 2   

Total 22 6 8 8   

*an explanation of the ratings used are detailed on page 2  

† Recommendation within raised in relation to Dartford Borough Council only   

External Quality Assessment Follow Up 
Memorandum 

 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  2 

EQA Ratings 

The following ratings were been to assess each area in the initial EQA:  
 

Good practice and in some 
areas at leading practice 
based on PwC experience 
and benchmarks  

 

Good practice with some 
minor improvements or 
opportunities to align to 
management expectations  

 

Satisfactory  
with scope for 
improvement  

 

Unsatisfactory  
with significant 
issues  

The EQA recommendations raised in 2015 have been assessed and RAG rated as follows: not 
implemented, partially implemented, or fully implemented. 

Where applicable, follow-up actions have been raised which are required to fully implement the findings 

from the External Quality Assessment. These are detailed in Appendix A. 

4. Key observations from follow up of EQA recommendations 

The observations from our review of the implementation of the EQA recommendations are detailed in 
Appendix A alongside an action plan to take the recommendations forward. The key observations are 
summarised below: 

1. Organisation and Independence 
The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) requirements for the Chief Audit Executive 
(CAE) at Dartford Borough Council have not yet been met. The current position, including any 
identified conflicts and associated safeguards should be clearly documented in the Audit Charter. 
Independence safeguards and updates are required to the Internal Audit Charter and Service Level 
Agreement to ensure these remain fit-for-purpose 
 
In addition, a coherent strategy and vision still needs to be developed to ensure that the Internal 
Audit team, and the wider organisation, has a clear understanding of what Internal Audit can deliver 
and what it wants from its Internal Audit service going forward. Consideration should be given to 
the needs of stakeholders (section 4), alignment with best practice (section 5) and considerations for 
the future (section 6).  

 
2. Audit team  

We identified that only limited progress has been made against the recommendations raised as part 
of the EQA in 2015. We understand that this is due to staffing pressures within the Internal Audit 
team. A skills assessment of the current team should be undertaken to identify any gaps against the 
Internal Audit strategy once developed. Once completed, a schedule of training should be 
implemented to help develop individuals in the team to meet any skills gaps and to ensure the 
continual personal development of the Internal Audit team. 

 
3. Quality assurance and audit management 

The majority of the EQA recommendations raised in this area have begun to be implemented. 
However, training is required to help embed the new processes and ensure there is adequate focus 
on quality. In addition, the audit manual requires updating to ensure it is a useful tool for the 
Internal Audit team. Any review of the operating model or structure of the function should ensure 
robust quality assurance and audit management processes remain in place. 

 
4. Communication and reporting 

Improvements have been made to the communication of the annual opinion to the Audit 
Committees, and the reporting to them over audit and implementation performance. The majority 
of EQA recommendations in this areas have now been implemented. However, we found that key 
audit stakeholders remain unclear on the range of services offered by Internal Audit, and where they 
can add further value. 

 
5. Quality, tools and performance management  

There has been good progress against the EQA recommendations in this area, including the 
implementation of the audit management system, Teammate. However, improvements should be 
sought to ensure the Internal Audit team fully utilises the functionality of Teammate and that they 
have access to appropriate technology, for example data analytics tools, and adequate knowledge 
sharing is in place to share good practices across each Council. 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  3 

5. The needs of stakeholders 

As part of our follow up to the EQA, we met with key stakeholders across both of the councils in the shared 
service to understand whether the Internal Audit function currently meets their needs. The following 
themes were identified from our interviews: 

Engagement and alignment with the wider business - In general, stakeholders noted that 
engagement between the wider-business and Internal Audit requires improvement.  The interviewed 
stakeholders noted that Internal Audit needs to solidify its position as a trusted advisor within the Council 
to ensure it has the engagement and buy-in from the wider-business.  

Skills within the Internal Audit team - Stakeholders noted improvements in the service delivery, 
though there remained concerns regarding the team’s ability to provide deep insight in complex areas. 
Stakeholders noted that due to staff changes within the team there had been historic issues in the 
consistency of understanding of service areas. 

Understanding what Internal Audit can deliver/ value-add reviews - It was noted that 
stakeholders had begun to use Internal Audit to undertake ‘value add’ reviews, rather than more 
traditional, compliance-based audits. However, there was a lack of understanding of where Internal Audit 
had the skills and ability to deliver these types of reviews. In particular, there was a lack of understanding 
of how and where Internal Audit could add value, and what other services they could offer. 

Improvements in the delivery of Internal Audit work - We found through interviews with key 
stakeholders that there has been an overall improvement in the perception of the Internal Audit service. 
There was positive feedback in how the audit plan was being managed and the timeliness of delivery. 
Stakeholders noted that the insight within reporting had begun to improve, however, there was a need to 
ensure that the Internal Audit team had the relevant skills to deliver deep value.  

 

Aligning with stakeholder needs 

To align to the needs of the stakeholders, identified above, the Internal Audit service requires robust 
leadership to ensure that a clear strategy and vision is developed to meet stakeholder needs. This will 
help solidify Internal Audit’s position within the Council and help foster greater engagement with the 
wider-business. As noted in the section above, this has not yet been implemented from the previous EQA 
recommendations. 

Internal Audit should ensure it truly understands, and therefore aligns its work to, the key risks facing 
the Council. This should include assessments of all current risks, and those risks emerging across the 
sector and from changes in the way that the Council operates. We noted improvements in this area, from 
the previous EQA, and an Audit Needs Assessment is now undertaken annually. However, without 
meaningful engagement with the business and a complete understanding of the Council’s key risks this 
will not currently ensure that assurance is provided where most needed. 

Where specialist skills are required to provide assurance over these key risks, Internal Audit should 
ensure that the team have the skills and ability to do so. Where built up, these skills and abilities should 
be communicated to the wider-business, and key audit stakeholders, to ensure they are utilised 
effectively. 

In developing the Internal Audit service, consideration should be given to the needs of audit stakeholders  
alongside good practice seen across the sector, which is detailed below. 

6. Alignment with good practice 

We have set out above what stakeholders across different service areas value from Internal Audit and the 
level at which they feel Internal Audit is operating at the moment. This has identified that there is more 
to do in the areas of leadership of the Internal Audit function, skills and capabilities and the value and 
insight that Internal Audit can add. 

  



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  4 

PwC has identified Eight Attributes of Internal Audit Excellence, which are set out in the diagram below: 

  

These attributes are framed around the two key functions of a successful Internal Audit function: to 
protect the business and to deliver measurable value.  

From discussion with key Internal Audit stakeholders, our review identified the following: 

 Business alignment: The Internal Audit service needs to ensure that it understands the key 

objectives of the business and the associated risks and focus its work around this. This included the 

need for the Internal Audit to be more forward looking, providing support and input to projects. 

 Stakeholder management: Internal Audit should have a greater engagement at a senior level to 

align with the organisation’s direction of travel and to focus on the key risks and priorities. 

 Talent model: The need for Internal Audit to be able to draw down on specialist skills to cover 

emerging risk and complex risks, for example, those within IT. 

 Technology: Internal Audit has successfully implemented Teammate as its audit management 

software. This is a positive step forward which should help to promote a consistency of approach and 

enforce quality assurance processes. 

 Risk focus: Due to resource constraints and limited access to specialist skills the Internal Audit plan 

does not pick up on some of the key risk areas facing the Council, for example, IT risk, contract 

management and key programme reviews. 

 Service culture: Feedback was that the experience of working with Internal Audit has improved, 

due to improved personnel and processes developed over the last 12 months. 

 Quality and Innovation: The quality review process has improved with all working papers and 

deliverables being reviewed by the Acting Internal Audit Manager. Innovation in audit, including the 

use of data to enhance the audit approach is limited and although the Acting Internal Audit Manager 

does interact with peers at the Kent Audit Group further work is needed to refresh and bring new 

ideas to further progress the audit approach. 

 Cost optimisation: We are unable to comment on cost optimisation as cost benchmarking has not 

been undertaken as part of this review. 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  5 

7. Future considerations 

Key considerations for the future 

From our consideration of the progress made against the action plan raised during our EQA (section 4), 
the views of stakeholders (section 5) and alignment with good practice (section 6), there are a number 
of considerations and decisions which need to be made to ensure the Internal Audit service provides the 
best value to the Council.  

In Appendix C, we have detailed some questions for the Council (along with Dartford Borough Council) 
to consider. These should be discussed to decide upon Internal Audit’s strategy, vision and thus what 
the best delivery model would be for both councils. Below, we have provided some insight, which 
should be considered. 

Structure and Delivery Model 

Having the right structure and delivery model is important to have an effective and efficient Internal 
Audit function. There are several different models for the delivery of an Internal Audit service. These 
include: 

 In-house; 

 Co-source; 

 Outsource; and 

 Shared service. 

There are advantages and disadvantages with each model and the Council will need to decide which 
model would work best to meet its requirements. In Appendix B, we have summarised the key pros and 
cons that should be considered for each model. 

The Council is currently in a shared service with Sevenoaks, which involves the core principles of a 
shared service, albeit the staff are currently still employed by their original Council and no separate 
vehicle has been set up to house the shared service. This is a model that we have seen elsewhere in local 
government. We have also seen similar models where the shared service is fully hosted by one Council, 
with all employees directly employed by that Council on harmonised terms and conditions (for 
example, the Ealing Shared Service).  

In the Kent area there are a number of established Internal Audit partnerships and shared service 
models. In Kent we understand that there are the following: 

 Dartford Borough Council and Sevenoaks District Council; 

 Kent County Council and Tonbridge and Malling; 

 East Kent Internal Audit Partnership (Thanet, Canterbury, Dover, Shepway); and 

 Mid Kent Internal Audit Partnership (Ashford, Maidstone, Swale, Tunbridge Wells). 

The Council should consider these options to understand which would fit best with the needs of the 
stakeholders across both Councils and deliver greatest value.



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC 

Appendices 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  I 

Appendix A – Detailed outcome of follow up 

Details of recommendation made Outcome Assessment Outcome 

RAG 

Follow Up actions required 

1. Organisation and independence 

1.0 Chief Audit Executive     

The Council should make clear who the Chief Audit 
Executive (CAE) is as a priority and ensure that this 
person and the associated reporting arrangements 
are compliant with the PSIAS. 

The Chief Audit Executive, is the Strategic Director 
for Internal Services and also the Council's s151 
officer. There is a conflict of interest in these roles, 
which has also been noted and raised by the 
Council’s external auditors. 

 

It was noted that the Council’s Managing Director 
reviews all internal audit reports. The CAE retains 
ultimate sign-off of all internal audit report.  

 

There is no discussion of these conflicts, and any 
safeguards in place, within the Council’s Audit 
Charter. 

N
o
t 
y
e
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

The Council should consider the position of 
the Chief Audit Executive and ensure that 
this position is compliant with the PSIAS. 

Any potential conflicts and the associated 
safeguards should be noted in the Council’s 
Audit Charter. 

1.1 Strategy and vision      

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager should 
work with key stakeholders including the Chief 
Executive and the board to understand expectations 
of Internal Audit; what they want from the service 
now and in the future. This should be captured in an 
updated strategy and vision for Internal Audit and an 
analysis undertaken to determine what additional 
skills and resources are needed to achieve this 
vision (see further recommendations below on Audit 
Team).  

There remains a lack of clear strategic vision for the 
shared Internal Audit service.  

Through interviews with the Internal Audit team and 
key audit stakeholders, we noted that there remains 
a gap in what Internal Audit delivers and where 
stakeholders would like the service to be. This 
includes a lack of awareness from some 
stakeholders of what Internal Audit could deliver to 
provide better value in their service areas. 

A clearly defined vision and strategy would provide 
clarity over Internal Audit’s priorities to both the 
Internal Audit team, and the wider organisation. This 
would also help to ensure that available resources 
are prioritised and most effectively utilised.  

N
o
t 
y
e
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

A vision and strategy for the Internal Audit 
service should be considered with input from 
key stakeholders and senior management. A 
clear vision of what role Internal Audit will 
play, and how this will be achieved, should 
be developed. This should including any 
investment that is required to get there, e.g. 
IT infrastructure and training. 

The strategy should ensure that Internal 
Audit’s objectives are clear and expectations 
are managed within the Internal Audit team 
and the wider organisation. 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  II 

Details of recommendation made Outcome Assessment Outcome 

RAG 

Follow Up actions required 

1.2 Internal Audit Charter       

A number of improvements should be made as 
follows: 

The Internal Audit Charter was updated following the 
EQA to include those areas noted in our initial 
recommendation. 

However, through discussion with the Internal Audit 
team, it was noted that there are additional conflicts 
of interest, where team members are undertaking 
risk management and procurement roles without any 
identified safeguards in place. 

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 

The Internal Audit Charter should be 
updated to identify all conflicts of interest 
within the service and appropriate mitigating 
safeguards. The Charter should be updated 
periodically to ensure it remains up-to-date. 

- The Charter should clearly define the ‘board’ and 
‘senior management’ within the Authority; 

- Further detail should be included on work 
undertaken outside of the audit programme and 
independence safeguards in place to maintain 
auditor independence; 

- The PSIAS state that the Charter should define the 
role of Internal Audit in fraud related work; this is 
not captured in the Charter at present; and 

- Reporting in place, including the annual summary 
report should be noted in the Charter. 

1.3 Service Level Agreement (SLA)  

 

 

 

 
Ongoing operational issues should be resolved as a 
matter of urgency and the SLA should be updated 
and finalised to ensure arrangements for the 
provision of the Internal Audit service are clear.  

There is no up-to-date Service Level Agreement 
(“SLA”) in place between the two Council’s (Dartford 
and Sevenoaks) regarding the shared Internal Audit 
service. 

A number of operational challenges have been 
raised, which currently impact the audit shared 
service. These include IT, office location and 
differing performance and appraisal systems across 
the two Councils and thus between audit team 
members. 
 
As noted in 1.1 above, through discussion with 
stakeholders, it was identified that they would benefit 
from greater communication over what services 
Internal Audit can provide. This would help to ensure 
that Internal Audit provides value and would help to 
raise the profile of the function. 

N
o
t 
y
e
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

An SLA should be agreed by both Council’s 
regarding the Internal Audit service to 
ensure that arrangements for the provision 
of Internal Audit services are clear.  

The operational issues should be resolved 
through partnership working and the SLA 
updated and finalised to confirm 
arrangements.  
 
Once an Internal Audit strategy and vision 
have been agreed (see 1.1 above), a brief of 
services offered by Internal Audit should be 
created. This should be communicated with 
senior management across the Council and 
be utilised to drive conversations in the 
planning of next year's audit plan. 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  III 

Details of recommendation made Outcome Assessment Outcome 

RAG 

Follow Up actions required 

2. Audit team 

2.1 Skills assessment and training/ development plan  

 

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager should 
undertake a skills assessment of the current team 
against audit needs of the Council now and in the 
future. Where gaps are identified a training/ 
development plan should be created to align the 
audit team to the current and future audit needs of 
the Council.  

There has been no skills assessment or formalised 
training programme for the Internal Audit team to 
ensure they have the necessary skills and 
development opportunities in place. 

Without this it may be impossible to identify the gaps 
in the skills of the Audit Team, against the audit 
requirements of the Council, to fill these as required 
with training, secondments or purchasing services. 

N
o
t 
y
e
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

Once the Internal Audit strategy and vision 
have been created, the Internal Audit team 
should consider the skills and training needs 
of staff to ensure that the service can meet 
its strategic objectives. 

Where gaps are identified a training/ 
development plan should be created to align 
the audit team to the current and future audit 
needs of the Council (see 2.2 below) 

As previously noted, it is not always practical 
or possible to train an in house team to cover 
all of the specialist areas required from an 
Internal Audit function. Some options for 
consideration to take this forward have been 
set out for management’s consideration in 
Appendix B 

In some cases it is not practical or possible to train 
an in house team to cover all of the specialist areas 
that an Internal Audit function needs to look at. 
Therefore, a review of the operating model is 
required to determine whether such skills and 
experience can be sought from within Council 
departments (on a secondment basis), from audit 
functions at other Councils or from private sector 
Internal Audit providers 

2.2 Training      

Weaknesses were identified in audit files reviewed, 
see 2.3.3 and 2.3.4. There are therefore some 
immediate training needs within the audit team 
including articulation of risk and identification of 
controls 

As noted in 2.1 above, there remains a lack of 
formalised training, e.g. skills matrices and training 
schedules, to ensure the Internal Audit team have 
the necessary skills and development opportunities 
in place. 

N
o
t 
y
e
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

 

Once the Internal Audit strategy and vision 
have been created, the Internal Audit team 
should consider the skills and training needs 
of staff to ensure that the service can meet 
its strategic objectives. 

Formalised training should be introduced to 
support the development of skills within the 
Internal Audit team. This will help ensure that 
the team have clear development goals and 
ensure that Internal Audit provides value to 
the Councils. 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  IV 

Details of recommendation made Outcome Assessment Outcome 

RAG 

Follow Up actions required 

3. Quality assurance and audit management     

3.1 Audit risk assessment and planning       

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager should 
ensure a full risk assessment is undertaken, this 
should be kept up to date, discussed with senior 
management and the audit committee and should 
drive the audit plan.  

Audit needs assessment is undertaken separately 
for each Council. The risk assessment identifies:  

 reviews requested by management; 

 areas that have a high or medium rating on 
relevant risk registers;  

 those areas that have not been audited in 
over 3 years; and 

 areas with major changes in systems. 

F
u
lly

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 No further recommendations noted. 

3.2 Audit scoping/ planning meetings       

These should be mandated in the audit manual and 
held for all audits to ensure auditors gain a more 
detailed understanding of the area under review and 
the key risks. This also helps auditors to build rapport 
with auditees and manage expectations. The 
Strategic Management Team should support this 
approach.  

We confirmed with discussion from staff that audit 
scoping/ planning meetings are now undertaken 
prior to each review. 

However, the audit manual requires update to 
contain information regarding the procedures for 
audit scoping/ planning meetings. This will ensure it 
remains a useful tool to the Internal Audit team. 

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 The audit manual should be updated to 

include information on the procedure for 
holding audit scoping/ planning meetings. 
This should include guidance over the 
identification of risks, which should be used 
across all audits to ensure consistency in 
approach. 

3.3 Content of Audit Brief       

The audit brief should be expanded to include a 
section on limitations, generic risks should be 
tailored to the area under review and risks should be 
clearly articulated. The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud 
Manager should hold a risk session with auditors to 
help them more clearly articulate risks.  

We obtained and reviewed a recent Internal Audit 
review audit brief and confirmed that the template 
contains information regarding limitations of scope 
and specific risks tailored to review. 

 

F
u
lly

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 No further recommendations noted. 

3.4 Identification and assessment of controls       

Test papers require auditors to document controls 
but this requirement is not being complied with. 
Additional training and guidance should be provided 
to all auditors to enable them to effectively identify, 
document and assess controls to mitigate risks in the 
processes/ systems under review for all risks 
identified in the audit brief.  

We obtained and reviewed a recent Internal Audit 
review working paper and confirmed that controls 
had been appropriately identified.  

However, we noted from discussion with the Internal 
Audit team that there has not been any additional 
training in place to ensure that controls are identified 
and assessed consistently across the service. 

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 Additional training should be considered to 

ensure that auditors consistently identify key 
controls and assess their mitigation of 
identified risks in the audit brief. 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  V 

Details of recommendation made Outcome Assessment Outcome 

RAG 

Follow Up actions required 

3.5 Sample sizes       

Sample size guidance should be included in the audit 
manual to ensure consistency in sample testing 
across the audit team. Auditors should then justify 
sample sizes in working papers.  

The audit manual requires update to provide details 
of sampling methodology and the sample sizes, 
which should be used by auditors. This will ensure it 
remains a useful tool to the Internal Audit team. 

N
o
t 
y
e
t 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
 The audit manual should be updated to 

include detail on sample size selection. The 
sample sizes utilised by the auditors should 
be included within all working papers. This 
should be checked as part of the on-going 
quality assurance. 

3.6 Review of reports and working papers       

The current review process should be reviewed to 
ensure adequate challenge, oversight and 
consistency of all reports and working papers.  

We confirmed through discussion with the Audit, 
Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager that all reports and 
working papers are reviewed prior to being finalised. 
The Internal Audit team confirmed that there was 
regular challenge and oversight of their work. 

F
u
lly

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 No further recommendations noted. 

4. Communication and Reporting      

4.1 Communication of audit risk assessment  

 
 

 

An audit risk assessment should be undertaken and 
the results of this should be discussed with relevant 
stakeholders and then used to inform the audit plan. 
The audit plan should be presented to the 
Management team and the Audit Committee in the 
context of this risk assessment.  

It was noted through discussion of key Internal Audit 
stakeholders that better communication of what audit 
can offer would help add value to service areas (esp. 
in project and IT). This should be considered as part 
of the Internal Audit strategy and the skills 
assessment to ensure Internal Audit delivers value 
to the Councils. 

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 Internal Audit should consider providing a 

brief of ‘services offered’ that can be 
communicated with senior management. 
This should help drive conversations in the 
planning of next year's audit plan to ensure 
that Internal Audit delivers value to the 
organisations. 

4.2 Audit reports       

The Audit, Risk and Anti- Fraud Manager should 
review the report template and consider including an 
executive summary, limitations, the period covered 
by testing and good practice feedback. When 
reviewing audit reports the Audit, Risk and Anti-
Fraud Manager should ensure adequate context is 
included in the action plans, and that actions are 
agreed and assigned a responsible officer and 
implementation deadline.  

We obtained and reviewed a recent Internal Audit 
review audit report and confirmed that it includes an 
executive summary, the period covered was noted, 
as was good practice feedback. We noted that 
limitations of scope was not noted, however, on 
review of the audit brief, none were identified. 

  

 P
a
rt

ia
lly

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 

Although Limitations are noted within the 
scope section of the report, a separate 
limitations of scope section should be added 
to the audit report template and noted within 
all audit reports prepared. 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  VI 

Details of recommendation made Outcome Assessment Outcome 

RAG 

Follow Up actions required 

4.3 Annual report       

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager should 
review the opinion statement in the annual audit 
report and update this where necessary to reflect the 
requirements of the PSIAS.  

We obtained the Council’s Annual Report for 
2016/17 and confirmed that this had been reviewed 
and updated to reflect PSIAS requirements to state 
an overall opinion on the control environment at the 
Council. 

F
u
lly

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 No further recommendations noted. 

4.4 Summary reporting       

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager should 
ensure all relevant KPIs are regularly reported to 
Strategic Management Team and the Audit 
Committee.  

We confirmed through discussion with the Audit, 
Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager, and Senior 
Management, that KPI’s are reported and discussed 
regularly at team management meetings, and with 
the Audit Board as required. We obtained minutes of 
the Audit Board and confirmed that progress against 
the audit plan is discussed and noted. 

F
u
lly

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 No further recommendations noted. 

4.5 Reporting of audit recommendation 
implementation 

  
 

  

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager should 
make it clear to the Audit Committee that, at present, 
reporting of implementation is based on confirmation 
from the audit owner and no audit follow up 
procedures undertaken. 

It was confirmed that evidence is now being sought 
to verify that recommendation has been followed up 
where required. 

We obtained and reviewed the minutes of the 
January 2016 Audit Board and noted that a summary 
of the recommendations outstanding was discussed 
and noted. 

F
u
lly

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 No further recommendations noted. 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  VII 

Details of recommendation made Outcome Assessment Outcome 

RAG 

Follow Up actions required 

4.6 Validation of implementation of audit 
recommendations 

  
 

  

Validation of implementation should be brought up to 
date as a matter of urgency, test papers should also 
be created so it is clear what evidence has been 
reviewed to confirm implementation. Guidance on 
the level of audit evidence deemed appropriate 
should also be included in the audit manual.  

It was confirmed that evidence is now being sought 
to verify that recommendation has been followed up 
where required. We obtained and reviewed the 
minutes of the January 2016 Audit Board and noted 
that a summary of the recommendations outstanding 
was discussed and noted. 

As noted above, the audit manual requires update. 
This should be undertaken to provide details of the 
level of evidence required to assess implementation 
of a recommendation raised. This will ensure it 
remains a useful tool to the Internal Audit team. 

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 

The audit manual should be updated to 
include detail on the level of audit evidence 
required to confirm the implementation of 
follow-up actions. This should be clearly 
documented in assessing implementation 
and checked as part of the on-going quality 
assurance. 

5. Quality, Tools and Performance Management     

5.1 Performance metrics      

The Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud manager should 
consider more formally tracking time between 
completion of fieldwork and reporting to ensure audit 
findings are reported and agreed in a timely manner.  

It was confirmed through discussion with the Internal 
Audit team that audit time is tracked on an Excel 
spreadsheet. However, it was noted that this this will 
be taken forward through measuring this on the new 
audit software, Teammate. 

F
u
lly

 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

No further recommendations noted. 

5.2 Time delays       

Whilst the Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud manager has 
implemented tracking of audit days and auditors are 
required to provide explanations of additional time/ 
audit days needed to complete audit work and seek 
approval, delays are still occurring and explanations 
are not always sufficiently documented. The Audit, 
Risk and Anti-Fraud manager should seek to get to 
the root causes of these delays and incorporating 
unexplained delays into staff performance 
appraisals. This also needs to be considered as part 
of the risk assessment and planning process to 
ensure that audits are as efficient and effective as 
possible. 

As noted above, we confirmed through discussion 
with the Internal Audit team that audit time is tracked 
on an Excel spreadsheet. This allows for the Audit, 
Risk and Anti-Fraud Manager to better understand 
delays and mitigate them. From discussion with the 
Internal Audit team it was noted that though delays 
may occur these are now better managed and 
brought into the 1-2-1 meetings with individual 
auditors. 

F
u
lly

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

No further recommendations noted. 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  VIII 

Details of recommendation made Outcome Assessment Outcome 

RAG 

Follow Up actions required 

5.3 Audit tools and technology       

The audit team should consider implementing an 
electronic audit management tool to document 
audits to enable greater efficiency. They should also 
commence the use of Idea before knowledge gained 
through the training is lost and consider what other 
tools would be useful in the context of the Internal 
Audit strategy and vision.  

A piece of audit management software, Teammate, 
was procured to enable electronic management and 
documentation. This is in the process of being 
completely embedded to ensure all audit 
documentation is in one place. 

It was noted through discussion with the Internal 
Audit team that investment in key pieces of 
technology continues to be an issue. Staff noted that 
there are issues in computer hardware, which may 
contribute to inefficiencies in the service. 

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 Internal Audit should carefully consider 
investment in key pieces of audit technology. 
Hardware allowing staff to work flexibly and 
collaboratively may increase their efficiency 
and that of the service.   

5.4 Sharing knowledge and good practices 
across Councils 

  
 

  

The Internal Audit team should consider how they 
can better share knowledge and good practice 
across the two Councils where relevant. This is a key 
benefit of the shared service that is currently not 
being fully realised.  

We confirmed through discussion with the Internal 
Audit, Risk and Anti-Fraud manager that there is a 
standard agenda item at monthly audit meetings to 
discuss shared knowledge and good practice across 
the Councils. 

However, it was noted through discussion with key 
audit stakeholders that this is an area where they 
would like to see greater emphasis to ensure that 
lessons learnt, efficiencies and good practice can be 
shared across the shared service.  

P
a
rt

ia
lly

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 Internal Audit should consider how 
benchmarking and good practice can be 
better shared with key audit stakeholders. 
Discussion of this as a standard agenda item 
at all planning and feedback meetings, 
should be considered. In addition, 
knowledge sharing could be fostered 
through greater integration of audit work 
across the Councils. 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  IX 

Appendix B - Pros and Cons of various Internal Audit Delivery 

Models 

Model Advantages Disadvantages 

Full in-house  

Full in-sourcing is more viable where a ready supply of 
competent Internal Auditors are available from the 
local employment market. It can be perceived as 
inflexible from a budgetary perspective and in the local 
government sector prone to low levels of staff turnover.  

The main advantages from having solely in-house staff 
come from deep relationships with the authority and 
the development of extensive corporate memory for 
the team. 

 

 Continuity of Staff 

 Corporate Memory 

 Council relationships  

 Represents Value for Money where good staff are 
available and in post 

 

 Limited staff turnover and fresh insights 

 Restricted access to specialisms 

 No scope to flex down service costs 

 In some councils functions become old 
fashioned and fail to attract new talent and 
ideas 

 Limited resilience if staff are absent for any 
period of time 

 

Co-sourcing  

Co-sourcing is the current preferred model for 
resourcing Internal Audit services in London, 
facilitating both flexibility in budget management and 
resourcing for the service. Importantly it allows access 
to specialist auditors on demand and facilitates 
knowledge sharing with in-house teams.  

 

 Maintains succession of the function with an in-
house team and retains corporate memory 

 With the right partner it provides access to a wide 
range of specialist skills as and when required 
without incurring the full time employment costs  

 Allows skills transfer to the in-house team 

 Provides access to a firm’s auditing capability to 
help develop the in-house team’s approach. The 
costs of the continued enhancement of that 
approach is borne by the co-sourced partner 

 Allows flexibility within the service budget 

 Provides resilience and flexibility in the resourcing 
model 

 

 Continuity of staff can be low 

 Specialist skills will be priced at a higher rate 
than the cost for delivering basic audit work 

 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  X 

Model Advantages Disadvantages 

Outsource  

Full-outsourcing, involves all of the team transferring 
to a third party and the head of Internal Audit being 
provided by the third party. It can be an expensive 
solution with less flexibility, and is potentially only 
viable where co-sourcing cannot be established.     

 

 Transfer of management failure risk to a 3rd party 

 Provides access to resources where in-sourcing is 
not viable 

 Gives scope for specialist inputs 

 Gives access to a firm brand to accredit the function 

 Allows budget flexibility 

 

 Perception that is can be lower cost but this is 
not always the case 

 Limited corporate memory within the team 

 Continuity of staff can be low 

 Can lead to conflicts of interest if the same 
provider firm is asked to perform advisory 
work 

 No skills transfer to an in-house team 

 The head of Internal Audit may not be as 
embedded or knowledgeable of the 
organisation, as would be the case with an in-
house or co-source model 

 

Shared services  

Many public sector organisations are looking at the 
scope to share services. This can provide a more 
efficient and cost-effective alternative to carrying the 
cost of a service alone.  Effective sharing of services can 
range from an informal agreement to service the needs 
of combined entities, through to a formal joint working 
arrangements across process, activity and location.  

 Can provide good Value for Money if set up 
correctly 

 Enables development of specialist skills where there 
is increased volume 

 Permits economies of scale for team development 

 Provides resilience and flexibility in the resourcing 
model 

 

 

 Tailor made service can be sacrificed 

 Staff may not like changes to their working 
terms and conditions to harmonise process 
and performance across joined teams leading 
to inefficiency 

 Without scale or an external partner the 
ability to access specialist resources or 
resource flexibility may be limited 

 

Arms-length bodies, management buy outs or 
joint ventures  

Further along the spectrum lies the creation of Arms-
Length Bodies as separate legal entities to service the 
demand created by the abolition of the in-house 
service. The vehicles available for this include wholly 
owned subsidiary companies, management buy-outs or 
joint venture organisations with private sector 
partnership. 

 

This model may be the end evolution of the shared 
service model set out above. 

 More cost effective if created on a commercial basis 

 Ability to trade in open market conditions and 
generate revenue 

 Unlimited development opportunities if successful 
in the market place 

 

 Any performance issues for the in-house 
resources would undermine a commercial 
entity 

 Likely to require significant change to staff 
conditions TUPE’d over, for example pension 
sacrifice 

 Established market might be difficult to break 
into without a clear differentiation of the 
offering or price point  

 



 

Dartford Borough Council PwC  XI 

Appendix C – Key points to consider 

There are a number of questions that both Council’s should consider, independently and in collaboration, to help 
make a decision on what the best model would be for Internal Audit.  

These include: 

 Are both Councils aligned in their vision, culture and what they want from Internal Audit? 

 If both Councils have a different vision and need from Internal Audit can enough flexibility be built into 

the current model to deliver both? 

 Our review has identified the need for strong leadership of the internal audit function to help set the 

vision and deliver the changes desired by both Councils and the service. To help deliver the change could 

an interim senior internal audit resource be recruited? If so this individual could help shape the future 

vision and what model would be the best fit for both councils. 

 The team currently has limited resilience due to its size and full in-house set up. Any future model needs 

to consider resilience, flexibility and development opportunities for staff. 

 There is currently no use of apprentices or graduate trainers to support the service. There is an 

opportunity to create a new generation of auditors in the team, which would be cost effective and bring 

new ideas and thinking to the team. 

 Is there an appetite to expand/merge the shared service with another established partnership in Kent or 

even London (the vicinity of both Councils would make this possible)?  

 Even with greater capacity provided by an expanded shared service/partnership it is likely that access to 

specialist skills would still be required? Any new model must be able to address this need either through 

the partnership or through access to an organisation who can provide such specialists 



 

 

This document has been prepared only for Dartford Borough Council and solely for the purpose and 
on the terms agreed with Dartford Borough Council.  We accept no liability (including for negligence) 
to anyone else in connection with this document, and it may not be provided to anyone else. 
 
© 2018 PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP. All rights reserved. In this document, "PwC" refers to 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (a limited liability partnership in the United Kingdom), which is a 
member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers International Limited, each member firm of which is a 
separate legal entity. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Appendix B

ACTION PLAN FROM PWC FOLLOW UP REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT

Issue Proposed Action Implementation 
Date

By whom

Organisation and Independence
The Council should consider the position of 
the Chief Audit Executive (CAE) and ensure 
that this position is compliant with the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards

Once the position of Audit Manager has been 
appointed to, the CAE role will transfer to this post

September 2018 Strategic Director (Internal 
Services)

Organisation and Independence
A vision and strategy for the Internal Audit 
service should be drawn up with input 
from key stakeholders and senior 
management. The vision should set out 
what role Internal Audit will play within the 
Council and the strategy should ensure 
that Internal Audit’s objectives are clear 
and expectations are managed.

The new Audit Manager will prioritise developing  
a vision and strategy for Internal Audit once in post

January 2019 Audit Manager

Organisation and Independence
The Internal Audit Strategy should be 
updated to identify all conflicts of interest 
within the service and appropriate 
mitigating actions

Audit Charter to be updated and taken to Audit 
Board for approval

January 2019 Audit Manager

Audit Team
Consideration should be given to the skills 
and training needs of the Internal Audit 
team to ensure that the service can meet 
its strategic objectives

A skills assessment of the Internal Audit team is to 
be drawn up

A training programme for the team to be 
developed

October 2018

October 2018

Audit Manager

Quality Assurance and Audit Management
The audit manual should include 
information on the procedure for holding 

Audit manual to be updated October 2018 Audit Manager



Appendix B

audit scoping meetings. It should include 
guidance over the identification of risks to 
ensure a consistent approach. It should 
also include detail of sample size selection.
Communication and Reporting
A separate section should be added to the 
audit report template to capture 
limitations of scope

Audit report template to be updated June 2018 Audit Manager

Communication and Reporting
The audit manual should be updated to 
include detail on the level of audit 
evidence required to confirm the 
implementation of follow-up actions

Audit manual to be updated October 2018 Audit Manager

Quality, Tools and Performance 
Management
Internal Audit should consider how 
benchmarking and good practice can be 
better shared with key audit stakeholders

Template for scoping and feedback meetings to be 
amended to include benchmarking and good 
practice

June 2018 Audit Manager


	Agenda
	3 Confirmation of the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 January 2018
	6 Reports from the External Auditor and Assurance Letter
	Item 6 App A DBC Audit Plan 2017-18
	Item 6  App B External Audit Progress Report - April 2018
	Item 6 App C Letter to TCWG - 2017-18

	7 Internal Audit Plan 2018/19
	Item 7  Appendix Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018-19  V2
	Item 7 Annex 1 to Appendix - Draft Internal Audit Plan 2018-19 - V3
	Item 7-  Annex 2 to Appendix - Internal Audit Plan 2018-19 Resource Plan V2

	8 Review of Internal Audit Recommendations - Progress Report
	Item 8 - App A B Recommendations Progress  V2

	9 Audit Reports Issued Since Last Meeting of the Board
	Item 9 - App. A Reports Issued Since Last Meeting Appendix V2
	Item 9 - App. B Reports Issued Since Last Meeting V1

	10 Progress Report on Internal Audit Plan 2017/18
	Item 10 - Appendix A  B - Progress Against Plan -  V2

	11 Selective Invoice Checks
	12 Annual Governance Statement
	Item 12 App. A Annual Governance Statement - 2017-18 - APP A
	Item 12 App. Bcorp Gov review App B
	Item 12 App. C Action Plan Review  APP C
	Item 12 Annex 1 Annual Governance Statement - AGS App a Annex1 2018-19 PLAN

	13 PricewaterhouseCoopers Follow Up Review of the Internal Audit Service
	Item 13 App. A - Internal Audit EQA Follow Up Report - Dartford - FINAL
	Item 13 App. B - ACTION PLAN FROM PWC FOLLOW UP REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT


